MORROW COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING AGENDA

Wednesday, April 12,2017 at 9:00 AM

Irrigon Branch of the Oregon Trail Library District, Community Room

490 N.E. Main Ave., Irrigon, OR

1. Call to Order - 9:00 AM

=

Pledge of Allegiance

3. City and Citizen Comments — This is the time provided for individuals wishing to
address the Board regarding issues that are not already on the agenda.

4. Open Agenda — This is the time for the Board to introduce subjects that are not already
on the agenda.

5. Consent Calendar

a.

d.

Approve Claims: Accounts Payable dated April 13™; Payroll Payables,
Immediates & Electronic dated March 28™ and April 3'; Payroll Payables,
Monthlies, dated April 37; April 2017 Retirement Taxes, dated April 6%;

Letter of Support — Regional Conservation Partnership Program (Direct Seed
Preservation/Russian thistle reduction area)

Purchase Pre-Authorization, Morrow County Parks, pressure washer (Greg Close,
Parks Manager)

Purchase Pre-Authorization, Morrow County Parks, two metal buildings (Greg
Close, Parks Manager)

6. Business Items

a.

b.

h.

i

Resolution No. R-2017-10 - Supporting a Transportation Funding Package in the
2017 Legislative Session

Review Charter of the Public Health Local Community Advisory Council to
determine the number of eligible voting members and review appointment
recommendation (Sheree Smith, Public Health Director)

Public Health staffing request (Sheree Smith, Public Health Director)

Resolution No. R-2017-11 — Transferring Appropriations within the General Fund
(Kate Knop, Finance Director)

Resolution No. R-2017-9 - Approving an agreement between the sponsors of the
Columbia River Enterprise Zone and VaData Inc.

Discussion regarding upcoming Equity Fund meeting

Establish Fiscal Year 2017-2018 Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA) rate for non-
represented employees (Karen Wolff, Human Resources Director)

Surveyor compensation report (Karen Wolff, Human Resources Director)
Schriever Replat review (Stephen Wrecsics, GIS Planning Tech)

7. Staff Reports
a. Planning Department monthly report (Stephen Wrecsics, GIS Planning Tech)
b. Justice Court quarterly report (Judge Ann Spicer)

8. Correspondence

9. Commissioner Reports

10. Adjournment

Morrow County Board of Commissioners Agenda Page 1 of 2



The meeting location is accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for an interpreter for the
hearing impaired or for other accommodations for persons with disabilities should be made at
least 48 hours before the meeting to Roberta Lutcher at (541) 676-5613.

Pursuant to ORS 192.640, this agenda includes a list of the principal subjects anticipated to be
considered at the meeting; however, the Board may consider additional subjects as well. This
meeting is open to the public and interested citizens are invited to attend. Executive sessions are
closed to the public; however, with few exceptions and under specific guidelines, are open to the
media. The Board may recess for lunch depending on the anticipated length of the meeting and
the topics on the agenda. If you have anything that needs to be on the agenda, please notify the
Board office before noon of the preceding Friday. If something urgent comes up after this
publication deadline, please notify the office as soon as possible. If you have any questions about
items listed on the agenda, please contact Jerry Sorte, Administrative Officer at (541) 676-2529.

Morrow County Board of Commissioners Agenda Page 2 of 2



AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET TS

Morrow County Board of Commissioners 5 C_.
(Page 1 of 2) -

This document must be completed for each agenda item submitted for consideration by the Board of
Commissioners.

Staff Contact:Greg Close Phone Number (Ext):541-240-1741
Department: Morrow County Parks Requested Agenda Date: 4/12/2017
Person Attending BOC Meeting (REQUIRED): Greg Close

Short Title of Agenda Item: new pressure washer

This Item Involves: (Check all that apply for this meeting.)
Order or Resolution Appointments
Ordinance/Public Hearing: Update on Project/Committee
1stReading [ ] 2nd Reading Discussion Only
Public Comment Anticipated: Discussion & Action
Estimated Time: Estimated Time: 10 min

O0O00O
OO XOOO

] Document Recording Required Department Report
[] Contract/Agreement Other:
] NA For Contracts and Agreements Only
Contractor/Entity:
Contractor/Entity Address:
Effective Dates — From: Through:

-
Total Contract Amount: LefL’lP‘y Budget Line:
Does the contract amount exceed $5,0007 Yes [] No
If Yes, Attach Purchase Pre-Authorization Request if Applicable

Reviewed By:

‘r//f/ / 7 _Department Head Required for all BOC meetings
. " DATE
b'? L%"\ O"\—IAdmin. Officer/BOC Office Required for all BOC meetings
DATE
County Counsel Required for all legal documents
DATE
\\ g\ﬁ\ LA ‘_‘,\\\'\L\v "\\1\ i Finance Office Required for all contracts; Other
\ \ \ bure items as appropriate.
Human Resources If appropriate
DATE

Note: All entities must sign documents before they are presented to the Board of Commissioners.
Original documents are preferred. Agenda requests, including this completed form and supporting
documents, must be received by the Board’s office by Noon on the Friday prior to the Board of
Commissioners Wednesday meeting. County Counsel and Finance review is required for all contracts.



AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET

Morrow County Board of Commissioners
(Page 2 of 2)

1. TITLE OF AGENDA ITEM: new pressure washer for wash rack
2. ISSUES. BACKGROUND, AND DISCUSSION:

3. OPTIONS:

4, FISCAL IMPACT: taken from line item in park budget 238300 540 4111

5. STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:

6. SUGGESTED ACTION(S) / MOTION(S):
Replace existing wash down as the old system will not keep working and the coin machine cannot be reparied

e Attach additional background documentation as needed.

Routing: Original or copies of signed contract or document should be sent to the following:

[0 Clerk (Original for recording) X Finance Department (Copy for file)
Board of Commissioners (Copy for file) 0 Department — For distribution
O  Other -

Rev; 3/23/17



Purchase Pre-Authorization Request

Purchase pre-authorization is required prior to all purchases in
excess of $5,000.

DATE: May 5, 1994
RE: Purchasing Policy

It shall be the policy of Morrow County to require the Finance Director to sign-off on all major purchases. Examples
of major purchases may include trips and conferences, lcase agreements, or equipment and should include all capital
outlay purchases.

Normal operating supplies such as paper, even in large quantities, would not require a sign off. This is patticularly
important for purchases not anticipated at the time of budget, such as a piece of equipment that breaks down.

The purchasing sign-off should take place before the request comes to the County Court for pre- approval, This
allows the County Court to be aware of the expenditure before the obligation is incurred and to be assured that therc
are adequate funds to cover the request. !

Staff Contact: Oreg Close Phone Number (Ext): 541 -240-1741
Department: Morrow County Parks Date: 4-5-2017

Purchase Amount; 7,880.00 Budget Line: 238300 540 4111
Is the purchase a “public improvement?” CINo ] Yes, Address ORS 279C
Does the purchase amount exceed $10,000? No [T Yes, See Page 2
Description:

to replace an old aging system that was put in used and no longer is working. this also helps
keeping the weed problem down

AL Ty
\‘X\ AR \\n\ / / .,,/’zfzﬁ gyt g %4 / (L™

£
Finance Director signature " Department signature
Board of Commissioners Date

Original or copies of signed contract should be sent to the following:

Finance Department (Signed Original) X Department (Copy for file)
BOC Office (Copy for file)

v.10-20-16 Purchase Pre-Authiorization Page 10f2




Purchase Pre-Authorization Request - Addendum for Intermediate Procurements
Purchases in Excess of $10,000 but less than $150,000

Note: The County may not artificially divide or fragment a procurement so as to constitute an
intermediate procurement under this section. Purchases in excess of $150,000 require a formally
solicited Request for Proposals.

Requirements of ORS 279B.070:

(3) When conducting an intermediate procurement, a contracting agency shall seek at least
three informally solicited competitive price quotes or competitive proposals from prospective
contractors. The contracting agency shall keep a written record of the sources of the quotes or
proposals received. If three quotes or proposals are not reasonably available, fewer will suffice,
but the contracting agency shall make a written record of the effort the contracting agency
makes to obtain the quotes or proposals. [ORS 279B.070(3)]

Quote/Proposal 1:
easy Kleen pressure systems
7,800.00 with hot water heater

Quote/Proposal 2:
Kleen-rite
6,531.67 without hot water heater

Quote/Proposal 3:

* Attach documentation as needed

(4) If a contracting agency awards a contract, the contracting agency shall award the contract
to the offeror whose quote or proposal will best serve the interests of the contracting agency,
taking into account price as well as considerations including, but not limited to, experience,
expertise, product functionality, suitability for a particular purpose and contractor responsibility
under ORS 279B.110. [ORS 279B.070(3)]

Staff Recommendation:

v.10-20-16 Purchase Pre-Authorization Page 2 of 2



KIEEN-RITE ...

QUOTE

YOUR RELIABLE SUPPLIER FOR THE CAR WASH INDUSTRY
P.0. BOX 886, 257 S. 9th Street PA & USA Order No | Page Date
Columbia, PA 17512 PHONE (800) 233-3873 G17075C) 1 ] 02280017
(717) 684-6721 FAX (800) 446-0495
FAX (717) 684-0213 www.kleen-ritecorp.com
KLEEN-RITE QUOTE K1000-1
GREG'S QUOTE
Customer No Ship Via Ship Date Salesman No Purchase Order No Terms
K1000 UPS/CRCD 02/28/2017 DC GREG Credit Card
Quantity Part Number L | Description List Each Net Each Total
0.00 1 LR LR R R LR R L R e L e R et 0.00 0.00
0.00 1 [**QUOTE**QUOTE****QUOTE™*** 0.00 0.00
0‘00 1 AR AN RS R A AR AP AR A AN RA RS 0.00 0.00
1.00|PS310 2 [COMPLETE 1 BAY PUMP STAND 310 5,900.00 3,950.00 3950.00
1.00| CBK5000 2 | DELUXE LONG HULL BOX COMPLETE 2,770.00 1,940.00 1940.00
1.00|HAO86WBK1415 2 | 8' 3/8 BLK WB HOSE 3/8M/3/8MSW 27.89 13.95 13.95
1.00| GUKBOONW 2 | GUN, K-R NON-WEEP BLACK 60.25 19.99 19.99
1.00|BOO150A 2 | SS WALL MOUNT BOOM ASSEMBLY 114.99 93.99 93.99
1.00|WTERFBL 2 | BLUE ZINC ECO FLEX WAND 18" 13.66 10.55 10.55
1.00| SN3206M2 2 (3206 1/8 MEG SS SPRAY TIP 7.62 3.19 3.19
1.00|FRT" 2 |EST SHIPPING COST 200.00 200.00
1.00|MISC* 2 |MISC PARTS 300.00 300.00
$6,531.67

Quote Is Valid For 30 Days.

Does Not Include Applicable Taxes




EASY-KLEEN s

PRESSURE SYSTEMS LTD.

Quote

MANUFACTURER OF HIGH PRESSURE CLEANING EQUIPMENT Date Quote #
41 Earnhardt Road
Sussex Corner NB E4E 6A1 3/10/2017 Lo
1-800-315-5533
sales@easykleen.com
www.easykleen.com
TAX ID 88809 5825 RT0001
Bill To Ship To
MORROW COUNTY OHV PARK MORROW COUNTY OHV PARK
Greg Close (541) 989-8214 Greg Close (541) 989-8214
365 WHWY 74 365 W HWY 74
PO Box 428 PO Box 428
Lexington OR 97836 Lexington OR 97836
Expires Sales Rep
4/10/2017 TRENT WHITE
Item Description Quantity Price Amount
EZ0200 INDUSTRIAL SERIES, HOT WATER PRESSURE 1 2,495.00 2,595.00
CLEANING SYSTEM, OIL FIRED, 200000 BTU,
HP, 120V-1PH, 2 to 4 GPM @ 5000 PSI
**INCLUDES FLOW SWITCH
[S204E-1-A ATV WASH SYSTEM- COLD WATER PRESSURE 1 3,995.00 3,995.00
CLEANING SYSTEM, ELECTRIC, BELT
DRIVEN, 5 HP, 230V-1PH, 4 GPM @ 2000 PSI,
GENERAL PUMP. INCLUDES RINSE& SOAP
SOLENOID PACKAGE
CAR-OBO OVERHEAD BOOM, 360 DEGREE, 3000 PSI, 5 l 295.00 295.00
FEET 5 INCHES
CAR-CBL1-ESCP FRONT ACCESS COIN METER C/W COIN 1 995.00 995.00
ACCEPTOR AND 8 POSITION SWITCH
Stainless steel
rear load box for coins also available same cost
To accept 25 cent us coin and able to set amount of
time based on amount of money deposited
FREIGHT FREIGHT TO BE DETERMINED ON UNIT 1 0.00 0.00
CHOSEN
Total 7,880.00
Freight Tailgate Servives are additional. Initial quotes are emailed und mailed, any additional quotes are emailed only. =
Invoices over 10 days old and all machine sale invoices which are paid by credit curd, will have o 2.5% administration fee applied to the credit card transaction,
Thank you for allowing us the opportunity to quote the above, We are proud of being & Canadian manufucturer since 1982,

176RQ

g

¢S



- Coin Operated Car Wash

Bectric Motor (5HP) T weve B o S R on Thy
<1750 RPM [TERC[Full Frame L1115 Service Factor ] :

[ Thermal Overload Protection _Continuous Duty

| 220 \olt - 1Phase or 230/440/575 \blt - 3 Phase

Pump . Easy Kleen hastaken pridein designing
Heavy Duty Triplex Plunger Pump LOil Bath Crank and manufacturing fool proof, easy to
_Case | tainless \alves | Brass Manifold L Direct Drive install and maintain self serve car wash
. ‘g:ie\:lremo Pump Protector | Belt or Aange & Coupling systemsthat will provide savingsfrom

installation to maintenancefor years
Control Panel to come.

Nema 4 [Water Tight | Easy Access| Mounted to Pump
Base | Prewired, Just Requires a Power Source

5 HP Bectric Motor
Soap Controls 4GPM @2000 PS
Belt or Fange & Coupling Drive

_Standard Soap and Wax Injection Valves with Fine
Point Metering | Complete with Hot Weter Solenoid to
Control Hot Soap and Wax | Cold Water Rinse Solenoid
to Save Money Heating Water | Fimp Suction is
Controlled with 10 Gallon Poly Roat Tank

Frame : e _
_AllWelded " Powder Coated | Bench Style | Optional
Stackable Pump System Frames Available

Includes
" Adjustable Pressure Regulator [Liquid Filled Pressure
Gauge | Heavy Duty Fttings

Bay Equipment

_Stainless Steel Heavy Duty Coin Box with 8 Position
Switch for Optional Selections, Internal Heater and
Extreme Duty Lock Box | Multi Coin Acceptor with
Sate Timer, Coin Acceptor (Quarters, Loonies and
Toonies or Tokens) LED, Beeper (Specify Front or Rear
Loading) [ Genter Mounted Spring Loaded 360 degree
Boom [ Flexible Wands | High Pressure Swivels

14000 Pl Rated Weep Trigger Gun L Stainless Seel
Nozzle | Bay Lines are Steel Braided and Non-Marking

| Stow-Away Wall Brackets | Complete Instruction Signs
are Included

Options e

| Foaming Brush System | Motor and Tire Cleaner |.Floor
Mat Clamps | Coin Operated Vacuums | Mending
Machines - Stainless Bill Changer

1-800-315-5533 [Sibales@easykleen.com [Eww.easykleen.com



AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET | [em#

Morrow County Board of Commissioners 5 d_
(Page 1 of 3)

This document must be completed for each agenda item submitted for consideration by the Board of
Commissioners.

Staff Contact: Greg Close Phone Number (Ext):541-240-
1741 9=
Department: Morrow County Parks Requested Agenda Dateiﬂl‘iaw‘%}'l;'
Person Attending BOC Meeting
(REQUIRED):
Short Title of Agenda Item:purchase of two metal
buldings
This Ttem Involves: (Check all that apply for this meeting.)
[] Order or Resolution [] Appointments
[[] Ordinance/Public Hearing: [ Update on Project/Committee
[] 1st Reading [ ] 2nd Reading [] Discussion Only
[] Public Comment Anticipated: x  Discussion & Action
Estimated Time: Estimated Time: 10 min
[[] Document Recording Required (] Department Report
| Contract/Agreement [] Other:
] wA For Contracts and Agreements Only
Contractor/Entity:
Contractor/Entity Address:
Effective Dates — From: Through:
Total Contract Amount: Budget Line:

Does the contract amount exceed $5,000? [X] Yes [ No
If Yes, Attach Purchase Pre-Authorization Request if Applicable

Reviewed By: g
M i z /Z}éﬁ? Department Head Required for all BOC meetings

" DATE
C}g/ QA 4 - |-\71 Admin. Officet/BOC Office Required for all BOC meetings
7 DATE
) | County Counsel Required for all legal documents
DATE
\(\KA\\ A\ P \( v“*}\—/ Finance Office Required for all contracts; Other

Note: All entities must sign documents before they are presented to the Board of Commissioners.
Original documents are preferred. Agenda requests, including this completed form and supporting
documents, must be received by the Board’s office by Noon on the Friday prior to the Board of
Commissioners Wednesday meeting. County Counsel and Finance review is required for all contracts,



AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET

Morrow County Board of Commissioners
(Page 2 of 3)

DATE items as appropriate.

Human Resources If appropriate

DATE

Rev: 3/7/17



AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET

Morrow County Board of Commissioners
(Page 3 of 3)

1. TITLE OF AGENDA ITEM: PURCHASE OF TWO METAL BUILDINGS
2. ISSUES, BACKGROUND, AND DISCUSSION:

3. OPTIONS:

4. FISCAL IMPACT: THE MONEY WILL BE TAKEN OUT OF CAPITAL OUTLAY

5. STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:

6. SUGGESTED ACTION(S) / MOTION(S):

e Attach additional background documentation as needed.

Routing: Original or copies of signed contract or document should be sent to the following:

O Clerk (Original for recording) U Finance Department (Copy for file)
[0 Board of Commissioners (Copy for file) O Department — For distribution

X  Other public works

Rev: 3/7/17




Clear Form

Purchase pre-authorization is required prior to all purchases in
excess of $5,000.

DATE: May 5, 1994
RE: Purchasing Policy

It shall be the policy of Morrow County to require the Finance Director to sign-off on all major purchases. Examples
of major purchases may include trips and conferences, lease agreements, or equipment and should include all capital
outlay purchases.

Normal operating supplies such as paper, even in large quantities, would not require a sign off. This is particularly
important for purchases not anticipated at the time of budget, such as a piece of equipment that breaks down.

The purchasing sign-off should take place before the request comes to the County Court for pre- approval. This
allows the County Court to be aware of the expenditure before the obligation is incurred and to be assured that there
are adequate funds to cover the request.

Staff Contact: Greg Close Phone Number (Ext): 541-240-1741
Department: Morrow County Parks Date: 3/23/2017

Purchase Amount: $12,000.00 Budget Line: 238300 540 4108

Is the purchase a “public improvement?” [ ] No Yes, Address ORS 279C

Does the purchase amount exceed $10,0007 ENO [E/Yes, See Page 2 HC/{uﬂ‘g‘
Description:

Purchase of two metal buildings. these buildings were purchased new and never put up. we
can purchase these metal buildings (40x40 and 40x30) for six thousand dollars each if we buy
both. this would be a real asset to the parks system.

\(\R\. AL \ Ny W %—\/

Fimance Director si gn&urc Department signature

Board of Commissioners Date

Original or copies of signed contract should be sent to the following:

Finance Department (Signed Original) Department (Copy for file)
X BOC Office (Copy for file)

v.10-20-16 Purchase Pre-Authorization Page 1of2



Purchase Pre-Authorization Request - Addendum for Intermediate Procurements
Purchases in Excess of $10,000 but less than $150,000

Note: The County may not artificially divide or fragment a procurement so as to constitute an
intermediate procurement under this section. Purchases in excess of $150,000 require a formally
solicited Request for Proposals.

Requirements of ORS 279B.070:

(3) When conducting an intermediate procurement, a contracting agency shall seek at least
three informally solicited competitive price quotes or competitive proposals from prospective
contractors. The contracting agency shall keep a written record of the sources of the quotes or
proposals received. If three quotes or proposals are not reasonably available, fewer will suffice,
but the contracting agency shall make a written record of the effort the contracting agency
makes to obtain the quotes or proposals. [ORS 279B.070(3)]

Quote/Proposal 1:

Tim Madden

30x40 quonset hut building 6,000
40x40 quonset hut building 6,000

Quote/Proposal 2:

Duro span

40x30 quonset building 10,600
40x40 quonset bulding 11,950

Quote/Proposal 3:

steel master

40%x30 quonset building 14,500
40x40 quonset building 16,500

* Attach documentation as needed

(4) If a contracting agency awards a contract, the contracting agency shall award the contract
1o the offeror whose quote or proposal will best serve the interests of the contracting agency,
taking into account price as well as considerations including, but not limifed to, experience,
expertise, product functionality, suitability for a particular purpose and contractor responsibility
under ORS 279B.110. [ORS 279B.070(3)]

Staff Recommendation:

parks would like to purchase the buildings from Tim Madden.

v.10-20-16 Purchase Pre-Authorization Page 20f2



Seller: Tim Madden Date: 3/22/2017
541-620-4445

Buyer: Morrow County Parks

Qty Item # Description Unit Price Discount Line Total
1 Model 30-14 30" * 40'* 14’ Quonset hut $6000.00 $6000.00
1 Model 40-15 40’ * 40' * 15’ Quonset hut $6000.00 $6000.00

Total Discount

Subtotal $12,000.00
Sales Tax
Total $12,000.00

Thank You!



Seller: Tim Madden Date: 3/22/2017
541-620-4445

Buyer: Morrow County Parks

Qty ltem # Description Unit Price Discount Line Total
1 Model 30-14 30" * 40’ * 14' Quonset hut $6000.00 $6000.00
1 Model 40-15 40' * 40' * 15’ Quonset hut $6000.00 $6000.00

Total Discount

Subtotal $12,000.00
Sales Tax
Total $12,000.00

Thank You!



Duro°¥“”

THE DEST A - EREEBSEFREED) A0 BB (S

Sales Proposal

Prepared by:
Jarrod M. Shore
Phone: 1.800.445.0412
Local Number 954.927.6566
Email: Jarrod@durobuildings.com
www.durospan.net




Got Questions? Please call us at 1.800.445.0412/ 954.927.6566 or email Jarrod @durobuildings.com

Thank you...

Let me begin by saying that | am delighted to be of consideration for your building project. | hope to
earn your business and in return, myself, along with Duro Span Buildings promise a prestigious Steel
Building that will provide years of trouble free operation.

| joined the Steel Building industry in 1993 and since then | have never looked back. One thing |
learned was how to appeal to an elite group of people. You see, | don't believe that market share is
the Holy Grail. A segment of our market goes cheap, sometimes too cheap, but there's also a
segment of the market that wants a product and a company that surpasses their needs, and The
Duro Group wants to earnestly compete for those customers.

I'm not going to lose sleep over that other market share because it's just not who we are. Fortunately,
this market is of a tremendous size and there are ample people that care and want a great
experience.

Our goal is to provide the best steel structures and doors, worldwide ---steel buildings and Doors that
you would be proud to recommend to your family and friends, and that's why we have been a leading
steel provider for almost 24 years. And just like the day we started, we are still family owned so you
can rest assured that you will be treated just like family!

To better serve you, please provide me with feedback on the specs and pricing | have provided
herein. Without your input | cannot deliver on any of my promises.

Thanks again for this opportunity, We'll talk soon!

Bruce D. Shore

cO0
&

Jarrod M. Shore
CEO



THE BEST PRE-ENGINEERED ARCH BUILDINGS
Headquarters / Sales
351 S Cypress Road STE 100, Pompano Beach FL 33060 1.800.445.0412 /954.927.6566 / 1.800.445.0421 - Fax
International Phone: 001.954.927.6566 / International Fax: 001.954.927.5670
www.durospan.net

March 29, 2017

Job Information
Name: Greg Close
Location: Heppner,OR
As per our conversation, please accept the following:
Q40-14 Model 40' Wide x 30' Long x 14' High

. Manufactured in 22 gauge High Tensile Galvalume Steel Plus.

pa—

, Number of arches: 14
. Front End Wall 18'X12.5 Slider Door
. Rear End Wall Solid

. Manufactured in heavy commercial grade AZ60 Super Galvalume Plus steel
. All Necessary Hardware, 5/16" Hex Head Nuts, Bolts
. Weather Stripping to Ensure Tightness for Each End Wall

. Foundation & Erection Manudl

N0 00 N o A WN

. Clearspan high profile interior means 100% useable interior space
10.30 Year Written Warranty {Backed by North American Steel Factory)

BUILDING PRICE DELIVERED......c.cccitiinirniniiniiii e nsiaceniias $10,600.00
DEPOSIT iiissssiiiiiisssivsusrenssinanisaiavasnniissssicosssvsivorasasves $ 2,000.00

BALANCE DUE ...oioriiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiicie ettt eietcnnsnsnsesransassnosss $ 8,600.00



Q40-14 Model 40" Wide x 40' Long x 14" High

Manufactured in 22 gauge High Tensile Galvalume Steel Plus.
1. Number of arches: 19
. Front End Wall 18'X12.5 Slider Door

. Rear End Wall Solid
. Manufactured in heavy commercial grade AZ60 Super Galvalume Plus steel

2

3

4

5. All Necessary Hardware, 5/16" Hex Head Nuts, Bolts

6. Weather Stripping to Ensure Tightness for Each End Wall

7. Foundation & Erection Manual

8. Clearspan high profile interior means 100% useable interior space

10.30 Year Written Warranty (Backed by North American Steel Factory)

BUILDING PRICE DELIVERED.........cocvrviiiiinniniiiiiimiiiiiaien, $11,950.00
DEPOSIT cieiiiiiiierrrienstncnsesstecnesrersnnsmssrenestisesasstossrsensesencs $2,000.00
BALANCE DUE  ....oiiiiiiriiiiiiiisinisnssssnsnersassnsisiimmsassasaisiissoninens $ 9.950.00

OPTIONS: (NOT INCLUDED)
IF BUILDINGS ARE PURCHASED AT THE SAME TIME, TOTAL COST WILL BE REDUCED BY $1,000.00

If you require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.
Sincerely,

Jarrod Shore

Duro Span Steel Buildings

Please Note this quote does nof include the following:
« DOES NOT include labor/ equipment to unload
e DOES NOT Include installation

Please take a look at some of our Duro Span Building models......

G-Series

A-Series



Q-Series

S-Series

!
. iy T

(%) DURO BUILDINGS



Morrow Co Parks Manaaer

From: William Swafford <WSwafford @steelmasterusa.com>
Sent: Tuesday, April 4, 2017 12:59 PM

To: Morrow Co Parks Manager

Subject: Building info

Attachments: Close,Greg.pdf

Greg,

| only drew the 40x40(see attached) let me know if you need a drawing for the 30’ long design as well. The basic
structures would run $16,000 for the 40x40 and $14,500 for the 40x30. | am glad to put a formal quote together if you
need one. Please let me know if you have any questions or concerns.

Regards,

william Swafford
Senior Design Specialist
LEED Green Associate

sveeLl k'g‘!‘emsren'

SteelMaster® Buildings
1023 Laskin Rd, Suite 109
Virginia Beach, VA 23451

Phone: (800) 341-7007 Ext: 8121

Direct: (757) 961-7008

Cell: (757) 560-0680

Fax: (757) 422-9167

Email: wswafford@steelmasterusa.com




V6 v ¢ MR A T D B¢

L}
[EAR FLEVATICA SOE_ELEYATIN ERONT ELEVATIN

e S

u mlﬂ:.d:r
i) .
=
f"l

&
&
- 8
sl ;_._ HL T
1 My E g g
H ."7:" [N ot ke

- Ea -

1 saite 30 15




Morrow Co Parks Manager

From: Tom Utley <tomu@factoryusa.com>

Sent: Thursday, March 30, 2017 1:26 PM

To: Morrow Co Parks Manager

Subject: The Building We Discussed Today

Attachments: Q41-16 Model (1).pdf; Mayflower-Q-Brochure.pdf; DoubleSlidingDoor.pdf
Greg,

Here’s the information on the A model building we currently have available. Here is what will come with the building:
e 2 BUILDING ORDER

e 10F2 41 W x 40 L x 186 H ( profile attached)
e 20F2 41Wx30Lx16H

e  Galvalume coated steel panel (7 TIMES BETTER THAN GALVANIZED)

o 35 Year Warranty

» Front has a 12X12 opening
¢ EACH HAS A 12X12 SLIDER DOOR

e Rearis Solid

¢ Mfg. Stamped Building Plans

o Mfg. Stamped Foundation Plans

o 100 % USA Made !

o  Community Freight

e Bolts include Neoprene washer

e Bolts have JS 1500 Coating

e Meets or Exceeds your required wind and snow load requirements

e Goes up EASY

¢ Professional Customer Service

The delivered price is $19,999.00 Terms are 25% with order and balance on delivery.

Give me a call today and lock in this deal at this price.



Tom Utley

Senior Factory Rep. 17+ years
Mayflower Steel Buildings
Olympia Steel Buildings
1-731-549-4220 Cell
1-800-579-2544 Ext 311
1-800-941-1138 Desk

www.mayflowersteelbuildings.com
www.olympiasteelbuildings.com
tomu@factoryusa.com




WORLDWIDE STEEL BUILDINGS

“we manufacture steel buildings to meet your needs”

v’ Pre-Engineered for Simplic Assembly =l s i
v Unsurpassed Versatility & Flexibility - : _ B |
v’ Edge mounted purlins and girts b 3 1 o |
v’ 100% Usable space : d s anet I
v" 50 Year Truss Warranty _
v’ 25 Year Sheeting Warranty ' l
v’ Service and Integrity for over 33 years
Building Proposal
March 24, 2017
Morrow County
Heppner, OR
Building Size: 30x40x14 Roofing: Galvalumne
Roof Pitch: 4:12 Trim: Galvalumne
Snow load 20 - Wind load 90 Siding: Galvalumne
Includes:
e Trusses and Truss Hardware.
o Pre-Cut sheeting hardened to 80,000 psi with a 40 year warranty.
e Steel Purlins and Girts edge mounted every 2’ for strength.
o Self drilling screws assembled with neoprene washers,
e 1-12x 12 Sliding Door
e Assembly plans and Instructions.
e Column Layout Plans.
e Engineer Certified Building Plans.
e Delivered to Heppner, OR.
Total Purchase Price $ 14,964.00 Quote valid to 4-10-17
A 25% deposit required to secure price, remaining balance due on delivery.
Jim Beckerdite Phone: 800-825-0316

E-Mail: jbeckerditeieworldwidesteetbuildings.com Direct: 816-779-7512



WORLDWIDE STEEL BUILDINGS

“we manufacture steel buildings to meet your needs”

v’ Pre-Engineered for Simple Assembly e _ -"_.‘rr ; i
v" Unsurpassed Versatility & Flexibility : Sl )
v’ Edge mounted purlins and girts Y I i |
v/ 100% Usable space : Yl
v~ 50 Year Truss Warranty
v’ 25 Year Sheeting Warranty
v’ Service and Integrity for over 33 years
Building Proposal
March 24, 2017
Morrow County
Heppner, OR
Building Size: 40x40x14 Roofing: Galvalumne
Roof Pitch: 4:12 Trim: Galvalumne
Snow load 20 - Wind load 90 Siding: Galvalumne
Includes:
e Trusses and Truss Hardware.
e Pre-Cut sheeting hardened to 80,000 psi with a 40 year warranty.
e Steel Purlins and Girts edge mounted every 2 for strength,
o Self drilling screws assembled with neoprene washers.
e 1-12x12 Sliding Door
e Assembly plans and Instructions.
e Column Layout Plans.
e Engineer Certified Building Plans.
e Delivered to Heppner, OR.
Total Purchase Price $17,763.00 Quote valid to 4-10-17
A 25% deposit required to secure price, remaining balance due on delivery.
Jim Beckerdite Phone: 800-825-0316

E-Mail: jbeckerdite qeworldwidesteelbuildings.com Direct: 816-779-7512




AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET Ttem #
Morrow County Board of Commissioners Q OL/
(Page 1 of 2) |

This document must be completed for each agenda item submitted for consideration by the Board of
Commissioners.

Staff Contact: Jerry Sorte Phone Number (Ext): 5309
Department: Board of Commissioners Requested Agenda Date: April 12,2017
Person Attending BOC Meeting (REQUIRED): Board of Commissioners

Short Title of Agenda Item: Resolution in Support of a Transportation Funding Package

This Item Involves: (Check all that apply for this meeting.)
[ ] Order or Resolution Appointments
[_] Ordinance/Public Hearing: Update on Project/Committee
[ ] 1stReading [ ] 2nd Reading Discussion Only
[] Public Comment Anticipated: Discussion & Action
Estimated Time: Estimated Time: 10 minutes

L0 X

[] Document Recording Required Department Report
] Contract/Agreement Other:
X N/A For Contracts and Agreements Only
Contractor/Entity:
Contractor/Entity Address:
Effective Dates — From: Through:
Total Contract Amount: Budget Line:

Does the contract amount exceed $5,000?2 [ ]| Yes [_] No
If Yes, Attach Purchase Pre-Authorization Request if Applicable

Reviewed By:
Department Head Required for all BOC meetings
DATE
f}”ﬁ ‘ Al 41 - ’1 Admin. Officer/BOC Office Required for all BOC meetings
DATE
4 “_I - lj County Counsel Required for all legal documents
DATE '
Finance Office Required for all contracts; Other
DATE items as appropriate.
Human Resources If appropriate
DATE

Note: All entities must sign documents before they are presented to the Board of Commissioners.
Original documents are preferred. Agenda requests, including this completed form and supporting
documents, must be received by the Board’s office by Noon on the Friday prior to the Board of
Commissioners Wednesday meeting. County Counsel and Finance review is required for all contracts.




AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET

Morrow County Board of Commissioners
(Page 2 of 2)

1. TITLE OF AGENDA ITEM: Resolution in Support of a Transportation Funding Package

2. ISSUES, BACKGROUND, AND DISCUSSION: Attached is a draft resolution that would provide
support for a Transportation Funding Package in the 2017 Legislative Session. This resolution is based on a
draft resolution that was provided by the Association of Oregon Counties. This resolution has been assigned
the resolution number R-2017-10. The Board may choose to adopt this resolution at this meeting.

3. OPTIONS:
Options available to the Board of Commissioners include:

1. Move to approve Resolution R-2017-10 as written;

2. Direct staff to make amendments to the resolution (specify) and return for adoption at a future
meeting;

3. Take no action;
4. Other.
4. FISCAL IMPACT:
A Transportation Funding Package may have a significant, positive impact on the County’s Road budget.

5. STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:

Staff recommends that the Board of Commissioners discuss this matter and consider one of the following
options listed below.

6. SUGGESTED ACTION(S) / MOTION(S): After considerations, the Board of Commissioners options
include the following:

1. Move to approve Resolution R-2017-10 as written;

2. Direct staff to make amendments to the resolution (specify) and return for adoption at a future meeting;
3. Take no action;

4. Other.

Routing: Original or copies of signed contract or document should be sent to the following:

LI Clerk (Original for recording) U Finance Department (Copy for file)
[0 Board of Commissioners (Copy for file) O Department — For distribution
[J Other

Rev: 3/7/17




BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS FOR MORROW COUNTY,
OREGON

In the matter of providing support for a )
Transportation Funding Package in the ) Resolution No. R-2017-10
2017 Legislative Session )

THE MORROW COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISIONERS FINDS:

WHEREAS, a well-maintained transportation system is necessary for a vibrant
economy and the safe and efficient movement of people and goods;

WHEREAS, all sectors of Oregon’s economy rely on the transportation system to
remain competitive and to connect to the marketplace;

WHEREAS, addressing the growing need for system-wide maintenance and
modernization is essential to economic development in Oregon;

WHEREAS, Oregon’s counties maintain half of the bridges, over half of the non-
federal road miles, and tens of thousands of culverts and other transportation facilities for
the movement of goods and services around Oregon;

WHEREAS, according to the 2014 County Road Needs Study, Oregon’s counties
face annual shortfalls of $505,000,000 for maintenance, pavement preservation, and
capital construction;

WHEREAS, Morrow County anticipates that there is an annual shortfall of funds
needed to maintain the County’s existing road and bridge infrastructure of at least $2
million;

WHEREAS, in order to maintain our county roads, bridges, and culverts, and to
preserve the investment in Morrow County’s transportation system, additional funding is
necessary;

WHEREAS, the Legislature and the Governor have created the Joint Committee
on Transportation Preservation and Modernization to develop a transportation funding
package for the 2017 legislative session;

WHEREAS, the thousands of jobs and improved infrastructure created by a 2017
funding package will benefit Oregon’s economy and its workforce for decades to come;

WHEREAS, Counties would receive 30% of new funds brought in through a
transportation funding package, allowing Morrow County to address critical
transportation needs such as road and bridge improvements;

Page 1
RESOLUTION NO. R-2017-10



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Morrow County Board of
Commissioners supports passage of a transportation package by the 2017 Legislature in
order to maintain and preserve Oregon’s statewide transportation system.

Dated this 12 day of April, 2017.

MORROW COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISIONERS
MORROW COUNTY, OREGON

Melissa Lindsay, Chair

Don Russell, Vice Chair

Jim Doherty, Commissioner

Attest:

Bobbi Childers, County Clerk

Approved as to Form:

Morrow County Counsel

Page 2
RESOLUTION NO. R-2017-10



AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET & b

Morrow County Board of Commissioners

(Page 1 of 2)
Staff Contact: Sheree Smith, Justin Nelson Phone Number (Ext):
Department: Health Department / County Counsel Requested Agenda Date: 4/12/2017

Person Attending BOC Meeting (REQUIRED): Sheree Smith
Short Title of Agenda Item: Review charter of the Public Health Local Community Advisory Council to
determine the number of eligible voting members

This Item Involves: (Check all that apply for this meeting.)
[] Order or Resolution Appointments
[] Ordinance/Public Hearing: Update on Project/Committee
[] 1st Reading [ ] 2nd Reading Discussion Only
[] Public Comment Anticipated: Discussion & Action
Estimated Time: Estimated Time:

(.

[ ] Document Recording Required Department Report
] Contract/Agreement Other: Discussion and possible
Nomination to LCAC
(] N/A For Contracts and Agreements Only
Contractor/Entity:
Contractor/Entity Address:
Effective Dates — From: Through:
Total Contract Amount: Budget Line:

Does the contract amount exceed $5,000? [ ] Yes [_] No
If Yes, Attach Purchase Pre-Authorization Request if Applicable

Reviewed By:
Department Head Required for all BOC meetings
DATE
qu?/' AL ['{ ':_{ i \7 Admin. Officer/BOC Office Required for all BOC meetings
! DATE
Justin Nelson- 4-7-2017 County Counsel Required for all legal documents
DATE
Finance Office Required for all contracts; Other
DATE items as appropriate.
Human Resources If appropriate
DATE

1. TITLE OF AGENDA ITEM: REVIEW CHARTER OF THE PUBLIC HEALTH LOCAL

COMMUNITY ADVISORY COUNCIL TO DETERMINE THE NUMBER OF ELIGIBLE VOTING

MEMBERS

2. ISSUES. BACKGROUND, AND DISCUSSION:
See attached Memo

Rev: 3/23/17



AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET

Morrow County Board of Commissioners
(Page 2 of 2)

3. OPTIONS:
1. Nominate Terry Tallman to serve on LCAC.

2. Take no action to nominate Terry Tallman- Terry Tallman would should no longer be considered as a
LCAC member since his position was based upon his role as representative of the Morrow County
Court.

4. FISCAL IMPACT: None

5. STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:

Board of Commissioners move to nominate Terry Tallman to serve on the LCAC, forward nomination to
EOCCO for consideration of appointment.

6. SUGGESTED ACTION(S) / MOTION(S):

Board of Commissioners move to nominate Terry Tallman to serve on the LCAC, forward nomination to
EOCCO for consideration of appointment.

Routing: Original or copies of signed contract or document should be sent to the following:

[0 Clerk (Original for recording) UJ Finance Department (Copy for file)
[0 Board of Commissioners (Copy for file) UJ Department — For distribution
]  Other

Rev: 3/23/17




Office of the County Counsel

; P.O. Box 664, Heppner, Oregon 97836 Justin Nelson: County Counsel
, = Telephone: (541) 676-5626 Richard Tovey: County Counsel
U‘ N& Facsimile: (541) 676-5660

April 7,2017

TO: Morrow County Board of Commissioners

FROM: Justin Nelson
Morrow County Counsel

RE: "Review charter of the Public Health Local Community

Advisory Council to determine the number of eligible
voting members.

BACKGROUND:

During the March 22, 2017 Board of Commissioners meeting, a request was made to appoint Terry Tallman
to the Public Health Local Community Advisory Council (LCAC) as a voting member. Mr. Tallman has
attended the LCAC meetings as a voting member for the past 5 years as a part of his role as Morrow County
Judge. Terry Tallman is not listed individually as a member of the LCAC, and purely served that role as the
Morrow County Court representative.

The Board of Commissioners requested a review of the bylaws to determine if anything needed to be
changed to allow Terry Tallman to be a voting member, and verify that the bylaws allowed the appointment
of another member.

DISCUSSION:

As a part of this question I reviewed documents provided by Morrow County Public Health Director Sheree
Smith, and spoke with Ms. Smith regarding the make-up of the LCAC. The documents provided included
the "Local Community Advisory Council Charter" and notes provided to the Morrow County Court during a
meeting held on February 25, 2015 (Attachment 1 and 2). From my discussion with Ms. Smith, there does
not appear to be any bylaws for the LCAC. It also became clear that the LCAC itself is not a function of the
Morrow County Board of Commissioners, and instead is an extension of the Eastern Oregon Coordinated
Community Council (EOCCO).



A review of the LCAC Charter specifies that the role of the Board of Commissioners is to review all
applications from members to join the LCAC. The Board of Commissioners then nominate any application
they would like considered to be appointed onto LCAC. The actual appointment of LCAC members is done
by EOCCO Board of Directors.

The LCAC Charter also does not differentiate between different appointed members. It appears that any
appointed member of the LCAC is also considered to be a voting member of the LCAC.

CONCLUSION:

If the Board of Commissioners would like to have Terry Tallman to remain on the LCAC, the Board will
need to vote to nominate Terry Tallman to be on LCAC. The nomination would then be forwarded to the
EOCCO Board of Directors for approval. Based upon the current formation of the LCAC, the Board of
Commissioners currently do not set the length of term, or determine if the individual is considered a voting
member. Those details are left to the LCAC and the EOCCO.

Justin W. Nelson
Morrow County Counsel
OSB #074460



T4 LOCAL COMMUNITY ADVISORY
COUNCIL CHARTER
e0CCO

Eastern Oregon Coordinated Care Organization (EOCCO) will appoint a Local Community Advisory
Committee (LCAC) to serve each of EOCCO’s twelve counties. When appropriate, Counties may choose
to form a multi-county LCAC to best serve their geographic location and population. LCACs will help
ensure EOCCO is responsive to member and community health needs. The primary charge of each
LCAC is to advocate for preventive care practices, to oversee and collaborate with community partners
on a Community Needs Assessment, and to develop, implement and report on a Community Health
Improvement Plan.

MEMBERSHIP

LCACs are intended to represent the diversity of their community, including race/ethnicity, age, gender
identity, sexual orientation, disability, and geographic location. County residents must submit
applications for membership in their respective LCAC to their County Commission. Any community
member is encouraged to apply. EOCCO prefers that the majority of LCAC members be consumers,
including Medicaid members, their families and/or those who serve that population. There will be no
limit on the number of members appointed to a LCAC, providing the LCAC can effectively function and
perform its duties.

The respective County Commission will review all applications and nominate members of the LCAC,
which will also include at least one county government representative. Nominees will be reviewed and
appointed by the EOCCO Board of Directors (“Board”). The Board may remove any member from a
LCAC at any time with or without cause.

MEMBER TERMS

The initial LCAC members appointed by the Board will draw lots for one-year, two-year and three-year
terms. Following the initial appointments to each LCAC, all future LCAC members will serve three year
terms and may be reappointed to additional three year terms without limit.

Officers of each LCAC will be limited to a Chair, Vice-chair, and Secretary all of whom will be elected by
the LCAC to serve one-year terms. The Chair will also serve on the EOCCO Regional Community
Advisory Council (RCAC). In the Chair’s absence, the Vice-chair will serve as the Chair of the LCAC.
Officers may be removed by the LCAC or reappointed without limit.

Each LCAC will be responsible determining its preferred meeting frequency and location but must meet
at least quarterly and must give public notice of their meetings at least ten days in advance. LCAC

LCAC Charter Final 04-22-13 Page | 1

1-1



meetings will be public and open to all interested community members. Each LCAC will be responsible
for developing and managing rules for quarum, public input, and other meeting procedures and will
provide a detailed description of their adopted rules to the Board. The Board must be apprised of any

changes in meeting procedures.

Materials will be distributed as far in advance as possible in order to allow time for review before the
meetings. Members are expected to come prepared in order to ensure effective meeting outcomes.

The content of each LCAC’s meetings will be captured in minutes that briefly summarize the discussion
and outlining key outcomes, including motions, recommendations, and follow-up. The minutes will be
drafted and distributed to the Board and to LCAC members within two weeks following each meeting.
Members will review and approve the previous meeting’s minutes at the beginning of the following

meeting.

MEDIA INQUIRIES
In the event a LCAC is contacted by the press, the Chair will refer the request to the EOCCO President.

MEMBER RESPONSIBILITIES
Each CAC member will:

1. Faithfully attend LCAC meetings and participate in discussion;

2. Disclose any conflicts of interest and abstain from voting on any matter where he/she has a
financial interest in the decision;

3. Advocate for the health of their community as a whole, not just the organization or group they may
represent;

4. ldentify and advocate for preventive care practices that can be utilized by EOCCO;

5. Share relevant life experiences, workforce and academic expertise, and personal insights in the
areas of social determinants of health, mental health, addiction, wellness promotion, education,
housing, senior’s health services, culturally specific health services and workforce, youth health
services, corrections and public safety, disability health services, and health disparities among
other issues.

6. Serve on committees and attend committee meetings, when appointed;

7. Perform duties as may be assigned by the LCAC from time to time.

PRINCIPLES OF COLLABORATION
The following general principles are offered as a guide to CAC deliberations:

1. The LCAC's charge will be best achieved by relationships among the members characterized by
mutual trust, responsiveness, flexibility, and open communication.

2. Itis the responsibility of all members to work toward the LCAC’s common goals.

3. To that end, members will:

LCAC Charter Final 04-22-13 Page | 2

1-2



(a) Commit to expending the time, energy and organizational resources necessary to carry out the
LCAC’s charge;

(b) Be prepared to listen intently to the concerns of others and identify the interests represented;

(c) Ask questions and seek clarification to ensure they fully understand other’s interests, concerns
and comments;

(d) Regard disagreements as problems to be solved rather than battles to be won; and

(e) Be prepared to “think outside the box” and develop creative solutions to address the many
interests that will be raised throughout the LCAC's deliberations.

DECISION MAKING

Members of each LCAC will work to find common ground on issues and strive to seek consensus on all
key issues. Every effort will be made to reach consensus, and opposing views will be explained. In
situations where there are strongly divergent views, members may choose to present multiple
recommendations on the same topic. If the LCAC is unable to reach consensus on key issues, decisions
will be made by majority vote using the gradients of agreement. Minority views will be included in the

meeting minutes.

COMMUNITY HEALTH ASSESSMENT AND COMMUNITY HEALTH IMPROVEMENT PLAN

Each LCAC will conduct a Community Health Assessment and develop and implement a Community
Health Improvement Plan, and will collaborate with the Oregon Health Authority Office of Equity and
Inclusion to develop meaningful baseline data on health disparities. The Community Health
Improvement Plan will identify the findings of the Community Health Assessment and the method for
prioritizing health disparities for remedy. The Community Health Assessment and Community Health
Improvement Plan will be conducted so that they are transparent and public in both process and
outcomes. Each LCAC will provide a copy of the Community Health Improvement Plan, and annual
updates to the Community Health Improvement Plan, to their RCAC representative. After collecting
and consolidating data from each LCAC, EOCCO will submit one Community Health Improvement Plan,
and annual updates to the Health Improvement Plan that reflects the collective needs of each EOCCO
County to the Oregon Health Authority beginning not later than June 30, 2014.

1. Each LCAC must partner with their local public health authority, local mental health authority and
hospital systems to develop a shared Community Health Assessment process, including conducting
the assessment and development of the resulting Community Health Improvement Plan.

2. LCACs must work with EOCCO, to identify the components of the Community Health Assessment.
LCACs are encouraged to partner with their local public health authority, hospital system, type B
Area Agency on Aging, APD field office and local mental health authority, using existing resources
when available and avoiding duplication where practicable.

3. In developing and maintaining a health assessment, LCACs must meaningfully and systematically
engage representatives of critical populations and community stakeholders to create a plan for
addressing community health needs that build on community resources and skills and emphasizes
innovation including but not limited to the following:

(a) Emphasis on disproportionate, unmet, health-related need;

(b) Emphasis on primary prevention;
LCAC Charter Final 04-22-13 page | 3

1-5



(c) Building a seamless continuum of care;
(d) Building community capacity;
(e) Emphasis on collaborative governance of community benefit.

4. The LCAC requirements for conducting a Community Health Assessment and Community Health
Improvement Plan will be met if they substantially meet the community health needs assessment
requirement of the federal Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act, 2010 Section 9007 and the
Community Health Assessment and Community Health Improvement Plan requirements for local
health departments of the Public Health Accreditation Board, and worked with the Area Agency on
Aging and local mental health authority.

5. The LCAC’s will oversee the Community Health Assessment and recommend to the RCAC a
Community Health Improvement Plan to serve as a strategic population health and health care
system service plan for the communities served by the LCAC. The LCAC must annually publish a
report on the progress of the Community Health Improvement Plan.

6. The plan recommended by the LCAC must describe the scope of the activities, services and
responsibilities that the LCAC will consider upon implementation. The activities, services and
responsibilities defined in the plan may include, but are not limited to:

(a) Findings from the various Community Health Assessments made available by the Oregon Health
Authority to each LCAC;

(b) Additional findings on health needs and health disparities from community partners or previous
assessments;

(c) Analysis and development of public and private resources, capacities and metrics based on
ongoing Community Health Assessment activities and population health priorities;

(d) Description of how the Community Health Assessment and Community Health Improvement
Plan support the development, implementation, and evaluation of patient centered primary
care approaches;

(e) Description of how Health Systems Transformation objectives are addressed in the Community
Health Assessment and Community Health Improvement Plan;

(f) System design issues and solutions;

(g) Outcome and Quality Improvement plans and results;

(h) Integration of service delivery approaches and outcomes; and
(i) Workforce development approaches and outcomes.

7. LCACs and EOCCO participating providers must work together to develop best practices of
culturally and linguistically appropriate care and service delivery to eliminate health disparities and
improve member health and well-being.

8. Through their Community Health Assessment and Community Health Improvement Plan, LCACs will
identify health disparities associated with race, ethnicity, language, health literacy, age, disability,
gender, sexual orientation, behavioral health status, geography, or other factors in their service
areas such as type of living setting, including but not limited to home, independent support living,
adult foster home or homeless. LCACs will collect and maintain data on race, ethnicity and primary

LCAC Charter Final 04-22-13 page | 4

1-9



10.

language for all members on an ongoing basis in accordance with standards established jointly by
the Oregon Health Authority and the Department of Human Services. LCACs will track and report
on any quality measure by these demographic factors and will develop, implement, and evaluate
strategies to improve health equity among members. LCAC’s will provide this information to
EOCCO, which it will make available by posting on the web.

Each LCAC will develop and review and update its Community Health Assessment and Community
Health Improvement Plan every three years to ensure the provision of all medically appropriate
covered coordinated care services, including urgent care and emergency services, preventive,
community support and ancillary services, in those categories of services included in EOCCO’s
contract with the Oregon Health Authority.

Should there be more than one Coordinate Care Organization in a community, the LCAC and their
community partners may work together to develop one shared Community Health Assessment and
one shared Community Health Improvement Plan.

LCAC Charter Final 04-22-13 page | 5



Morrow County Court
February 25, 2015

Heppner, Oregon

Finance Office Conference Room
Morrow County Community Advisory Council (CAC) Membership Appointment Recommendation to the
County Court Ms. Smith explained the County Court appoints members to the CAC and the Eastern
QOregon Community Care Organization (EOCCO) Board also gives its blessing. The Court approved a list
of agencies on January 16, 2013, but we’ve had multiple changes in representatives of those entities, as
well as additions of new agencies. The Local CAC recentiy reviewed its charter, which states 51% of the
membership should be comprised of consumers or agencies representing consumers. We'd like the
reappointment of the initial agencies, with the addition of the new agencies and unlimited terms be
specified. in order for consumers to be reimbursed for expenses, they need to be specifically named.
Dan Daltoso, who already sits on the CAC as a representative of Umatilla Morrow Head Start, Inc.,
agreed to represent consumers because his children are on the Oregon Health Plan. He is not
requesting reimbursement Ms. Smith noted. Amy Sandy is willing to be a Consumer Representative and
Donna Eppenbach will be a Community Representative.

Commissioner Rea moved to approve the following Morrow County Community Advisory Council
Membership Appointment Recommendations and to establish unfimited terms:

Commissioner Russell seconded. Unanimous approval.

1. Morrow County Court 12. Morrow County Community Health
2. Good Shepherd Pharmacy Improvement Partnership (CHIP)
3. Morrow County Health District 13. Morrow County School District

4. Morrow County Public Health 14. lone School District

5. Columbia River Community Health 15. Morrow County Veterans

Services

16. Veterans Administration

6. Community Counseling Solutions
17. Community Representative:

7. Advantage Dental
Donna Eppenbach

8. Murray’s Drug
18. Oregon Child Development Coalition

9. Morrow County Department of Human '
Services (DHS) 19. Consumer Representatives:

10. DHS - State of Oregon — Administration CiBRIRaIEsD

11. Umatilla Morrow Head Start, Inc. Amy Sandy



AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET ltem #
Morrow County Board of Commissioners C) C/
(Page 1 of 2)

This document must be completed for each agenda item submitted for consideration by the Board of
Commissioners.

Staff Contact: Sheree Smith Phone Number (Ext): 5215

Department: Health Requested Agenda Date: 4/12/17

Person Attending BOC Meeting

(REQUIRED):Sheree

Short Title of Agenda Item: Requested increase in FTE of Recently Hired RN to 0.8 FTE

This Item Involves: (Check all that apply for this meeting.)

[[] Order or Resolution Appointments
[] Ordinance/Public Hearing: Update on Project/Committee
[] 1st Reading [ ]2nd Reading Discussion Only
[_] Public Comment Anticipated: Discussion & Action

Estimated Time: Estimated Time:
[[] Document Recording Required Department Report
[ ] Contract/Agreement Other: Increase RN position FTE to 0.8

effective immediately

(R

] N/A For Contracts and Agreements Only
Contractor/Entity:

Contractor/Entity Address:

Effective Dates — From: Through:
Total Contract Amount: Budget Line:

Does the contract amount exceed $5,000? [ ] Yes [ ] No
If Yes, Attach Purchase Pre-Authorization Request if Applicable

Reviewed By:
Sheree Smith 4/7/17 Department Head Required for all BOC meetings
ATE
% 4/ ff/? Admin. Officer/BOC Office Required for all BOC meetings
=" DATE 1'"
\ County Counsel Required for all legal documents
; DATE
.\\h\\\_.vu. \\ ) "\\ \u\\ﬂ Finance Office Required for all contracts; Other
% i\ ' paTE items as appropriate.
4/lo Human Resources If appropriate

Note: All entities must sign documents before they are presented to the Board of Commissioners.
Original documents are preferred. Agenda requests, including this completed form and supporting
documents, must be received by the Board’s office by Noon on the Friday prior to the Board of
Commissioners Wednesday meeting. County Counsel and Finance review is required for all contracts.



AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET

Morrow County Board of Commissioners
(Page 2 of 2)

1. TITLE OF AGENDA ITEM:
Change in FTE of Recently Hired RN to 0.8 FTE effective immediately.

2. ISSUES, BACKGROUND, AND DISCUSSION:

Position previously advertised as 0.6 RN, recently hired very experienced RN to fulfill this capacity. Current
job duties and responsibilities within the School. Public Health Director feels we could better serve the schools
at a 2 day capacity, add vacant Part Time position of 0.4 FTE Health Educator representative of 0.8 FTE

Prior to separating the Health Educator job duties and responsibilities from the CD Coordinator, it was paid at a
Range #13. The newly created Part Time position was identified as Part Time at 19 hrs/wk. Funding did not
allow for benefits if employed at half time or more.

3. OPTIONS:

Plan to further review and analyze funding levels to demonstrate support for this position to be at a Full Time
level, to be presented to the Budget Committee with an anticipated effective date of July 1%, 2017.

4. FISCAL IMPACT:

No change in requested funding from County general funds as program funds available in addition to Morrow
County School District funds support this level of FTE.

5. STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:
Combine vacant FTE representing Health Educator with currently employed Nurse position.

6. SUGGESTED ACTION(S) / MOTION(S):
Request Motion to increase FTE of this RN position to 0.8 FTE

e Attach additional background documentation as needed. - See attached Email and Job Description

Routing: Original or copies of signed contract or document should be sent to the following:

1 Clerk (Original for recording) UJ Finance Department (Copy for file)
1 Board of Commissioners (Copy for file) X Department — For distribution
L1 Other

Rev: 3/23/17




Roberta Lutcher

e E——
From: Sheree Smith
Sent: Friday, April 07, 2017 2:20 PM
To: Roberta Lutcher; Jerry Sorte
Subject: Request to Increase FTE of New Hire Nurse from 0.6 to 0.8 FTE
Attachments: Agenda Sheet Change in RN FTE.docx; PH - Nurse Case Manager - Comm Health Edc

Job Descrip 2-2017.doc

Roberta

Request for approval to increase FTE for newly hired Nurse from 0.6 FTE to 0.8 FTE. Job duties and responsibilities will be
shared from allocated as 2 days for the Morrow County School District and 2 days for Community Education (to include
Tobacco Prevention Education).

Job Description attached for Commissioner Review.
Kate has documentation of revenue funds to support this position at 0.8 FTE. Additional analysis of funding will be

accomplished in preparation to the Budget Committee to demonstrate adequate support for an anticipated request to
increase the position to 1 FTE effective 7/1/17.

Thanks,
-Sheree



JOB DESCRIPTION

Date Prepared: February 2017

Position Title: Nurse Case Manager/Community Health Educator
Department: Public Health

Supervisor: Public Health Director

Position Overview: The Nurse Case Manager/Community Health Educator position
receives administrative direction and supports and direct and indirect supervision by the
Public Health Director. The overall goal is to strengthen the local health and human
service system by developing a Morrow County interdisciplinary care coordination
team to provide wraparound services and case management to underserved children age
0-18 and pregnant women. The desired outcome is to create a system to promote
positive holistic health, growth and functioning within the community by providing
early identification through screening with intervention as appropriate. The Nurse/Case
Manager will accomplish work in conjunction with a Care Coordinator. High risk
individuals that have not had access to adequate health care services prior to health care
transformation will be identified through interaction with county public health, schools,
community partners and healthcare and social service practitioners or clinicians. The
individuals will then be referred to the Morrow County wraparound Care Team staff
(Nurse/Case Manager or Care Coordinator) as part of a system to promote positive
holistic health, growth and functioning within the community by providing early
identification through screening with intervention as appropriate. This position may
occasionally require overnight travel for trainings and meetings, so work schedule
flexibility is necessary. May be exposed to communicable diseases.

Duties also include the establishment and maintenance of a tobacco prevention
program. This program includes: providing outreach, information and technical
assistance on reduction of tobacco use and exposure to the community; research
regarding risks and effective reduction measures; maintain and/or build tobacco
coalition; writing a prevention plan; and participation of community health
development projects and events. Serves to protect and improve the health of Morrow
County residents through prevention, education, public information, referral and
coordination as needed.

Working Environment: Work is accomplished from Morrow County Health
Department offices, Morrow County schools, within the community, in the home
And in many facilities outside the office, such as Chamber of Commerce, Business
sites, schools, churches, other public agencies and addressing community groups in a
variety of locations. The public forums may not be welcoming. There are substantial
in-county travel requirements and some out-of-county including overnight travel and
some meetings on weekends and evenings.

PH - Nurse Case Manager/Community Health Educator
February 2017 Page 115



Qualifications:

1.

.

NS

Education - Bachelor of Science in Nursing preferred. A Bachelor’s Degree from
an accredited institution in Social Services, Human Services, or related field in a
social service related setting may also be considered.

Valid Registered Nurse license from the Oregon State Board of Nursing required.
Experience - Two years of experience working with children and families in a
public health or community health setting including knowledge of maternal child
health, immunizations, family planning and communicable disease, or in a social
service related setting. Additionally, knowledge regarding applying the principles
of health education and promotion, public relations, and community development.
Familiarity with agencies and services available in the community to provide
support to children and families. Knowledge of health care administration,
addiction prevention and treatment, group dynamics, social marketing and
formation of local government ordinances.

Possess a valid Oregon Drivers’ license with satisfactory driving record.

Possess excellent interpersonal, verbal and written skills.

Equipment Used - Telephone, mobile phone, radio, satellite pager, calculator,
personal computer, Power Point, copy machine, postage meter, fax machine,
scales, measure board, blood pressure cuff, stethoscope, otoscope, thermometer,
syringes, tourniquet, clinical equipment, personal protective equipment and
automobile.

8. Certification: Basic Life Support training
9.

Bilingual English/Spanish preferred

Physical Job Requirements:

1.

ARl

8.
9.

Stand and walk for 30 minutes continuously.

Sit in adult chairs for 60 minutes continuously.

Lift and carry 25 - 30 pounds occasionally.

Reach to shoulder height occasionally.

Climb up and down stairs.

Hear and see within normal ranges.

Work indoors in temperatures between 60 and 90 degrees and outside in
temperatures between 25 and 95 degrees.

Possess the finger dexterity for writing, typing, and manipulating toys
Must have the ability to drive a vehicle.

Mental Requirements:

1.

2.
3.
4.

Ability to read, write and comprehend English in order to read Oregon Revised
Statutes and program manuals and complete state mandated reports.

Ability to perform basic math functions.

Ability to obtain an Oregon Drivers License.

Regular and predictable attendance.

PH - Nurse Case Manager/Community Health Educator

February 2017 Page 215



Job Duty Outline:

1. Ability to learn and implement the procedures and practices of the Public Health
Department.

2. Ability to effectively use oral and written communication in the performance of
duties and responsibilities. The ability to explain complex issues in situations
which are sometimes adversarial.

3. Develop and utilize program procedures and protocols to coordinate agency and
school efforts for children and families.

4. Create a Directory of community resources and services to be distributed to the
Community Care Team.

5. Identify client screening tools and survey instruments to be adopted by the Care
Team.

6. Create a Partner Guide to Referral and Participation in the Morrow County Care

Team to be distributed to partner agencies and health Care Providers.

Seek, enroll and coordinate services to children/families identified to be at risk.

Must be able to function independently and use ethical judgment in making

decisions.

9. Ability to work effectively with families and individuals of diverse backgrounds
(including teen parents; families with mental health, substance abuse, or domestic
violence concerns).

10. Ability to establish trusting relationships. Ensure an effective program by
managing available resources through planning, organizing, record keeping, and
assessment.

11. Display time management skills needed to maintain accurate, legible, and timely
documentation of case management duties and responsibilities.

12. Connect families with community resources and support self-advocacy across
systems.

13. Complete required training as directed by the Public Health Director.

14. Willingness to flex schedule with occasional overnight travel as needed to
accommodate training participation.

15. Serve as a cohesive member of the team, participate in problem solving and
promote innovation.

16. Act as a universal referral point for schools and community social services
agencies.

17. Coordinate and schedule and facilitate Care Team meetings in each school.

18. Track and evaluate outcome of CARE Team meetings.

19. Time will be split between program representation, program coordination, and
program oversight.

20. Program Representation

Review referral to determine agency representation needed.

Determine referral applicability to program parameters.

Schedule Care Team meetings for appropriate referrals.

Respond to questions and requests for information regarding wraparound

services.

Present information for community partners, as needed.

Develop reports for community agencies, as needed.

G

cow»

H |

PH — Nurse Case Manager/Community Health Educator
February 2017 Page 3|5



G. Publicize wraparound system description and potential services offered.

21. Program Coordination
A. Serve as central point of contact for all members involved with wraparound

services

Have frequent contact and receive input and program/case direction from Care
Team members and referred families.

Schedule base team meetings.

Determine which cases will be staffed/restaffed.

Set weekly agenda for each school.

Identify resources.

Contact appropriate agencies.

Coordinate, attend, and facilitate base team meetings.
Ensure confidentiality requirements are explained and met.
Coordinate with the wraparound Governance Team.
Identify action items from the Care Team meetings.

Set responsible person for each action and due date.

. Communicate unexpected case developments with CARE Team.

. Contact referral source to update on actions taken.

22. Program Oversight
A. Ensure services related to case plans are occurring.

B. System of Care and health status data reviewed, findings summarized and
program changes recommended through Plan, Do, Study, Act model of
planning.

Contact persons in charge of actions.

Review cases to ensure that action items are completed.

Oversight of family responsibilities.

Maintain and update data base to track referrals.

Advocates development of community resources.

Create quarterly and annual reports of progress.

23. Serve as a cohesive member of the team, participate in problem solving and
promote innovation.

24. Possess knowledge and ability needed to provide services and counseling to
clients presenting for immunizations, family planning, including pregnancy, or
communicable disease issues.

25. Ability to perform basic lab functions for proper collection, handling and
submission of specimens.

26. Possess knowledge and abilities necessary to provide coverage for clinics as
needed and participate in off-site clinic services provided within the community.

27. Ability to represent the County, Public Health Department and Tobacco Coalition
within the community and at state or regional meetings including the ability to
speak in public and make presentations for a wide variety of public meetings.

28. Facilitation of Community Partnerships: Accomplish movement toward tobacco
free communities. Provide outreach, information (English and Spanish) and
technical assistance:

a. Gives presentations to local groups of all types

b. Respond to requests for information from individuals, agencies, business’

=

ZEE RS TmQEEOO

QT EUO

PH - Nurse Case Manager/Community Health Educator
February 2017 Page 4|5



29.

30.

31.

32.

33.
34.
35.

36.
37.

38.

and groups
C. Provides technical assistance to other health care providers and/or other
professionals, agencies, business’ and groups dealing with tobacco related
issues
Creating Tobacco — Free Environments: Promote the adoption of Tobacco
policies, including voluntary policies in schools, workplaces and public places.
Support local Tobacco free ordinances and the Oregon Indoor Clean Air Act.
Countering pro-Tobacco influences: reduce the promotion of Tobacco in and
within the community. Reduce youth access to Tobacco products.
Promoting Quitting among Adults and Youths: Integrate the promotion of the
Oregon Tobacco Quit Line into other Tobacco control activities.
Reducing the burden of Tobacco related Chronic Disease; address Tobacco use
reduction strategies in the broader context of Chronic Disease and other risk
factors for Tobacco use including Cancer, Asthma, Cardiovascular Disease,
Diabetes, Arthritis and Stroke.
Submit Program Plans and reports as required.
Participate in all required meetings and conference calls
Coordinates with other prevention activities:

a. Identify other prevention efforts being offered in the communities
1. Referral for health screening as needed
b. Attend meetings of other community groups focused on similar goals.

1. Coordinate activities when appropriate
Monitor expenditures to assure they stay within budget limitations
Ability to contribute to a positive work environment, including developing
positive working relationships with coalition members, co-workers and the public.
Perform other duties as assigned.

PH - Nurse Case Manager/Community Health Educator

February 2017 Page 5|5



Human Resources

P.O. Box 788 « Heppner OR 97836 Karen Wollff
(541) 676-5620 Human Resources Director
kwolff@co.morrow.or.us

To: Morrow County Board of Commissioners [A)
From: Karen Wolff, Human Resources Director 4‘/\“\

Date:  April 10,2017

Re: Public Health FTE Request

In December, Public Health received permission to change the Community Health Educator/Communicable
Disease Coordinator position.

December 7, 2016

Public Health Position Changes

Karen Wolff, Human Resources Director

Ms. Wolff reminded the Court that Ms. Smith outlined her request at the November 30" Long Range Planning Meeting
and they voiced their support of her proposal. Ms. Wolff reviewed the process and steps necessary to make both
proposals possible:

1. Change the current Tobacco Education/Communicable Disease Coordinator to a Communicable Disease
Coordinator/Region 9 Healthcare Preparedness Program Coordinator/Medical Reserve Corps Eastern Oregon
Regional Coordinator. Ms. Wolff explained the change will not impact the budget or pay range, according to
her JobMeas™ comparison.

2. Creatc the new position of Community Health Educator.

Based on the recommendation of the Human Resources Director, Commissioner Russell moved to approve the updated
Job description and change the job title from Tobacco Educator/Communicable Disease Coordinator to Communicable
Disease Coordinator/Region 9 Healthcare Preparedness Program Coordinator/Medical Reserve C orps Eastern Oregon
Regional Coordinator. Commissioner Rea seconded. Unanimous approval.

Commissioner Russell moved to approve the creation of the new Community Health Educator position in the Public

Health Department as outlined in the accompanying job description; assign it to Pay Range 6 of the General Employee
Wage Scale; and authorize 19 total hours per week. Commissioner Rea seconded. Unanimous approval.

Since this time, the Community Health Educator position has not been filled, and thercfore, the CD
Coord./Reg 9 Coord./Med Reserve Coord position has not been implemented.

Public Health would like to combine a current 0.6 FTE RN with the Community Health Educator.

Current: Comm. Health Ed/Communicable Disease Coord Pay Range 13
Approved: Comm. Health Ed as a stand-alone position Pay Range 6
Proposed: RN/Comm Health Ed Pay Range 16

The proposal is to increase the current part-time RN to 0.8 FTE, with 0.4 FTE as the Nurse Case Manager
and 0.4 FTE as the Community Health Educator.

oo BT S Ne ] ( (- R 1 . 3 [ 1l ) iy Y oy e
Apvil 2017 Public Health FTE Reauest ayge 12



When the Community Health Educator was ¢valuated as a stand-alone position, it was placed on Pay Range
6. It has previously been combined with the CD Coordinator position and was paid on Pay Range 13.
Combining the Community Health Educator with the Nurse Case Manager will not change the Pay Range
evaluation, which will remain at Pay Range 16.

Board of Commissioners Options:
A. Approve combining the Community Health Educator with the Nurse Case Manager.

1.
2.
3.

4.

Approve the new Job Description

Assign the Pay Range

Approve the FTE request of 0.8 FTE with 0.4 FTE as Nurse Case Manager and 0.4 FTE as
Community Health Educator.

Assign an effective date. (I would suggest no earlier than April 17, 2017 to allow time for the
appropriate paperwork to be completed.)

B. Leave the Community Health Educator as a stand-alone 0.475 FTE position.
C. Something else?

As always, I am available if you have any questions regarding this request from Public Health.



FY2017/20108 Health Department - FTE Ask

Fund Department Current FTE Current FY 2016-2017 Proposed FY 2017-2018 increase/Decrease
Pay Increase
Title Range Current "Ask" el Salary Benefits Total Salary Benefits Total Salary Benefits Total
General - #101 Public Health - #114 RN/Comm Health Educator  |GE 16/A 0.6 0.2 0.8 $30,813 | $21,351 [ $52,164 | $42,316 | $ 29,345 |S 71,660 S 11,503 | $ 7.994 | $ 19,496
Tobacco Grant*
Total 0.6 0.2 0.8 S 11,503 $ 7,934 $ 19,496

*Tobacco FTE .40 was approved by County Court at o pay range of 6A. The annual salary would have been $12,989 plus benefits of $13,698.




od.

AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET

Morrow County Board of Commissioners
(Page 1 of 2)

This document must be completed for each agenda item submitted for consideration by the Board of
Commissioners.

Staff Contact: Kate Knop Phone Number (Ext):5302
Department: Finance Requested Agenda Date: 4/12/17
Person Attending BOC Meeting: Kate Knop

Short Title of Agenda Item: Budget Appropriation Transfer Request & Resolution

This Item Involves: (Check all that apply for this meeting.)
DX Order or Resolution Appointments
[] Ordinance/Public Hearing: Update on Project/Committee
[] 1st Reading []2nd Reading Discussion Only
[[] Public Comment Anticipated: Discussion & Action

U oo

Estimated Time: Estimated Time:
[[] Document Recording Required Department Report
[] Contract/Agreement Other:
[]Na For Contracts and Agreements Only
Contractor/Entity:
Contractor/Entity Address:
Effective Dates — From: Through:
Total Contract Amount: Budget Line:

Does the contract amount exceed $5,000? [_] Yes [ | No
If Yes, Attach Purchase Pre-Authorization Request if Applicable

Yy 7

Department Head Required for all BOC meetings

DATE
?é/ M ‘{“7"(7 Admin. Officer/BOC Office Required for all BOC meetings
' DATE
\ County Counsel Required for all legal documents
DATE
\\QX\\ T v \ N l\\'}\ \1 Finance Office Required for all contracts; Other
\ \ V dare items as appropriate, TITLE OF

Rev: 3/23/17




AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET

Morrow County Board of Commissioners
(Page 2 of 2)

1. TITLE OF AGENDA ITEM: Budget Appropriation Transfer Request & Resolution

2. ISSUES, BACKGROUND, AND DISCUSSION: The Assessor’s office has a need to order 4 Surface Pro
tablets that exceeds the current year’s fixed asset threshold of greater than $1,000. The adopted FY 2016-
2017 budget has appropriations available in the material & services to cover the purchase but not in capital
outlay.

3. OPTIONS: A. Sign resolution, B. Request changes, or C. Decide more information is needed.

4. FISCAL IMPACT: Move appropriation authority from Assessor’s budget in material & Services to Capital
outlay in the amount of $5,000.

5. STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: Request signing of resolution.

6. SUGGESTED ACTION(S) / MOTION(S):

e Attach additional background documentation as needed.

Routing: Original or copies of signed contract or document should be sent to the following:

(1 Clerk (Original for recording) 0 Finance Department (Copy for file)
[1 Board of Commissioners (Copy for file) O Department — For distribution
O Other

Rev: 3/23/17



BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS FOR
MORROW COUNTY, OREGON

IN THE MATTER OF
TRANSFERRING APPROPRIATIONS
WITHIN THE MORROW COUNTY
GENERAL FUND, PURSUANT TO
ORS 294.463(1)

RESOLUTION NO. R-2017-11

A T g

WHEREAS, ORS 294.463(1) allows the governing body of a municipal
corporation to transfer appropriations within a fund when authorized by ordinance or
resolution of the governing body of a municipal corporation; and

WHEREAS, ORS 294.463(2) allows for contingency appropriation transfers
made by resolution (versus supplemental budget) up to an aggregate of 15% of total fund
appropriations; and

WHEREAS, the Morrow County General Fund, Assessor’s Department, Capital
" Outlay, will be incurring expenditures that meet the minimum fixed asset threshold, it is
necessary to transfer appropriations to accomplish this.

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved that the Morrow County Board of
Commissioners hereby authorizes the following intra-fund transfer within the Morrow
County General Fund.

Revenues &
Appropriations

Morrow County — General Assessor’s Department #101-103

Capital Outlay
#4402 — Office Equipment $ 5,000

Material & Services
#3718 — Assessment & Taxation Program Maintenance $ (5,000)

RESOLUTION NO. R-2017-11 Page 1 of 2



Dated this 12% day of April, 2017.

MORROW COUNTY BOARD OF
COMMISSIONERS
MORROW COUNTY, OREGON

Melissa Lindsay, Chair

Don Russell, Commissioner/Vice Chair

Jim Doherty, Commissioner

Attest;

Bobbi Childers, County Clerk

Approved as to Form:

Morrow County Counsel

RESOLUTION NO. R-2017-11 Page 2 of 2



AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET liem:

Morrow County Board of Commissioners (0 &
(Page 1 of 2)

This document must be completed for each agenda item submitted for consideration by the Board of
Commissioners.

Staff Contact: Phone Number (Ext):

Department: Requested Agenda Date:

Person Attending BOC Meeting (REQUIRED):

Short Title of Agenda Item: Resolution R-2017-9 — Approving agreement between the sponsors of the CREZ
and VaData Inc.

This Item Involves: (Check all that apply for this meeting.)
Order or Resolution Appointments
[] Ordinance/Public Hearing: Update on Project/Committee
[] 1st Reading [ ] 2nd Reading Discussion Only
[] Public Comment Anticipated: Discussion & Action
Estimated Time: Estimated Time: 10 Minutes

L0 KOO

[] Document Recording Required Department Report
[] Contract/Agreement Other:
] NA For Contracts and Agreements Only
Contractor/Entity:
Contractor/Entity Address:
Effective Dates — From: Through:
Total Contract Amount: Budget Line:

Does the contract amount exceed $5,0002 [ ] Yes [ ] No
If Yes, Attach Purchase Pre-Authorization Request if Applicable

Reviewed By:
Department Head Required for all BOC meetings
DATE
JS/rl 4-10-17 Admin. Officer/BOC Office Required for all BOC meetings
DATE
Justin Nelson 4-7-17 County Counsel Required for all legal documents
DATE
Finance Office Required for all contracts; Other
DATE items as appropriate.
Human Resources If appropriate
DATE

Note: All entities must sign documents before they are presented to the Board of Commissioners.
Original documents are preferred. Agenda requests, including this completed form and supporting
documents, must be received by the Board’s office by Noon on the Friday prior to the Board of
Commissioners Wednesday meeting. County Counsel and Finance review is required for all contracts.



AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET

Morrow County Board of Commissioners
(Page 2 of 2)

1. TITLE OF AGENDA ITEM: Resolution No. R-2017-9 — Approving an agreement between the sponsors of
the CREZ and VaData Inc.

2. ISSUES. BACKGROUND, AND DISCUSSION:

Carla McLane, acting as Manager of the CREZ, requested the representatives of the sponsor entities present the
resolution to their respective entities for consideration. The company involved is not requesting a new non-
disclosure agreement (NDA), however, the Board can choose to update the NDA. The City of Boardman and
the Port of Morrow chose not to update their NDAs. According to laws pertaining to enterprise zones, the
parties are required to enter into an agreement within 30 days of signing the resolutions. Ms. McLane asked
that the signing of the resolution not be held up if an updated NDA is requested.

3. OPTIONS:
1. Sign the resolution as presented

2. Request changes to the resolution

3. Opt not to sign the resolution

4. FISCAL IMPACT:

If the Board chooses not to sign, it would make the agreement invalid, thereby impacting the negotiated
discretionary payments and force the company into a tax paying situation.

5. STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:
Sign Resolution No. R-2017-9

6. SUGGESTED ACTION(S) / MOTION(S):

Move to approve Resolution No. R-2017-9 — In the matter of approving an agreement between the sponsors
of the Columbia River Enterprise Zone and VaData Inc.

e Attach additional background documentation as needed.

Routing: Original or copies of signed contract or document should be sent to the following:

Clerk (Original for recording) 0] Finance Department (Copy for file)
X  Board of Commissioners (Copy for file) X Department — For distribution

[ Other

Rev: 3/23/17



BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
FOR MORROW COUNTY, OREGON

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING
AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE
SPONSORS OF THE COLUMBIA
RIVER ENTERPRISE ZONE AND
VA DATA INC.

RESOLUTION NO. R-2017-9

S’ N’ N’ N’ N’

WHEREAS, Morrow County, the Port of Morrow and the City of Boardman are
Sponsors of the Columbia River Enterprise Zone (II); and

WHEREAS, the Columbia River Enterprise Zone (I) was originally established in 1998
and the Columbia River Enterprise Zone (II) was reauthorized in 2009; and

WHEREAS, the Columbia River Enterprise Zone (II) is governed by an
Intergovernmental Agreement which sets forth governance and authorizes the Columbia River
Enterprise Zone II Board to negotiate and enter into Agreements on behalf of the Sponsoring
Entities; and

WHEREAS, the Columbia River Enterprise Zone (II) Board has negotiated with VA
DATA INC. for extended abatement under the Standard Enterprise Zone requirements outlined
in Oregon Administrative Rule Chapter 123 Division 674; and

WHEREAS, the Columbia River Enterprise Zone (II) Board and Manager have executed
the Agreement; and

WHEREAS, VA DATA INC. has submitted the necessary application to the Columbia
River Enterprise Zone Manager;

THE MORROW COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS RESOLVES AS
FOLLOWS:

To support the Agreement as negotiated by the Columbia River Enterprise Zone (II)

Board with VA DATA INC. by signing this statutorily required Resolution and to continue to
abide by the Non Disclosure Agreement previously entered into.

Resolution No. R-2017-9 Page 1 of 2



This Resolution shall be effective immediately.

Dated this 12th day of April, 2017.

MORROW COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
MORROW COUNTY, OREGON

Melissa Lindsay, Chair

Jim Doherty, Commissioner

Don Russell, Commissioner/ Vice Chair

Attest:

Bobbi Childers, County Clerk

Approved as to Form:

Morrow County Counsel

Resolution No. R-2017-9 Page 2 of 2



AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET

Morrow County Board of Commissioners

(Page 1 of 2)

Item #

bt

This document must be completed for each agenda item submitted for consideration by the Board of

Commissioners.

Staff Contact: Richard Tovey
Department: County Counsel

Phone Number (Ext): 541-676-5626
Requested Agenda Date: 4-13-2017

Person Attending BOC Meeting (REQUIRED):

Richard Tovey
Short Title of Agenda Item: Equity Fund Loan Review Committee
Memo
This Item Involves: (Check all that apply for this meeting.)
[[] Order or Resolution [] Appointments
[] Ordinance/Public Hearing: []1 Update on Project/Committee
[] 1stReading [ ] 2nd Reading X Discussion Only
[] Public Comment Anticipated: [] Discussion & Action
Estimated Time: Estimated Time:
[_] Document Recording Required [] Department Report
[] Contract/Agreement [] Other:
[] N/A For Contracts and Agreements Only
Contractor/Entity:

Contractor/Entity Address:
Effective Dates — From:
Total Contract Amount:

Through:
Budget Line:

Does the contract amount exceed $5,000? [ | Yes [ ] No

If Yes, Attach Purchase Pre-Authorization Request if Applicable

Department Head

Admin. Officer/BOC Office

County Counsel

Finance Office

Human Resources

Reviewed By:
DATE
0o/ U117
v ' DAYE
Richard Tovey 4-07-2017
DATE
DATE
DATE

Required for all BOC meetings
Required for all BOC meetings
Required for all legal documents

Required for all contracts; Other
items as appropriate.

If appropriate

Note: All entities must sign documents before they are presented to the Board of Commissioners.
Original documents are preferred. Agenda requests, including this completed form and supporting
documents, must be received by the Board’s office by Noon on the Friday prior to the Board of
Commissioners Wednesday meeting. County Counsel and Finance review is required for all contracts.




AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET

Morrow County Board of Commissioners
(Page 2 of 2)

1. TITLE OF AGENDA ITEM: Equity Fund Loan Review Committee Public Meeting

2. ISSUES, BACKGROUND, AND DISCUSSION:
Should Equity Fund Loan Review Committee meetings be public meetings?

3. OPTIONS:

4. FISCAL IMPACT:

5. STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:

6. SUGGESTED ACTION(S) / MOTION(S):

e Attach additional background documentation as needed.

Routing: Original or copies of signed contract or document should be sent to the following:

0 Clerk (Original for recording) U Finance Department (Copy for file)
[0 Board of Commissioners (Copy for file) ] Department — For distribution

] Other

Rev: 3/23/17




Office of the County Counsel

P.O. Box 664, Heppner, Oregon 97836 * Justin Nelson: County Counsel
Q meswsl | Telephone: (541) 676-5626 Richard Tovey: County Counsel
ON& Facsimile: (541) 676-5660

April 7, 2017

TO: Morrow County Board of Commissioner
Morrow County Equity Fund Loan Review Committee
FROM: Richard Tovey, County Counsel
RE: MORROW COUNTY EQUITY FUND LOAN REVIEW COMMITTEE
QUESTION:

Are the Morrow County Equity Fund Loan Review Committee meetings public and if so may the
committee’s review of sensitive financial data in the loan application be done in an executive session?

SHORT ANSWER:

Morrow County Equity Fund Committee meetings are public meetings and should be noticed and conducted
accordingly. The discussion of financial statements and other specific information or records may be heard
in an executive session with any decisions being made outside of the executive session.

LEGAL ANALYSIS:
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

The Morrow County Court established policies and procedures for the Morrow County Equity fund
in May of 2003 in a document titled Morrow County Equity Fund Policies and Procedures. The policies
and procedures set guidelines on how the fund was to be used and established a loan review committee to
assist the Court in awarding loans to applicants to the fund. In the introduction to the policies and
procedures it states, “It will be the duty of the Loan Review Committee (Committee) to determine eligibility
and propose a loan to the Morrow County Court (Court) for final approval that is within the fund
guidelines.” The policies and procedures outlined how the loan review committee was to be appointed, the
duties of the committee, and the membership of the committee in multiple sections. Under Financing
Policies subsection A, paragraph 9 it states: “A Loan Review Committee will be appointed by the Court to
provide an initial review and recommendation of all loan requests to the Court. The Committee will be
comprised of a representative of each of the two financial organizations in the county, those being Bank of
Eastern Oregon and Banner Bank, a member of the Willow Creek Valley Economic Development Group, an
at large member representing the interests of the cities of Boardman and Irrigon and the Morrow County
Finance Director.”

i1|Page



Under PART TWO: EQUITY FUND OPERATIONAL PROCEDURES subsection B, paragraph 1 it states:

B. LOAN REVIEW COMMITTEE
1. Organizational Structure
The Loan Review Committee will be appointed by the Court to provide an initial review and
recommendation of all loan requests to the Court. The Committee will be comprised of a
representative of each of the two financial organizations in the county, those being Bank of
Eastern Oregon and Banner Bank, a member of the Willow Creek Valley Economic
Development Group, an at large member representing the interests of the cities of Boardman
and Irrigon and the Morrow County Finance Director.

The duties of the committee are also established within Subsection B. In paragraph 2 it states the duties:

2. Duties
The duties of the Finance Committee will be as follows:
a. Review complete loan applications and establish if each loan request has sufficient
collateral, financial feasibility, and sound management.
b. Evaluate projects for economic impact. The following criteria will be used to determine if
the project will have a positive impact on the economy:
1. Provide value-added processing of local resource based commodities.
2. Provide for a diversification of the local economy in a sector not currently present
or by providing goods or services not locally available.
3. Provide employment opportunities to the local workforce and/or attract new
employees to the county.
4. Provide wages that are industry competitive in the regional market.
5. Provide the opportunity to export goods or services outside of Morrow County.
6. Provide for economic or community development consistent with local objectives.
c. Attend the Committee meeting and make a loan recommendation based on the committee's
findings. The committee can make the following decisions:
* Recommend approval with recommendation
* Recommend approval with recommendation and special conditions
* Table for additional information
» Recommend denial
d. Review loans with a default status and determine if foreclosure proceedings should begin.

The policies and procedures also set forth how the committee should meet when there is an application to
review. Subsection B, Paragraph 3 of Part Two states:

3. Committee Meetings
Committee meetings will be scheduled and held on a demand basis. Meeting dates will be
established by the committee, depending on the schedules of each member.

The policies and procedures determines the application requirements in Part Two of the document.
PART TWO: EQUITY FUND OPERATIONAL PROCEDURES
A LOAN APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS
1. Standard Loan Application Requirements
All loan applicants must complete GEODC's application form. Additional information required to
complete the application process includes the following:

2|Page



a. Personal financial statement
b. Information release form
c. Business plan
d. Historical financial information for last three years
e. Personal and business tax returns for three years
f. Twelve month cash flow projection
g. Current and proforma balance sheet
h. Resumes of key personnel

2. Additional loan application requirements (if applicable to the project)
a. Appraisals - will be required for land and building offered as collateral and they must be
less than six months old. This requirement may be waived if the applicant can verify the
value of the land and building in some other form (an alternative may be a real estate
valuation, prepared by a qualified person or tax assessed value).
b. Lease agreements - will be required for projects leasing property for the business. In
addition, copies of lease agreements are necessary if the applicant is or will be receiving
lease income on property involved in the project.
c. Buy/sell agreements - will be required if the project includes the purchase of property, an
existing business, or any other fixed asset that may be used as collateral.
d. Construction estimates - will be required if the project includes construction.
¢. Bank commitment letter - will be required for projects with bank financing.
f. Corporation papers - including articles of incorporation, by-laws, and certificate of good
standing form the Secretary of States office will be required.
g. Personal financial statements will be required for personal guarantee(s).
h. Corporate resolution - authorizing the corporation to borrow the loan funds and
designating specific officers as signatories.
i. Business licenses
j- Bonding

PUBLIC MEETINGS

The Oregon legislature established rules for public meetings in 1973. “The Oregon form of
government requires an informed public aware of the deliberations and decisions of governing bodies and
the information upon which such decisions were made. It is the intent of ORS 192.610 to 192.690 that
decisions of governing bodies be arrived at openly.” ORS 192.620. The goal is for the meetings of
governing bodies, at which decisions about the public’s business are made or discussed, are open to the
public. ORS 192.630 states: (1) All meetings of the governing body of a public body shall be open to the
public and all persons shall be permitted to attend any meeting except as otherwise provided by ORS
192.610 to 192.690. (2) A quorum of a governing body may not meet in private for the purpose of deciding
on or deliberating toward a decision on any matter except as otherwise provided by ORS 192.610 to
192.690.

ORS 192. 610 defines a governing body as the members of any public body which consists of two or
more members, with the authority to make decisions for or recommendations to a public body on policy or
administration. A public body is defined as a state, any regional council, county, city or district, or any
municipal or public corporation, or any board, department, commission, council, bureau, committee or
subcommittee or advisory group or any other agency thereof. “A body that has authority to make
recommendations to a public body on policy or administration is a governing body.” ORS 192.610(3). An
advisory body may be appointed by a state or local government agency or official. If that advisory body
does not exercise other governmental powers, it is a governing body only if its recommendations are made
to a “public body.”” Oregon Attorney General’s Public Records and Meeting Manuel, 11. Public Meetings
pg.133 (2014).

3|Page




EXECUTIVE SESSION

The legislature did recognize that there would be situations that the governing bodies would need to
discuss sensitive information that was not suitable to discuss in a public meeting. Executive sessions were
created to facilitate the need for private deliberations. Executive session means any meeting or part of a
meeting of a governing body which is closed to certain persons for deliberation on certain matters. ORS
192.610. Executive sessions are only permitted in certain matters that are set forth by ORS 192.660. The
governing body of a public body may hold an executive session to consider information or records that are
exempt by law from public inspection. ORS 192.660(2)(f). The executive session is for review and
deliberation of the information in the executive session. Final decisions or votes cannot be taken during the
executive session. No executive session may be held for the purpose of taking any final action or making
any final decision. ORS 192.660(6)

The rules for public records are found in ORS 192.410 to 192.505. ORS 192.502 provides a list of
records that are exempt from disclosure. ORS 192.502(17)(a) exempts:

The following records, communications and information submitted to... a county or city governing
body and any board, department, commission, council or agency thereof, by applicants for
investment funds, grants, loans, services or economic development moneys, support or assistance
including, but not limited to, those described in ORS 285A.224:

(A) Personal financial statements.

(B) Financial statements of applicants.

(C) Customer lists.

(D) Information of an applicant pertaining to litigation to which the applicant is a party if the
complaint has been filed, or if the complaint has not been filed, if the applicant shows that
such litigation is reasonably likely to occur; this exemption does not apply to litigation which
has been concluded, and nothing in this subparagraph shall limit any right or opportunity
granted by discovery or deposition statutes to a party to litigation or potential litigation.

(E) Production, sales and cost data.

(F) Marketing strategy information that relates to applicant’s plan to address specific markets
and applicant’s strategy regarding specific competitors.

CONCLUSION:

The Morrow County Equity Fund Loan Review Committee meets the definition of a governing body
as the committee is a body that has authority to make recommendations to a public body on policy or
administration and as such any meetings held by the committee are public meetings. As stated within the
policies and procedures of the Equity Fund the role of the committee is to provide an initial review,
determine eligibility and to propose or recommend the loan request to the Court. Therefore the meetings of
the Loan Review Committee are public meetings and the public meeting laws of ORS 192.610-690 apply
and should be followed.

As part of the committee duties to review of loan requests, the committee will be reviewing
information and records that contain sensitive personal and business financial information submitted by the
applicants. Under ORS 196.660(2)(f) an executive session may be utilized by the committee when
considering information or records that are exempt by law from public inspection including information
located in loan applications. Once the exempt material has been reviewed and any discussion of that
material is completed, the executive session should be closed and the public meeting reopened for the
purpose of any further discussion of nonexempt records or to deliberate to a final decision.

4|Page



Suggestions for Loan Review Committee meetings:
e Provide Morrow County Staff with 48 hours of notice of a meeting
e Morrow County staff will provide notification that the meeting will occur
o Notice as public meeting and indicate that an executive session may be held to review
information or records in the loan application that are exempt from disclosure.

e The meeting may occur via the telephone. A location would need to be specified and provided for
the press and public to attend; with the understanding that only the press would be permitted to
attend an executive session.

e Morrow County staff or designee would need to take minutes. This may consist of a recording or
written minutes. The minutes of the executive session are not open for review by the public
The meeting- open as public meeting, discuss nonexempt information regarding the loan request
Open executive session to discuss loan application materials that are exempt from public disclosure
SAMPLE SCRIPT TO ANNOUNCE START OF EXECUTIVE SESSION
The [governing body] will now meet in executive session pursuant to ORS 192.660(2)(f), which
allows the Commission to meet in executive session to __ [list activity (ies)]
Representatives of the news media and designated staff shall be allowed to attend the executlve
session. All other members of the audience are asked to leave the room. Representatives of the news
media are specifically directed not to report on or otherwise disclose any of the deliberations or
anything said about these subjects during the executive session, except to state the general subject of
the session as previously announced. No decision may be made in executive session. At the end of
the executive session, we will return to open session and welcome the audience back into the room.
Close executive session

e Reopen the public meeting to make final decisions

This memorandum covers matters in a general sense. Please contact the Office of County Counsel if you
have any questions regarding specific points.

5|Page



AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET = m#

Morrow County Board of Commissioners LO
(Page 1 of 2)

This document must be completed for each agenda item submitted for consideration by the Board of
Commissioners.

Staff Contact: Karen Wolff, Human Resources Director Phone Number (Ext): X562(
Department: Human Resources Requested Agenda Date: 4/8/2017
Person Attending BOC Meeting (REQUIRED) Karen Wolff, Human Resources Director
Short Title of Agenda Item: FY 17/18 Nonrepresented Employee COLA

This Item Involves: (Check all that apply for this meeting.)
[_] Order or Resolution Appointments
[] Ordinance/Public Hearing: Update on Project/Committee
[ ] 1stReading []2nd Reading Discussion Only
[] Public Comment Anticipated: Discussion & Action
Estimated Time: Estimated Time: 5 minutes

I (I

[ ] Document Recording Required Department Report
[_] Contract/Agreement Other:
[1NA For Contracts and Agreements Only
Contractor/Entity:
Contractor/Entity Address:
Effective Dates — From: Through:
Total Contract Amount: Budget Line:

Does the contract amount exceed $5,0002 [ ]| Yes [ | No
If Yes, Attach Purchase Pre-Authorization Request if Applicable

Reviewed By:
Department Head Required for all BOC meetings
DATE
Awh b - 4 ~¢ - (7] ___Admin. Officer/BOC Office Required for all BOC meetings
DATE
County Counsel Required for all legal documents
DATE
Finance Office Required for all contracts; Other
DATE items as appropriate.
W ‘//‘/ /7 Human Resources If appropriate
= 7 / pafe 7

Note: All entities must sign documents before they are presented to the Board of Commissioners.
Original documents are preferred. Agenda requests, including this completed form and supporting
documents, must be received by the Board’s office by Noon on the Friday prior to the Board of
Commissioners Wednesday meeting. County Counsel and Finance review is required for all contracts.



AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET

Morrow County Board of Commissioners
(Page 2 of 2)

1. TITLE OF AGENDA ITEM: FY 17/18 Nonrepresented COLA

ISSUES, BACKGROUND, AND DISCUSSION:

Each year the Board of Commissioners sets the COLA for Nonrepresented employees, to be included in the
budget that is presented to the Budget Committee.

OPTIONS:

A. Approve the COLA recommendation as presented.
B. Refer the COLA back to Human Resources for additional review, with direction on how to proceed.
C. Setadifferent COLA.

FISCAL IMPACT:
Full impact will be determined by the number of FTE that are added or deleted throughout the year.

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:
I recommend setting the COLA for FY 2017/2018 at 3.0%.

SUGGESTED ACTION(S) / MOTION(S):
Move to set the COLA for Nonrepresented Employees for Fiscal Year 207/208 at 3.0%.

Attach additional background documentation as needed.

Routing: Original or copies of signed contract or document should be sent to the following;:

[0 Clerk (Original for recording) O Finance Department (Copy for file)
0 Board of Commissioners (Copy for file) O Department — For distribution

[0 Other

Rev: 3/23/17




Human Resources

P.O. Box 788 « Heppner OR 97836 Karen Wolff
(541) 676-5620 Human Resources Director
kwolff@co.morrow.or.us

To: Morrow County Board of Commissioners \*) %
From: Karen Wolff, Human Resources Director &\w
Date: April 6, 2017

Re: FY 2017/2018 COLA for Nonrepresented Employees

Each year the Commissioners set the COLA (Cost of Living Adjustment) to be applied to wages for all
employees who are not covered by a Collective Bargaining Agreement.

Mortrow County has three Collective Bargaining Agreements. Negotiations have opened with Teamsters, so
we do not have a firm COLA for next year yet.

Below is a table with some history of COLAs.

17/18 | 16/17 | 15/16 | 14/15 | 13/14 | 12/13 | 11/12
AFSCME General Employees 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0
AFSCME Road Employees 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0
Teamsters Sheriff’s Office Employeces 7? 2.5 2.5 225 2.0 1.5 1.0
Nonrepresented ?? 3.0 3.0 275 | 2.67 2.5 233
Elected 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0

Through 14/15 the Nonrepresented employees received a COLA that was the average of the three Union
COLAs. That resulted in most Department Heads receiving a COLA that was less than their subordinates.
Over a period of time, this resulted in compressing the delta between the wage scales for most of the
Department Heads and their subordinates. After some research we found that was a past practice, but not a
policy. Now, the COLA for Nonrepresented is set each year before Budget Hearings.

The Morrow County Compensation Board recommended a 3.0% COLA for Elected Officials, but not less
than the COLA of the Nonrepresented employces. In the past it has been stated by the Compensation Board
that they belicve a 3% COLA is the minimum amount that should be applied to Elected Officials. For the
basis of this comparison, I have used 3%.

The CPI-W Portland-Salem, OR-WA may not be highly accurate for our area, but it is representative of the
cconomy in Oregon.

2016 2015 2014
1% Half 1.2% 0.6% 2.4%
204 Half 2.2% 0.3% 2.1%
Annual 1.7% 0.4% 2.3%

2017-2018 COLA Recommendation Page 1|2




A little broader look, but hopefully somewhat relevant to our area is the CPI-W reflecting the buying habits

of urban wage earners and clerical workers.

1,500,000 in 13 Western states.

Class B/C is based on cities with populations of less than

Jan Feb March | April | May | June | July | Aug Sept | Oct Nov [ Dec
2015 | -04% [01% |04% | 0.6% |0.5% [ 0.2% | 0.0% | 0.0% | -0.2% |-0.2% | 0.0% | 0.4%
2016 [13% |0.7% [0.1% |0.5% |03% |0.4% | 0.6% |0.6% |1.1% |1.5% |1.9% |1.8%
2017 | 1.9% |2.5%

Market analysis as provided by McGee Wealth Management 4/6/2017:

Equity markets ended the I*' quarter up for the 6" quarter in a row.
The DJIA finished the week at 20663.22, up +0.32% on the week.
The S&P 500 closed at 2362.72, up +0.80% on the week.

The NASDAQ finished up +1.42% on the week.

U.S. 10-year Treasury ended the week yielding 2.39%.

In the energy markets, crude oil settled at $50.60.

Year-to-date the S&P 500 is up +5.5%.

The MSCI EAFE, which measures equity market performance of developed markets outside the US

and Canada, was up +0.3% on the week.

This market analysis is very positive and encouraging.

Fiscal Impact
The following financial information has been provided by the Finance Department:

Personnel services expense with a 3% for Dept. Heads = +$66,607.

From this, I have made the following assumptions:

1% = $22,202
2% = $44,404

Board of Commissioner Options:

A.

B.

C.
D.

Follow recent history and the lead of the Compensation Board and approve a 3% COLA for
Nonrepresented Employees.

Set a COLA for Nonrepresented employees at a different rate.

Examples: 2.5% which is the latest CPI = $55,505

2.83% which is the average of the three Union COLAs from last year = $62,831.

Defer the decision to the Budget Committee.

Something ¢lse??

Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions.




AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET ltem #
Morrow County Board of Commissioners 6 ;’L
(Page 1 of 2)

This document must be completed for each agenda item submitted for consideration by the Board of
Commissioners.

Staff Contact: Karen Wolff, Human Resources Director Phone Number (Ext): X5620
Department: Human Resources Requested Agenda Date: 4/12/2017
Person Attending BOC Meeting (REQUIRED) Karen Wolff, Human Resources Director

Short Title of Agenda Item: Surveyor Compensation Update

This Item Involves: (Check all that apply for this meeting.)
[] Order or Resolution Appointments
[[] Ordinance/Public Hearing: Update on Project/Committee
[ ] 1stReading []2nd Reading Discussion Only
[] Public Comment Anticipated: Discussion & Action
Estimated Time: Estimated Time:

LI

[] Document Recording Required [1 Department Report
[ ] Contract/Agreement [] Other:
[]1NA For Contracts and Agreements Only
Contractor/Entity:
Contractor/Entity Address:
Effective Dates — From: Through:
Total Contract Amount: Budget Line:

Does the contract amount exceed $5,000? [ ] Yes ] No
If Yes, Attach Purchase Pre-Authorization Request if Applicable

Reviewed By:
Department Head Required for all BOC meetings
DATE
g '-"-';!/ P 4 —10 - 1" {__Admin. Officer/BOC Office Required for all BOC meetings
/ DATE
County Counsel Required for all legal documents
DATE
Finance Office Required for all contracts; Other
DATE items as appropriate.
q 0 uman Resources If appropriate

ATE

Note: All entities must sign documents before they are presented to the Board of Commissioners.
Original documents are preferred. Agenda requests, including this completed form and supporting
documents, must be received by the Board’s office by Noon on the Friday prior to the Board of
Commissioners Wednesday meeting. County Counsel and Finance review is required for all contracts.



AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET

Morrow County Board of Commissioners
(Page 2 of 2)

. TITLE OF AGENDA ITEM: Surveyor Compensation Update

. ISSUES, BACKGROUND, AND DISCUSSION:

After the Compensation Board met and made their recommendations, I became aware of rules that made me
question whether we were paying the Surveyor in the appropriate manner. The Board of Commissioners
postponed taking action on the Compensation Board recommendation to allow me time to investigate.

In discussions with Local Government Personnel Institute (LGPI), it appears that the Surveyor should be
treated as an employee based on the current amount of compensation and other factors.

I intend to contact other counties to get more details on how they compensate their Surveyors. I have been
advised of a couple of counties that may do a combination of an Elected Official and a Professional Services
contract. I would like to investigate this further.

. OPTIONS:

. FISCAL IMPACT:

This information has come together just recently. Between Budget Prep and Payroll, Finance needs a little
more time to prepare budget impacts. I would like to narrow the focus a bit before I ask they to crunch
some numbers on options.

. STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:

I plan to return to the Commission meeting on April 19 with more information.

. SUGGESTED ACTION(S) / MOTION(S):

Is there any specific information that the Commissioners would like to have provided to them next week
relating to this subject of compensation?

Attach additional background documentation as needed.

Routing: Original or copies of signed contract or document should be sent to the following:

0O  Clerk (Original for recording) ] Finance Department (Copy for file)
0  Board of Commissioners (Copy for file) Ol Department — For distribution

[J Other

Rev: 3/23/17




AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET | en#

Morrow County Board of Commissioners ZD \
(Page 1 of 2) e

This document must be completed for each agenda item submitted for consideration by the Board of
Commissioners.

Staff Contact: Stephen Wrecsics/Carla McLane Phone Number (Ext): 541-922-4624
Department: Planning Requested Agenda Date:  April 12, 2017
Person Attending BOC Meeting (REQUIRED): Stephen Wrecsics

Short Title of Agenda Item: Schriever Replat

This Item Involves: (Check all that apply for this meeting.)
[ ] Order or Resolution [ ] Appointments
[] Ordinance/Public Hearing: [ 1 Update on Project/Committee
[] 1stReading [ _]2nd Reading [ | Discussion Only
[] Public Comment Anticipated: [ ] Discussion & Action
Estimated Time: ~_ Estimated Time:
[] Document Recording Required || Department Report
[] Contract/Agreement [X| Other: Accept and Sign Replat
X N/A For Contracts and Agreements Only
Contractor/Entity:
Contractor/Entity Address:
Effective Dates — From: Through:
Total Contract Amount: Budget Line:
Does the contract amount exceed $5,000? [ ] Yes [ ] No
If Yes, Attach Purchase Pre-Authorization Request if Applicable

. 4

Reviewed By:

[ LU J [ PRA Ll «// 7 Department Head Required for all BOC meetings
E ! DATE/
((}5/ M L‘ - _{’ l7 Admin. Officer/BOC Office Required for all BOC meetings
! DATE
County Counsel Required for all legal documents
DATE
Finance Office Required for all contracts; Other
DATE items as appropriate.
Human Resources If appropriate
DATE

Note: All entities must sign documents before they are presented to the Board of Commissioners,
Original documents are preferred. Agenda requests, including this completed form and supporting
documents, must be received by the Board’s office by Noon on the Friday prior to the Board of
Commissioners Wednesday meeting. County Counsel and Finance review is required for all contracts.



AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET

Morrow County Board of Commissioners
(Page 2 of 2)

1. TITLE OF AGENDA ITEM: Schriever Replat

2. ISSUES, BACKGROUND, AND DISCUSSION: The Schriever Replat, approved by the Morrow County
Planning Commission on January 24, 2017, is a replat of lots 8 and 9 of the Riverfront Subdivision. Because
it is an action within a subdivision it requires acceptance of the replat by the governing body of the County.
In some instances there are road dedications which require acceptance; that is not the case with this replat.

The request by the landowner, approved by the Planning Commission, is to combine lots 8 and 9 of the
Riverfront Subdivision to allow additional development to the property in a single ownership. Under
Oregon law you cannot build over a property or lot line. The land owners, Robert and Carlene Schriever,
want to complete an addition to their home, but cannot proceed until this replat is completed as the addition
encroaches over the current lot line separating lots 8 and 9. This replat will result in a single lot for
development purposes.

Planning staff will have the replat document available at the Board of Commissioners meeting for your
signatures. Should you want to review the replat prior to the meeting please reach out to Stephen at the
Planning Department.

3. OPTIONS: Accept the replat or deny the replat.

4, FISCAL IMPACT: There is no or little fiscal impact to the county based on the acceptance of the replat.
The subsequent development on the subject property will have tax implications.

5. STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: To accept the replat.

6. SUGGESTED ACTION(S) / MOTION(S): Planning staff would suggest the following motion: “I move to
accept the Schriever Replat for filing and recording in the record of plats of Morrow County.”

Attach additional background documentation as needed.

Routing: Original or copies of signed contract or document should be sent to the following:

[J Clerk (Original for recording) (] Finance Department (Copy for file)
] Board of Commissioners (Copy for file) L Department — For distribution
0 Other

Rev: 3/23/17



Roberta Lutcher

S — = B ———
From: Carla McLane
Sent: Tuesday, April 04, 2017 2:28 PM
To: Roberta Lutcher; Justin Nelson
Cc: Jerry Sorte; Stephen Wrecsics
Subject: BOC Agenda 04122017
Attachments: Agenda Sheet Schriever Replat 04122017.pdf

Roberta,

Attached is the Agenda Sheet for the Schriever Replat for next week’s Board of Commissioners meeting. At this point
there are not any additional pages. Should someone want to review the replat document prior to the meeting we will
have it here. It is an oversized 18 x 24 document. | will not be in attendance (on that airplane to Pittsburgh); Stephen

Wrecsics will attend on my behalf for this agenda item.

Justin,

I've included you because the agenda cover sheet says your signature is required on the cover sheet for all legal
documents. The replat is a legal document, but we have never had county counsel review them in the past. Does this
warrant a change in procedure? Have to say | hope not. They are signed in all cases (for county actions) by the county
surveyor, county planning director and the county tax assessor/collector. Additionally they are prepared according to
ORS 92 and the Morrow County Zoning Ordinance. Not a lot of room for creativity!! Your reply is appreciated.

Thanks to you all,
Carla



AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET | [em* |

Morrow County Board of Commissioners ‘ '
(Page 1 of 2) BRI

This document must be completed for each agenda item submitted for consideration by the Board of
Commissioners.

Staff Contact: Carla McLane Phone Number (Ext): 541-922-4624 or X5505
Department: Planning Requested Agenda Date: 04122017

Person Attending BOC Meeting (REQUIRED): Written Report Only

Short Title of Agenda Item: Planning Update

This Item Involves: (Check all that apply for this meeting.)
[[] Order or Resolution Appointments
[] Ordinance/Public Hearing: Update on Project/Committee
[] IstReading [ ]2nd Reading Discussion Only
[] Public Comment Anticipated: Discussion & Action
Estimated Time: Estimated Time:

I

[ ] Document Recording Required X] Department Report
[] Contract/Agreement [ ] Other:
N/A For Contracts and Agreements Only
Contractor/Entity:
Contractor/Entity Address:
Effective Dates — From: Through:
Total Contract Amount: Budget Line:

Does the contract amount exceed $5,000? [] Yes [ ] No
If Yes, Attach Purchase Pre-Authorization Request if Applicable

Reviewed By ey ;3
[ L bt / | £l “ﬁ:‘;’,}/ // _Department Head Required for all BOC meetings
- ,‘L"'. DATE
_(}6’ ﬁ ‘4_ L!:f] "l ,IAdm'm. Officer/BOC Office Required for all BOC meetings
JATE
County Counsel Required for all legal documents
DATE
Finance Office Required for all contracts; Other
DATE items as appropriate.
Human Resources If appropriate
DATE

Note: All entities must sign documents before they are presented to the Board of Commissioners.
Original documents are preferred. Agenda requests, including this completed form and supporting
documents, must be received by the Board’s office by Noon on the Friday prior to the Board of
Commissioners Wednesday meeting. County Counsel and Finance review is required for all contracts.



AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET

Morrow County Board of Commissioners
(Page 2 of 2)

1. TITLE OF AGENDA ITEM: Planning Update

2. ISSUES, BACKGROUND, AND DISCUSSION: Please see attached Planning Update Memorandum.

3. OPTIONS:

4. FISCAL IMPACT:

5. STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:

6. SUGGESTED ACTION(S) / MOTION(S):

e Attach additional background documentation as needed.

Routing: Original or copies of signed contract or document should be sent to the following:

[1  Clerk (Original for recording) (| Finance Department (Copy for file)
(1  Board of Commissioners (Copy for file) t Department — For distribution
[J  Other

Rev: 3/23/17



' PLANNING DEPARTMENT

Q= #y) p.0.Box 40 - Irrigon, Oregon 97844

QU &/ (541)922-4624 or (541) 676-9061 x 5503
™~ FAX: (541) 922-3472

MEMORANDUM

To: Morrow County Board of Commissioners
From: Carla McLane, Planning Director

Date: April 6, 2017

RE: Planning Update

This April 2017 Planning Update will address the following items:

Oregon Department of Energy/Active Energy Facility Siting Council Projects
Transportation System Plan Appendix B Update

Farm and Forest Use Model Code Update

Tentatively Scheduled Planning Workshop

Governor's Advisory Committee on Energy and Agriculture

Oregon Department of Energy/Active Energy Facility Siting Council Projects:

About once a month, or before an Energy Facility Siting Council meeting, | receive from Todd
Cornett, ODOE siting administrator, a “90 Day Look Ahead” which attempts to summarize
current projects and their status. As | have shared a number of times Morrow County is energy
central. The following are some current highlights:

4 Boardman Solar: Planning staff have commented to the preliminary Application for Site
Certificate and continue to work with the applicant on some of the shortcomings
identified.

4 Boardman to Hemingway transmission line: On the federal side we are waiting for the

Record of Decision to be issued which was delayed from end of March to late April.
Once that is received it will be forwarded to the Board of Commissioners. For the state
process Planning staff continue to answer questions raised by the applicant, Idaho
Power, and coordinate with Oregon Department of Energy staff.

> Wheatridge Wind: Quoting from the 90 Day Look Ahead “The Council’s findings and
motion on certified questions confirmed that in order for a structure to be considered to
by ‘proposed by the applicant’ for purposes of determining whether the structure is a
‘related and supporting facility’ to an energy facility, the structure must be proposed by
the applicant in the application for site certificate.” That was the outcome that works for
the program that we have been working towards for some time. There are April 10 and
17 deadlines for party members to the contested case; April 28 is the anticipated date
the Council will review and possibly issue a final decision (final order and site certificate).

> Carty Generating Station Amendment #1: Oregon Department of Energy staff have
requested additional information based on comments received; it will be late summer or
early fail before we see a Proposed Order. The release of the Proposed Order will open
another round of Public Comment.

> Columbia Ethanol Project Amendment #1: This amendment is designed to address a
number of structural and process changes that have taken place since the facility

Planning Department Update April 8, 2017
Morrow County Board of Commissioners Page 1 of 3

WAWW,ITIOTTOWCOUNTYOIRgon, Coinl



opened. We should see the Proposed Order in the next two to three months,

> Montague wind Power Facility: As | understand it construction should start on this project
this summer, maybe sooner. It is located just across the county line in Gilliam County.
There is some discussion as to whether an Amendment will be necessary, or if a change
order will suffice, for some changes in turbine size and location.

> Rule Making: Oregon Department of Energy staff continue work on changes to how
amendments are accomplished, a process that started in 2013. There is also a proposal
to draft rules related to public health and safety to address ways that the Council can
find that an applicant “can design, construct and operate the facility to exclude members
of the public from close proximity to the turbine blades and electrical equipment.” This is
driven in large part by the recent process of approving the Saddle Butte Wind Park and
the conflicts raised by the Department of Navy and the Department of Defense.

> Declaratory Ruling Request: This concerns a request from a solar developer asking the
Council (which staff are still reviewing) to determine if two projects that could be
approved locally are one project from the perspective of the Oregon Department of
Energy. Should the Council determine they are one project it will force the developer to
make application to the Oregon Department of Energy.

There is another item related to the Carty Generating Station that | wanted to share with you. |
recently received from Oregon Department of Energy compliance staff correspondence between
them and Portland General Electric concerning a possible violation of their Site Certificate. It
has to do with a small electrical line at the Grassland Substation. Oregon Department of Energy
compliance staff have responded with the requirements. It may be that a change order can
address this; if not they will need to apply for an Amendment or modify their current
Amendment.

Transportation System Plan Appendix B Update:

In late March 35-day notice was provided to the Department of Land Conservation and
Development and on April 6 affected agencies were sent the preliminary findings of fact. The
Planning Commission mailing will go out on or before April 14 for their public hearing on April
25. Two public hearings are required: Planning Commission on April 25 and the Board of
Commissioners currently scheduled for May 24. As shared before an emergency clause will be
necessary to facilitate the project lists being effective on July 1 to correspond with the new fiscal
year.

Farm and Forest Use Model Code Update: Work continues on the model code update and the
Board of Commissioners is invited to attend a Work Session with the Planning Commission and
the consultant team on Tuesday, April 25, at the Port of Morrow Riverfront Center in Boardman
starting a bit after 7:00 p.m. You have received the meeting packet; additional items may be
provided prior to the April 25 work session.

Tentatively Scheduled Planning Workshop: The afternoon of Wednesday, May 3, 2017, has
been identified for a Planning Workshop with the Board of Commissioners to discuss the
following three items:

O Public Hearings.

O Policy Discussion - Renewable Energy and Large Industrial Projects.

| Current and Near Term Planning Projects.

This is proposed as a discussion to not exceed two hours on these topics to achieve better
understanding between the Board of Commissioners and Planning staff, to assure that we are
all talking the same talk.

Planning Department Update April 8, 2017
Morrow County Board of Commissioners Page 2 of 3



Governor’s Advisory Committee on Energy and Agriculture: Attached to this memorandum
are two items: 1) a letter from Governor Brown to Jim Rue, Director of the Department of Land
Conservation and Development and 2) the final report based on work done by the Governor's
Advisory Committee on Energy and Agriculture in the Umatilla Basin. This report has been
provided previously, but with the letter from the Governor it appears that we may actually be in a
position to do the work outlined in the final report. | have not yet had a chance to follow up with
Director Rue and will do that latter this month, but wanted to be sure that you were aware of the
earlier conversations and commitments made during this work. It may be that we can achieve
much of this work concurrently with review and approval of the transmission line that is being
considered to support the Wheatridge Wind Energy Facility. | look forward to more discussion of
this, possibly as part of our pending Workshop. (I also needed to add enough pages to make
sure that | provided you at least 80 pages of reading... that was a challenge presented earlier
today by Commissioner Russell!)

Planning Department Update April 8, 2017
Morrow County Board of Commissioners Page 3 of 3



KATE BROWN
Governor

March 30, 2017

Director Jim Rue

Department of Land Conservation and Development
635 Capitol Street Ne, Suite 150

Salem, OR 97301-2540

Dear Director Rue:

[ established the Governor’s Advisory Committee on Energy and Agriculture in the Umatilla
Basin in October 2015 to determine whether changes in laws or regulations would better protect
irreplaceable high-value agricultural land as energy projects continue to be developed in the
region. The Advisory Committee came to a close in February 2017 and provided a final report to
me. I have reviewed the report and appreciate how it underscores the importance of renewable
energy development and the need to get power to market through transmission lines that may
cross a range of landscapes, including highly productive agricultural land. I also recognize the
important investments in furthering agricultural output as an economic driver in the region.

The report provided a list of next steps that includes a pilot project in Morrow County to conduct
a community process to establish an energy corridor that should be considered by future energy
developers. 1 believe this pilot project will be an excellent way to explore the Advisory
Committee’s ideas on the ground. To move this pilot project forward, the report outlines the
need for assistance from the Department of Land Conservation and Development in developing a
temporary rule. I understand your agency currently has budget constraints and that you are
working to determine the budget for the temporary rulemaking. Once issues around the budget
are resolved, I expect the rulemaking process to begin by May 2017.

Please contact my energy policy advisor, Ruchi Sadhir, if you have questions. Thank you for
your assistance.

Sincerely,

K Lyor—

Governor Kate Brown

KB:rs

254 STATE CAPITOL, SALEM OR 97301-4047 (503) 378-3111 FAX (503) 378-8970
WWW.GOVERNOR.OREGON.GOV

&



February 24, 2017

Governor’'s Advisory
Committee on Energy and

Agriculture in the Umatilla
Basin

February 24, 2017



February 2017

Dear Governor Brown;:

Thank you for establishing the Advisory Committee on Energy and Agriculture in the
Umatilla Basin. The committee members have met for over a year to find ways to
resolve concerns in the Umatilla Basin regarding energy transmission development
and the associated impacts to agriculture. We appreciate the hard work of the
committee members and agency staff, and we appreciate the thoughtful discussion to
consider ideas for solutions.

Renewable energy developers need transmission lines to get their power to the

market. These transmission lines can be many miles from the renewable energy
development to the electric grid and must cross a range of landscapes, including highly
productive agricultural land. A key next step identified by the Advisory Committee is a
pilot project in Morrow County to conduct a community process that would establish an
energy corridor that should be considered by future energy developers. This pilot project
will require assistance of Department of Land Conservation and Development (DLCD)
staff to bring a temporary rule through Land Conservation and Development
Commission (LCDC) to allow the pilot project to move forward.

We appreciate your continued support in resolving concerns around energy
development and agriculture in our districts through the Morrow County pilot project.

Sincerely,
_."'/-..——--\ = ___;;- - -
W M 4 74" ¢ o _
Senator Bill Hansell Representative Greg Smith

J

cc: Committee Members
Jim Rue, DLCD Director
Greg MacPherson, LCDC Chair




TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.0 BaCKBrOUNG viicivisiasivasssisnssainasintoneiiasssticsiisididisinmssbissisas isn s a it oossivn o ta i v s B s e i v 5
1.1 Committee PUrpose and SCOPE.......ccoiiiiiciiiiceiinicri et s s et s s saba s 5
1.2 ComMmMIttEe MeMbBErSRIP ... i b es s s e b b 5
1.3 By T3 0T T T OSSP P PP S P OPPPP TP 7
1.4 The Region’s AGHICUIUIE .....ccriveriereeccee ettt rbssassa st assesans s s s s s ss e s s e s s nsesnesnsssenaanes 7
1.5  The Region’s Energy Production ..........coouiicciiiniiniinneniiic ittt essssas s s snenanens 9

2.0 Advisory Committee Meetings SUMMATY ......cciieimimiiiimiie i 13
2.1 Meeting 1: October 27, 2015 — Boardman, OFegON .........cocvurmirieresisnisnnsinissssessassssssssasssssaessessans 13
2.2 Meeting 2: November 12, 2015 — Portland, Oregon ..o 13
2.3 Meeting 3: December 21, 2015 — Boardman, Oregon............cccuiiniiiiiiiminnninimesnn 13
24 Meeting 4: February 5, 2016 — Salem, OregON.........ccovveerrirmrreerseerieniseesseesesrsessaensaesseessssssesssannes 13
2.5 Meeting 5: October 18, 2016 — Boardman, Oregon ..........ccvmvvmnmnieninieissisniinneesneseesssnesenes 13

3.0 Key federal, state, and local laws and regulations............ccocevivininiinnnen s 14
3.1 FEAEral ..o iinisissssvsiissossssssnsimaiiniosionnanarasrus disvemimiiisioa e b G s N e e e 14
3.2 State & LOCA ....... s s i s s o i s eiads sos oo o a6 15

4.0 Ideas for RESOIVING ISSUES ......cociiciieererererrrrcir ettt e st s s s st et e s e nnaas 19
4.1 Idea: County-only corridor @pProach.......c.iiiemimimiiaisnniresssssresersrsssasssssssns 19
4.2 Idea: County and State (LCDC) Goal 3 approach..........cccevinimnmeinimmamnsmsimmsimsssesssss 20
4.3 Idea: County and State (LCDC) Goal 5 approach.......ccuiinviiiniiciiniicncneneeissie s 21
4.4  Idea: State (EFSC) APProach .....ccccciciiiiiiiiiiiiisiessinissasssnssissssssesssssaonsssssssssnsesassassssssssnssnsssasens 22
4.5 Idea: FINAaNCIial INCENTIVES .....ccvciiiiivciiiiieiiin s seas e s a s sba s e bb s saa e bbb s e b b nn e e bba s 22

5.0 NEXE SEEPS ... cosisiiinaiisiniasiaiisivivssinttesivinitsm s st s s i soras s s s LA abs S oo VAR e as s sH s s SaRR s et 25

6.0 AL ACKMENTS insensiimssvnivviisassssssassiasssussssiissnsnnsinn ssisssenssossaassyeasssassass LEERSEEI I EERS TS LIS ETRATTAA 00 EAR IO RSO 26
ATTACHMENT A. Governor’s Framework for the Advisory Committee in Umatilla Basin .................. 27
ATTACHMENT B. 10.27.15 Meeting Agenda and MIRULES ........ccccceviiiiiemmimmmmmmmrmmmsmsssnsessees 28
ATTACHMENT C. 11.12.15 Meeting Agenda and Minutes .......ccccvuiiiminnmniminesssmnmmineissininns e 31
ATTACHMENT D. 12.21.15 Meeting Agenda and MinUtes........ccccciiiimiiiiimins s 36
ATTACHMENT E. 2.5.16 Meeting Agenda and Minutes........c.ccovvneininniniiniciinneenee e, 42
ATTACHMENTF. 10.18.16 Meeting Agenda and MINULES............ccocinersinmsnmmsssmsinmusssnssssssssssnssnesnes 49
ATTACHMENT G.  HB 2508-1 (2015) .....cccceceerrmrrmeenramissnesssismssssssssnsssesssssssssssnsssessssssesaesasssssasesnarsasses 53
ATTACHMENT H. Associated Transmission Line Check BOX .........ccceimiinismnmisrinisissssinmsneesssssssssssssanas 54



ATTACHMENT I.
ATTACHMENT J.

Cumulative Impact Clarification..............

Energy Projects Currently Under Review



1.0 Background
1.4 Committee Purpose and Scope

The Umatilla Basin region is home to irreplaceable high-value agricultural land. Recent
proposed energy development, including generation facilities and associated
generation-tie transmission lines, have the potential to take portions of high-value
agricultural land out of production. It is important to ensure that as energy projects are
constructed to meet the region’s energy needs, developers consolidate resources,
particularly transmission lines, to avoid, to the maximum extent practicable, any impacts
to this land, as well as site future energy substations in locations that avoid cumulative
impacts of transmitting energy to and from substation locations. The purpose of this
Advisory Committee was to scope out the agricultural and energy generation and
electrical transmission needs in the Umatilla Basin and the region, and to determine
whether or not any changes in the federal, state or local laws or regulations are
necessary and, if so, how they should be pursued to better protect this land.

1.2 Committee Membership

The Advisory Committee includes:
e A representative from the Governor's Office
o Margi Hoffmann, Energy Policy Advisor (until October 2015)
o Ruchi Sadhir, Energy Policy Advisor (November 2015 to present)
e A member of the Oregon State Senate
o Senator Bill Hansell, SD 29
e A member of the Oregon State House of Representatives
o Representative Greg Smith, HD 57
e A representative of an investor-owned utility
o Gary Bauer, Northwest Natural
o Varner Seaman, Portland General Electric
e A representative of the irrigated agricultural community
o Kent Madison, Madison Ranches
¢ A representative from a land-owner organization
o JR Cook, Northeast Oregon Water Association
e A representative from Morrow County
o Commissioner Leann Rea (until January 9, 2017)
o Commissioner Melissa Lindsey (January 9, 2017 to present)
e A representative from Umatilla County
o Commissioner George Murdock, Chair
e A representative from Gilliam County
o Steve Shaffer, County Judge
¢ A representative from the local utility
o Steve Eldridge, Umatilla Electric Cooperative (until April 2016)
o Robert Echenrode, Umatilla Electric Cooperative (April 2016 to present)
e A representative from the Port of Morrow
o Gary Neal, General Manager



e A representative from a renewable energy organization
o Hillary Barbour, Renewable Northwest (until April 2016)
o CIiff Gilmore, Renewable Northwest (April 2016 — September 2016)
o Rikki Seguin, Renewable Northwest (October 2016 to present)
o Johnny Casana, EDP Renewables [member of and representing
Renewable Northwest] (October 2016 — January 2017)

Technical support has been provided to the Advisory Committee by:
State Agencies —
e Oregon Department of Energy (ODOE)
o Michael Kaplan, Director
o Todd Cornett, Assistant Director for Siting
Oregon Department of Agriculture
o Jim Johnson, Land Use and Water Planning Coordinator
Oregon Department of Land Conservation and Development (DLCD)
o Jon Jinings, Community Services Specialist
Oregon Department of Fish and Wildlife (ODFW)
o Steve Cherry, District Wildlife Biologist
o Jon Germond, Habitat Resources Program Manager, Wildlife Division,
Tribal Liaison
Oregon Public Utility Commission (OPUC)
o Jason Eisdorfer, Utility Director
o Lori Koho, Administrator of Safety, Reliability, and Security Division
Local Agencies —
e Morrow County
o Carla McLane, Planning Director
e Umatilla County
o Tamra Mabbott, Planning Director
Federal Agencies —
» Bonneville Power Administration (BPA)
o Crystal Ball, Oregon Liaison
o Brian Altman, Customer Account Executive in Transmission Sales
o Anders Johnson, Electric Engineer in Long Term Planning



1.3 The Region
This report focuses on an irreplaceable high-

value agricultural region, including the Umatilla ol SERE

River Watershed and irrigated regions of West e (-“m
Umatilla County, North Morrow County, and : o
North Gilliam County. uratiia [ S 5
Water is a key resource that supports & 7
environmental, economic, social, and cultural o ate

values within the Umatilla Basin. Access to B d
sustainable water supplies to support high-value MORR -

irrigated agriculture is only feasible within 1,000

feet above full pool elevations of the McNary

and John Day pools of the Columbia River. Figure 1 Map of the Region
This high-value region provides 200 varieties of

agricultural products, driving a more than strong agriculture-based economy that
supports hundreds of quality rural jobs and contributes billions of dollars to the state’s
economy.

1.4 The Region’s Agriculture

= Much of the regional economy in the Umatilla
HELCOME Basin is driven by agriculture. Once land has water
HERMISTON rights for irrigation, its value increases due to
changes in options for agricultural output. For
example, dryland wheat, grown without irrigation,
produces agricultural output valued at
approximately $100 per acre. Adding one acre-foot
of water to irrigate the land increases that value to
$500 per acre. A second acre-foot of irrigated
Figure 2 Hermiston water allows a farmer to grow hay and some
vegetables valued to $1,500 per acre. A third acre-
foot of water allows production of potatoes, onions, and carrots, which increases value
to $5,000 per acre or more after adding processing and international shipment value.

At the same time, there is a threshold where it is no longer economical to pump water
for the purpose of irrigation. Based on presentations given to the Columbia River
Umatilla Solutions Task Force (CRUST), the three costs that dictate economic feasibility
of irrigation projects are (1) the capital cost of the infrastructure, (2) power costs and
maintenance, and (3) the cost of obtaining mitigation water from the Columbia River
through storage or upstream efficiency projects. These three costs combined must be
between $125 to $150 per acre-foot for an irrigation project to break even. Additionally,
based on the three cost factors above, the economic limit of sustainable Columbia River
irrigation projects is 900 feet to 1,000 feet of pumping elevation above the full pool level
of the McNary pool and John Day pool. Therefore, there is a strong regional interest to
protect previously made and anticipated investments to sustain this irreplaceable
irrigated land base. For areas where it is not economical to pump water for irrigation



purposes, there is an interest by dryland agricultural entities to diversify income streams
with renewable energy development. For instance, a wind turbine sited on an
agricultural field adds economic diversity to an income stream for a parcel by taking a
small fraction of an acre out of production but compensating a landowner with lease
payments. These payments are often greater than the proportional crop yield and
provide an economic buffer against drought and lean years.

Figure 3: Economic Limit of Columbia River Irrigation
Note that the 1,260 foot contour is equivalent of 1,000 feet of pumping elevation above full pool



1.5 The Region’s Energy Production

The Columbia River Basin has long served as an area of large-scale energy
development. Dams in the Columbia River
and its tributaries began producing
hydroelectric power in the late 1930s and
now contribute about 40 percent of the
electricity used in the Pacific Northwest.
The Bonneville Power Administration (BPA)
is a federal, nonprofit power marketing
administration that was created by
Congress in 1937 to market power
produced by the federal dams and deliver
that power to publicly-owned utilities. Four
federal dams, operated by the U.S. Army Figure 4: Photo of the John Day Dam
Corps of Engineers, are located on the

Columbia River's segment that comprises Oregon’s northern border: Bonneville Dam
(constructed 1938 — 1225 MW!'), The Dalles Dam (constructed 1960 — 2,086 MW), John
Day Dam (constructed 1971 — 2,480 MW) and McNary Dam (constructed 1957 — 1,120
MW (Max capacity). Power produced by the Columbia River system helps drive
economic growth throughout the region.

BPA owns and operates more than 15,000 circuit miles of high-voltage transmission
lines and nearly 300 substations, which makes up about 75 percent of the electric
transmission system in the four-state Pacific Northwest region — Oregon, Washington,
Idaho, and Montana. BPA is responsible for moving power from where it is generated to
where it is consumed.

Two not-for-profit rural electric cooperatives in the Umatilla Basin, Umatilla Electric
Cooperative (UEC) and Columbia Basin Electric Cooperative (CBEC), buy power from
BPA under long-term contracts to provide rural electric service to roughly 14,000
households and 4,000 commercial, industrial, and irrigation customers.

BPA substations step down high voltage electricity for delivery to UEC and CBEC.
These substations interconnect new generation in the region and step it up to be
transmitted on the broader high voltage electrical grid. Existing substations in the area
include McNary, Coyote Springs, and Boardman.

In 2016, BPA completed construction of a 230/115 kV substation near Boardman called
the Morrow Flat Substation. This new substation, combined with enhancements to
existing infrastructure, allows BPA to accommodate the growing demand for electricity
in UEC’s service territory and the surrounding area while ensuring safety and

1 MW stands for “megawatt,” which is the standard form of measurement for bulk electricity. One
megawatt is enough electricity to power about 600 homes.



operational standards are met. The increase in demand for energy comes from existing
development and food processing plants as well as development of new data centers.
The Morrow Flat Substation is approximately 1.5 miles east of the existing Boardman
Substation, along an existing corridor containing three BPA transmission lines — the
230-kV McNary-Boardman, the 230-kV McNary-Jones Canyon, and the 500-kV
McNary-Coyote Springs. The McNary-Boardman and McNary-Jones Canyon lines feed
through Morrow Flat Substation. Approximately 22 acres of land zoned for industrial
use, and formerly used for agricultural production, were developed for the new Morrow
Flat Substation. BPA plans to expand the existing Morrow Flat Substation in the 2019-
2020 timeframe to accommodate anticipated load growth in the area. BPA is also in the
early stages of considering building two additional substations, Longhorn and Stanfield.
As proposed, the Longhorn Substation will be a 500kV substation adjacent to the new
Morrow Flat Substation. At this time, BPA has not set a formal location or made an
attempt to acquire land for the proposed Stanfield Substation. To this end, a rough idea
of the location for Stanfield is for study purposes only.

BPA has partnered with Idaho Power and PacifiCorp to fund the permitting phase of the
proposed Boardman to Hemingway (B2H) 500 kV transmission line project. This project
is a 290 mile, 500 kV transmission line extending from the proposed Longhorn
Substation to the Hemingway substation located southwest of Boise, Idaho. Idaho
Power is the lead utility in the federal and state permitting processes for this project.
The B2H project is intended to meet the energy needs of the partnering utilities and help
increase the efficiency, reliability, and resiliency of the electric system in the Pacific
Northwest. The B2H project will help create capacity to integrate renewable generation
on a regional scale and allow additional energy to be transmitted between the Pacific
Northwest and Mountain West regions. The B2H project is currently in the permitting
phase and is expected to be in service in 2023 or later.

In addition to renewable energy produced by the Columbia River hydroelectric dams,
the presence of transmission, transportation, and natural gas facilities support other
forms of utility-scale energy production. The Boardman Plant is a coal-fired facility
owned by Portland General Electric (PGE) with a nameplate capacity? of 550 MW. It is
scheduled to cease coal-fired operations in 2020. The company is exploring the use of
biomass as a future fuel source for the plant or other options for replacement of the coal
operations after 2020. Four significant natural gas-fired plants are also located in the
area. The Coyote Springs co-generation plant, co-owned by PGE and Avista, is located
at the Port of Morrow and has a nameplate capacity of 503 MW. In addition, PGE owns
and operates the Carty Generating Station, currently a 440 MW plant south of
Boardman that has been approved by the Energy Facility Siting Council to be built up to

2 “Nameplate capacity” refers to the full load sustained output of a power plant. Coal fired plants and
natural gas fired plant are considered “base load” plants that are dedicated to producing base load supply
by consistently and continuously operating at their nameplate capacity. Renewable energy plants such as
wind or solar are considered “intermittent energy sources” because they operate at about 30 percent
efficiency and are not continuously available. Hydroelectric dam energy output is adjusted up and down to
respond to load demand.

10



900 MW. The Hermiston Power Project, owned by Calpine, and the Hermiston
Generating Project are both located near Hermiston, Oregon in Umatilla County and
have nameplate capacities of 546 and 474 MW, respectively.

Over the last decade much attention has been
dedicated to developing new, renewable sources
/ of energy, mostly in the form of wind power. This
y i ‘ ] '“‘-1'\ area has wind projects in all phases of application
' and development, and several other projects have
expressed intent to submit their applications in the
near future. Additionally, this region is just
beginning to see interest in utility scale® solar
projects, several of which are at the beginning
application phase. The region also has potential
Figure 5: Wind Turbines for new natural gas plants. With retirements of
some generating units in the west and changing
river flows impacting hydro-electric operations, there are questions from utility planners
on how to reliably meet demand for electricity.

As for broader regional grid considerations, it is worth noting that there is potential for
major changes within the next five to ten years in the western transmission system in
the form of a potential new multi-state regional system operator (RSO). If an RSO is
established, planning around future generation and transmission will likely change.

Currently, transmission rights in the western United States are firm and owned by
specific entities who negotiate and establish contracts to move power across
transmission lines. In contrast, regional markets in the eastern, mid-western, and
southern regions of the U.S. share and optimize transmission rights across the system.
An RSO will likely reduce inefficiency and redundancy in the system, reduce the need
for new lines, increase use and value of existing lines, and lower the cost of managing
variable renewable resources.

In the next few years, the California Independent System Operator (ISO) and the
PacifiCorp transmission system may enter into an agreement to integrate into a single
RSO, which is being discussed and analyzed in California, Oregon, Washington, ldaho,
Wyoming, Nevada, and Utah. If the proposed RSO is created, it would open
opportunities for many other regional utilities and balancing authorities to join and
benefit from a real-time, day-ahead, and week-ahead market, reducing transmission
congestion as well as the inefficient procurement of local reserve capacity through
contracts. The proposed RSO would significantly impact how transmission rights and
access for future build-out are considered in the northwest. It is important to note that
BPA would be unlikely to fully participate in an RSO because of legal constraints on

3 Utility Scale generation can be defined as a generation project directly interconnected to the
transmission system or to generation projects intended for a utility. These are usually above a certain MW
nameplate capacity, often defined above than 1-10 MW, depending on the market. Alternately, ‘utility
scale’ can mean generation that is not meant for ‘behind the meter’ uses (i.e. not for on-site use by a
specific business or residence).

11



operation of the federal transmission system; however PacifiCorp, PGE, and Idaho
Power, which have transmission in Oregon, have the legal space to more seriously
consider joining an RSO.

12



2.0 Advisory Committee Meetings Summary
This section provides a brief summary of Advisory Committee meetings. Agendas and
minutes for each meeting are attached to this report.

2.1 Meeting 1: October 27, 2015 — Boardman, Oregon

The first meeting took place on October 27, 2015 in Boardman, Oregon. The meeting
agenda involved discussion of potential cumulative impacts to agricultural land and an
overview of energy acquisition needs from UEC, PGE, BPA, and Renewable Northwest.
(See Attachment B)

2.2 Meeting 2: November 12, 2015 — Portland, Oregon

The second meeting took place on November 12, 2015 in Portland, Oregon. The
meeting agenda involved discussion of energy and agriculture definitions and terms,
proposed projects, identification of issues, agency roles and responsibilities, and
transmission project processes. (See Attachment C)

2.3 Meeting 3: December 21, 2015 — Boardman, Oregon

The Advisory Committee next met on December 21, 2015 in Boardman, Oregon. The
agenda involved an ODOE demonstration of a consolidated map with layers of energy
projects and natural resource data and discussion of the problem statement and
potential solutions. (See Attachment D)

2.4 Meeting 4: February 5, 2016 — Salem, Oregon

The fourth meeting took place on February 5 2016 in Salem, Oregon. The agenda
covered ODOE'’s consolidated data map and discussion of state law mechanisms for
helping to resolve the issues discussed at the last meeting. (See Attachment E)

2.5 Meeting 5: October 18, 2016 — Boardman, Oregon

The Advisory Committee’s final meeting was held on October 18, 2016 where members
reviewed the draft report and provided feedback. Additional feedback was provided over
email, thus a sixth meeting was not necessary. (See Attachment F)

13



3.0

31

Key federal, state, and local laws and regulations

Federal

Federal Energy Requlatory Commission (FERC):

All corridor approaches need to be aligned with FERC open access
requirements. FERC requires that transmission system owners allow non-
discriminatory, fair access to transmission facilities, typically through a
transmission queue and, after the necessary studies, an open access tariff.

As an example, take a scenario where an established transmission corridor and
a public utility is providing transmission to new generation that does not have
transmission capacity. Query whether the public utility could be required to build
new transmission capacity and charge the developer of the new generation. If the
public utility that owns the new transmission capacity is a FERC-jurisdictional
entity, such as an investor-owned utility, the new capacity would be subject to
FERC's open access requirements. If BPA was owner of the new capacity, BPA
is not FERC-jurisdictional, but BPA has adopted an open access transmission
tariff and could offer the capacity under that tariff. Consumer-owned utilities are
generally not FERC-jurisdictional entities, and as such, are generally not required
to have an open access transmission tariff or comply with FERC’s open access
requirements.

A transmission owner may be required to upgrade a system to interconnect
additional generation, if that entity is FERC jurisdictional or if it has a tariff in
place that would require it to do so. Whether the generator would be charged for
the upgrades depends on the location of the upgrades relative to the point of
interconnection. If the transmission provider is otherwise exempt from FERC
jurisdiction, then it generally cannot be compelled as part of FERC’s open access
requirements to upgrade its facilities.

Federal Land Management and the Section 368 West-wide Corridors:

Section 368 of the Energy Policy Act of 2005 (EPAct) directed the Secretaries of
Agriculture, Commerce, Defense, Energy, and Interior to designate, under their
respective authorities, corridors for oil, gas, and hydrogen pipelines and
electricity transmission and distribution facilities on federal lands in the 11
contiguous Western States (Arizona, California, Colorado, Idaho, Montana,
Nevada, New Mexico, Oregon, Utah, Washington, and Wyoming), to perform any
required environmental reviews, and to incorporate the designated corridors into
agency land use and resource management plans. Section 368 also directed the
agencies to take into account the need for upgraded and new infrastructure and
to take actions to improve reliability, relieve congestion, and enhance the
capability of the grid to deliver energy.

14



3.2

In 2009, the United States Bureau of Land Management (BLM) and United
States Forest Service (USFS) finalized a record of decision that amended land-
use plans and designated 5,000 miles of Section 368-corridors on BLM managed
land and 990 miles of Section 368-corridors on USFS managed land. Shortly
thereafter, several non profit environmental organizations filed a lawsuit against
the corridors.

In 2012, the court dismissed the case, approving a settlement agreement that set
forth five provisions with the objective of ensuring that future Section 368
Corridor revisions, deletions, and additions consider the following principles:
Location of Section 368 Corridors in favorable landscapes; facilitation of
renewable energy projects where feasible; avoidance of environmentally
sensitive areas to the maximum extent practicable; diminution of the proliferation
of dispersed rights-of-way crossing the landscape; and improvement of the long-
term benefits of reliable and safe transmission.

In 2014, federal agencies began their review of the corridors with these guiding
principles through an Environmental Impact Statement process, which continues
today. Simultaneously, federal land managers are processing applications for
transmission line right-of-ways on BLM-managed and Forest Service-managed
federal lands through the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA),
Endangered Species Act (ESA), and National Historic Preservation Act (NHPA)
(among many other federal laws and requirements).

State & Local

Oregon Land Use Planning Law:

Oregon’s land use planning program is comprised of a combination of state
statute, statewide planning goals adopted by the state’s Land Conservation and
Development Commission (LCDC), and administrative rules. Over time, court
decisions have interpreted state law and shaped various aspects of the program.
Oregon's land use planning program is ultimately administered at the local level
through city and county comprehensive plans and adopted ordinances that have
been acknowledged to comply with the statewide planning goals.

Much of Oregon’s open landscape and nearly all of the Umatilla Basin region is
characterized by farm and ranch activities. These areas have been inventoried
by local comprehensive plans under statewide planning goal 3 and are protected
as “agricultural lands.” The agricultural lands designation is implemented by
exclusive farm use (EFU) zoning districts subject to the provisions of ORS
Chapter 215 and OAR Chapter 660, Division 33.

Most land use activities that may be considered under EFU zoning are set forth
at ORS 215.283(1) & (2). Those uses listed by ORS 215.283(1) have been
interpreted to be “uses of right” (see Brentmar v. Jackson County, 321 OR 481,
900 P2d 1030 (1995)). Uses of right may not be limited by criteria in local

15



ordinances or local plans. Those uses listed by ORS 215.283(2) are generally
considered “conditional uses,” which can be denied and may be limited by criteria
in local ordinances or local plans. In other words, counties may not impose local
criteria on uses of right but they can choose to be more restrictive than state law
for conditional uses.

Transmission Facilities on agricultural land are considered a “utility facility
necessary for public service” pursuant to ORS 215.283(1). Therefore, they are
considered a use of right and counties may not impose criteria that is more
restrictive than state law. However, the Legislature chose to establish ORS
215.274 (“associated transmission lines as defined at ORS Chapter 469) and
ORS 215.275 to guide the consideration of facility siting.

Other features of the Oregon planning program include OAR Chapter 660,
Division 4, which interprets statewide planning goal 2 (Land Use Planning) and
ORS 197.732 concerning how to convert land from an agricultural designation.
Statewide planning goal 5 (Natural Resources, Scenic and Historic Areas, and
Open Spaces) as implemented by OAR Chapter 660, Division 23, provides a
framework to inventory and protect energy sources.

Local Planning Programs:

As stated above, city and county planning programs are comprised of
comprehensive plans and implementing ordinances that have been
acknowledged to be compliant with the statewide planning goals.

Therefore, Oregon planning law is generally carried out by decision-makers at
the local level; however, an exception is energy or energy related projects
subject to the jurisdiction of the state’s Energy Facility Siting Council (EFSC).

Energy Facility Siting Council:

The Governor-appointed and Senate-confirmed seven member Energy Facility
Siting Council (Council) has regulatory and siting responsibility for large
renewable and non-renewable electric generating facilities, many high voltage
transmission lines, some gas pipelines, and radioactive waste disposal sites. The
state review consolidates the Council’'s 14 general standards, facility specific
Council standards, as well as all other applicable state agency requirements and
local land use regulations under a single review.

While jurisdiction remains with the Council, these state agencies and local
governments are notified throughout the review to ensure the appropriate
standards and requirements are identified and that staff and Council have
received input on how to apply those standards and requirements.

16



State agencies and local governments are eligible to receive reimbursement to
encourage their participation. State-level oversight of energy facilities helps
ensure that siting, construction, and operation of energy facilities is accomplished
in a manner consistent with protection of public health and safety and in
compliance with the energy policy and air, water, solid waste, land use and other
environmental protection policies of this state (ORS 469.310). The Council's work
is supported by the Oregon Department of Energy’s Siting Division staff.

Two of the key distinctions between state energy siting and local government
energy siting are the required studies and landowner consent. State energy siting
requires many more resource studies than local government energy siting, and
each study is generally required to be conducted at a more in-depth level to
prove the corresponding state standard is met. State energy siting allows an
applicant to submit an application without all of the underlying landowner's
consent, whereas that is prohibited at the local government energy siting level.
However, because the Council does not have eminent domain authority, this
occurs very infrequently.

State Renewable Energy Laws:

The electric transmission system that crosses the Umatilla Basin is part of a
broad, regional, synchronous grid that serves 17 different states and provinces
across the western United States, Canada, and Mexico. Many of these states
and provinces, including Oregon, have laws which require renewable electricity
(either explicitly via a Renewable Energy Portfolio Standard or implicitly via
greenhouse gas reduction policy).

Furthermore, many of these renewable energy laws are recent. Oregon’s corner
of that interconnected grid is an essential bridge, and Oregon is in a position to
potentially benefit from the economic development of its wind and solar
resources as these laws spur the growth of renewable energy demand and
opportunity.

As Oregon utilities and developers assess transmission planning processes and
needs, it is important to ensure the outcome works to serve the diverse needs of
energy generation and use within the state and throughout the West. Doing so
will help set Oregon up for success in renewable energy investment in rural
areas and reduced costs and risks in achieving state climate change goals.

Oregon Department of Fish and Wildlife:

The mission of the Oregon Department of Fish and Wildlife (ODFW) is to protect
and enhance Oregon’s fish and wildlife and their habitats for the use and
enjoyment by present and future generations. For energy projects throughout
Oregon, ODFW's role is to provide permitting agencies with recommendations on
how to best avoid, minimize, and mitigate the impacts to fish and wildlife and

17



their habitat (as per the ODFW Fish and Wildlife Habitat Mitigation Policy; OAR
Division 415).

o At the county level, ODFW recommendations focus primarily on the Goal 5
Resources identified in the county comprehensive plans. For energy projects
permitted at the state level by the Energy Facility Siting Council, the ODFW Fish
and Wildlife Habitat Mitigation Policy is incorporated by reference into the
Council's Fish and Wildlife Habitat Siting Standard (OAR 345-022-0060). ODFW's
role is to provide Oregon Department of Energy with recommendations as well as
interpretation of the ODFW Fish and Wildlife Habitat Mitigation Policy so as to
meet the Council's standard.

18



4.0 Ideas for Resolving Issues

The Advisory Committee’s meetings built a common understanding of the problem
statement. Discussions related to the problem statement also addressed: 1)
transmission lines built to interconnect new generation resources, their cumulative
impacts, and the potential lack of safety oversight; 2) existing energy project
applications such as the Boardman to Hemingway 500 kV transmission line project and
the Wheatridge Wind Energy project and whether this Committee can influence their
location; and 3) whether to include underground natural gas pipelines in addition to
overhead electrical transmission lines in the discussion. To keep the Committee’s
discussions in line with its purpose and scope, ultimately, the problem statement was
limited to the best way to establish overhead electrical transmission corridors
through highly productive agriculture areas in North Morrow County, Northwest
Umatilla County and North Gilliam County that will allow important and needed
renewable energy generation to connect to the grid while reducing or mitigating
impact to highly productive agricultural land. The Advisory Committee discussed
the information below as ideas to help resolve this problem statement.

4.1 Idea: County-only corridor approach.

Idea: Counties conduct a stakeholder process to adopt land use plan and ordinance
changes to designate corridors. Ordinance changes would be designed to incent
developers to use corridors through process streamlining or other means such as
enterprise zones.

Discussion:

¢ Incentives could be provided to encourage developers to use "incentive
corridors.” For instance, counties could pre-screen the corridors for compliance
with other comprehensive plan and zoning ordinance constraints and
demonstrate that the corridors provide an easier path toward local permitting. As
another example, counties could identify all applicable substantive criteria for
projects in the corridor providing greater certainty to developers of any possible
constraints. There would likely be interest in a non-mandatory, incentive corridor
that results in less conflict and impacts. BPA, utilities, and developers try to
minimize conflicts and impacts so that they can avoid protracted project delay
costs and mitigation costs.

e Without a corresponding change to state rules or statutes, locally adopted land
use ordinances intended to mandate—rather than incent—the siting of a
transmission line in a corridor may not be compatible with all LCDC or EFSC
authorities. For instance, if the intent was for the county to establish “mandatory
corridors,” it would likely not be compatible with existing statutory and regulatory
frameworks that otherwise authorize “utility facilities necessary for public service”
in EFU lands (see, e.g., ORS 215.213(1)(c), ORS 215.274; ORS 215,275; ORS
215.283(1)(c)). Also, for EFSC projects, if the project does not comply with one
or more county applicable substantive criteria, such as a county-designated

19



4.2

corridor, the applicant may still meet the EFSC land use standard by
demonstrating the project otherwise complies with statewide planning goals (see
OAR 345-022-0030(2)(B)).

Also there may be practical reasons why a mandatory corridor would not work.
For example, avoiding all highly productive agricultural lands likely would be
difficult because the majority of eastern Oregon is designated as Goal 3
(agriculture) or Goal 4 (forest) land indicating those lands are valued for
agriculture. There may be difficulties in anticipating all future developer needs
and project locations in determining how and where to establish a corridor.

Generally, a project requires years of biological studies and siting evaluation by a
developer, and it is not financially feasible to pre-identify areas in an entire region
with the detail and specificity needed to achieve the ideal of a mandatory
corridor.

However, the discussion of local needs and values is important. Land use
planning principles and standards with determined methodologies rather than
pre-determined geographic boundaries could allow the values that may create a
conflict to be brought into the development process early on. Ultimately this
approach keeps the burden and cost on the developer rather than a government
entity to prove a project meets a "low-conflict" standard. However, it may be
difficult to predict if and where utilities will build the next substation, creating the
possibility of a county mandating a “corridor to nowhere.” In addition, individual
county interests and decisions may result in an unworkable, non-contiguous
patchwork of corridors across county lines.

Finally, there is no guarantee that mandatory corridors will meet all otherwise
applicable state and federal siting laws and regulations. In general, this approach
and any corridor approach would be unlikely to result in pre-approved, mandatory
corridors that developers are required to use; site-specific analysis of local, state,
and federal permitting and siting laws and regulations would still be required to
mitigate a developer’s legal liability.

Idea: County and State (LCDC) Goal 3 approach

Idea: LCDC adopts a rule implementing Goal 3 and ORS 215.283 that limits
transmission lines to corridors sited under a local process, where counties have gone
through a specified stakeholder process and designated them by local plan and
ordinance amendments. LCDC rule implements Goals 3 and 13.

Discussion:

Most concerns with the idea of a county-only approach (Section 4.1) also apply
to this idea, as conflicts may arise between new LCDC rules and existing state
statutes, authorizing transmission lines in EFU lands, the latter of which would

prevail if there is a conflict.

20



4.3

Predicting the location of future wind and solar and the associated transmission
lines will likely be difficult. A mandatory corridor may not align with the needs of
power producers depending on where generation locations are established.
Requiring connection through a pre-established, mandatory corridor could be
cost prohibitive based on the economics of their particular projects.

For projects that go through the state EFSC process, it is difficult to ensure an
established mandatory corridor will be able to meet all applicable standards if
less than a full evaluation is completed. A full evaluation, which includes field
surveys for several standards, can be costly and time consuming. Even if a full
evaluation is completed, the information can become stale if there are changes in
circumstances on the ground or to applicable laws, rules, and statutes.
Therefore, there is no guarantee an application for a generation tie-in line
submitted after the original full evaluation would continue to meet all applicable
standards.

The same applies to federal permitting compliance — there is no guarantee that
the corridors will meet all otherwise applicable federal siting laws and regulations
(e.g. Endangered Species Act, National Historic Preservation Act).

Conversely, if corridors were non-mandatory and based on analysis showing that
there were fewer conflicts, BPA, utilities, and developers would likely consider
the corridors when planning future energy infrastructure as they try to minimize
the impacts caused by building the facilities since mitigating those impacts have
protracted project delay costs and impact mitigation costs. However, other
requirements — environmental or operational, for example — may cause BPA,
utilities, and developers to decide to build outside of the incentive corridors.

LCDC's capacity to engage in rulemaking is depended on adequate staffing and
may be constrained by budget issues. New rulemaking may also trigger notice
requirements under Ballot Measure 56 to be satisfied, adding additional expense.

Idea: County and State (LCDC) Goal 5 approach

Idea: LCDC adopts a rule implementing Goal 5 and OAR 660-023-019 (Goal 5 Energy
Sources) to allow transmission corridors to be designated as a Goal 5 protected
resource in Morrow County as a pilot project. Morrow County conducts a stakeholder
process to identify corridors and implementing ordinances. Desktop surveys are
conducted to determine if transmission corridors will likely meet local and state siting
requirements. Morrow County designates corridor(s) in plan and adopts ordinances
requiring the use of the corridor(s) unless an applicant can justify it would unreasonably
increase the cost of a project or impact its functionality.

Discussion: Similar to Section 4.2 discussion above.

21



4.4 |dea: State (EFSC) approach

Idea: EFSC adopts a rule preventing developers of transmission from avoiding local
ordinances, by applying statewide goals (Goal 3) where an applicable county has gone
through a corridor designation process (same as above). This may require an LCDC
rule as well, allowing EFSC to limit transmission to corridors, notwithstanding ORS
215.283.

Discussion: Similar to Section 4.2 discussion above.
4.5 Idea: Financial Incentives

Idea: The state could establish a financial incentive to overbuild a transmission line
using one or a combination of the following:

1) oversizing right-of-way to accommodate a second set of poles and conductors;
2) building towers large enough to hang multiple conductors for multiple projects; or

3) overbuilding poles and conductors.

For example, at the time a developer is ready to engage in the permitting process for a
transmission line project, the state could offer a financial incentive to encourage them to
overbuild using one or a combination of the options included above. Payment for the
transmission line could be sequenced in the following way:
-Original Applicant(s): Pays the full cost of a single purpose line minus the X% (to
be determined) that the state pays to incent them to overbuild the line.
-State: Pays all additional costs associated with overbuilding the line, with the
single purpose line cost as the baseline.
-Future Applicants: Pay full cost to the state to tie into the line minus the X% (to
be determined) to incent them to tie into that line.

Discussion:

e This approach does not rely on Oregon land-use laws as the prior ideas do, but
would require legislation. It would be responsive to projected future market
conditions as well as ensuring all legal requirements and standards are met at
the time the transmission line is approved.

e In some situations, a transmission line could be constructed to be capable of
operating at a higher voltage in the future, which would be helpful since higher
voltage lines can generally transmit more power and could therefore
accommodate future energy generation. For example, a line could be built to 230
kV design specifications but initially operate at 115 kV or 69 kV until demand
grows and other terminal equipment upgrades can be made to enable higher
voltage operation.

o However, it is worth noting that such “overbuild” could also create an onerous

risk if available “extra” capacity is underutilized for too long, or even indefinitely,
in which case the taxpayer-subsidized program would present a substantial and

22



possibly intractable financial burden on the state. Higher voltage operation
requires greater electrical clearance, which would mean additional insulators and
phase separation, and so the cost to overbuild can be exorbitant. Also,
unnecessarily high voltage could be an impediment to economic development in
the region, because it is more expensive to interconnect new energy generation
infrastructure at higher voltages, and that difference in interconnection cost can
determine the viability of building new wind or solar generation.

An important factor in this concept is the viability of predicted future need—
because even though it can be more expensive to rebuild or expand a line years
or decades after it has been built, it can also be incredibly difficult to predict
where and when additional capacity is likely to be needed. If such an “overbuild”
program were to exist, some entity would need to pay the incremental cost of
building in the added capacity up front, capacity which may or may not ultimately
be needed in the future. This is why the Public Utility Commission typically will
not allow the costs of this type of overbuild to be recovered in a regulated utility’s
consumer rates.

If the state financial incentive makes up the difference of the incremental cost
through an incentive, there may be more opportunity for overbuilding the
transmission line. In this instance, it would be Oregon taxpayers taking the
financial risk rather than utility ratepayers, and in many parts of the state those
two groups are one and the same, so the incentive would likely face all the same
challenges that a utility would face when attempting to justify an overbuild at the
Public Utility Commission or consumer-owned utility board.

Determining costs is complicated because full transmission project costs include
engineering, payment of additional equipment or right of way, construction,
operation, and maintenance. Also, the need for capacity can change over time as
electricity markets evolve, which means that predictions of future needs face the
challenge of “overbuilding” in the wrong places.

There may be an opportunity to allow rate-based compensation to utilities for
building to projected capacity needs, but it would require rigorous scrutiny to
ensure the utility can justify the anticipated future need. It is difficult to know in
advance where it will be useful to have added capacity on a line, and it is
extremely costly to overbuild just in case. In any of these instances, there would
likely be concern if the State were to take on the financial risk of subsidies when
there is so much uncertainty on how much transmission capacity will be useful at
a future date.

Finally, the state could create a bond fund as a financial incentive. A
transmission line is proposed and through the various review processes, a
potential need is identified to overbuild the line and place the line into a “corridor”
class project that would obligate other transmission users to use the overbuilt line
to serve future transmission needs. The proposing entity, such as an IOU, COU,
or private developer, would build the larger capacity line, determined through

23



EFSC, PUC, or county processes, and seek additional funds from the State of
Oregon for those costs in excess of the original project scope. Oregon would
issue bonds to fund the excess amounts of the project and be reimbursed from
revenues generated from the excess capacity of the line as it is used through
wheeling rates. The state would have influence in the most efficient use of the
transmission resources, determining capacity, routing and sharing the risk. This
mechanism likely reduces the financial risk of a project that is overbuilt in order to
accommodate future opportunities. To gain access to the bond funds, the project
would have to qualify as a corridor project.

24



5.0 Next Steps

As this Advisory Committee’s work comes to a close, the ideas discussed above could
be used by local governments, state agencies, and policy makers to help balance
energy facility development and protection of natural resources like highly productive
agricultural land. However, the approach discussed in Section 4.1 is unlikely to be
available without meaningful changes to state statute.

As discussed in this report, the LCDC may not promulgate rules that are inconsistent
with state statute. However, the restrictions created by Brentmar do not apply to
administrative rule proceedings in the same way they limit local government. The courts
have recognized that LCDC has been delegated authority to take necessary steps to
protect agricultural land. Given the complexities surrounding this subject, including the
important questions raised in the ideas discussion above, it may be prudent to limit the
timing and extent of a LCDC rulemaking process regarding Goal 3 and/or Goal 5.

A “pilot project’ could set the stage for conversations and enable local decision makers
to make policy choices regarding transmission corridors during an open, public process.
Morrow County expressed interest in participating in a pilot project. As a next step,
Morrow County is working with DLCD staff to establish a pilot project with regard to
Goal 3 and/or Goal 5 as discussed in Section 4.2 and Section 4.3.

Since this pilot project with DLCD and Morrow County is being established, the idea
discussed in Section 4.4 is not necessary. The pathways for financial incentives like
bonding need more discussion with technical experts and policy makers as discussed
in Section 4.5. In addition, representatives of Umatilla County continue to suggest
legislative solutions around the following topics: (1) energy generation projects should
be evaluated with their associated transmission lines, and (2) generation-tie lines
should be evaluated pursuant to ORS 215.283(2) instead of ORS 215.283(1). Finally,
LCDC is encouraged to consider an evaluation of statewide planning goal 13 (energy
conservation).

25



(=)

I Mmoo w®m>» O

< =

Attachments

Governor's Framework for the Advisory Committee in Umatilla Basin
10.27.15 Meeting Agenda and Minutes

11.12.15 Meeting Agenda and Minutes

12.21.15 Meeting Agenda and Minutes

2.5.16 Meeting Agenda and Minutes

10.18.16 Meeting Agenda and Minutes

HB 2508-1 (2015)

Associated Transmission Line Check Box

Cumulative Impact Clarification

Energy Projects Currently Under Review

26



ATTACHMENT A. Governor’s Framework for the Advisory Committee in Umatilla
Basin

Governor’'s Advisory Committee on Energy & Agriculture
Umatilla Basin, Oregon
Purpose

Northeast Oregon is home to irreplaceable high-value agricultural land. Recent proposed energy
development, including generation facilities and associated transmission lines, have the potential to take
portions of high-value agricultural land out of production. There is a need to ensure that as energy
projects are constructed to meet the region’s energy needs, developers consolidate resources,
particularly transmission lines, to avoid to the maximum extent practicable any impacts to this land, as
well as site future energy substations in locations that avoid cumulative impacts of transmitting energy to
and from substation locations. The purpose of this Advisory Committee is to scope out the agricultural
and energy needs in the Umatilla Basin and the region, and to determine whether or not any changes in
the federal, state or local laws or regulations are necessary and if so how they should be pursued to
better protect this land.

Scope

The Advisory Committee shall review investor-owned and public utility future energy needs in the region
and potential resources to help meet the demand in energy. The Advisory Committee will review federal,
state and local laws and regulations to determine the extent to which changes can help encourage
transmission line consolidation to avoid future potential impacts to high value agricultural land in the
Umatilla Basin.

If the Advisory Committee determines there are changes that need to be made, they will provide those
recommendations to the Governor in a report no later than January 15, 2017.

Membership

The Advisory Committee shall include:
e A representative from the Governor’s Office
A member of the Oregon State Senate
A member of the Oregon State House of Representatives
A representative of an investor-owned utility
A representative of the irrigated agricultural community
A representative from a land-owner organization
A representative from Morrow County
A representative from Umatilla County
A representative from Gilliam County
A representative from the local utility
A representative from the Port of Morrow
A representative from a renewable energy organization

e 2 © & & ¢ o © ©o o o

Technical support will be provided to the Advisory Committee by:
s The Oregon Department of Energy
The Oregon Department of Agriculture
The Oregon Department of Land Conservation and Development
The Oregon Public Utility Commission
The Bonneville Power Administration

e o o o

27



ATTACHMENT B. 10.27.15 Meeting Agenda and Minutes

Governor’s Advisory Committee on Energy & Agriculture
Umatilla Basin, Oregon
October 27, 2015

Location

Port of Morrow, Sand Hollow Room
2 Marine Drive

Boardman, Oregon

888-204-5984

298149
Agenda
Welcome & Introductions 15 minutes
Overview of potential cumulative impacts to ag land 30 minutes
Overview of energy resource acquisition needs 30 minutes

¢ Umatilla Electric Cooperative
e Portland General Electric
e Bonneville Power Administration
e Renewable Northwest Project
Discussion, Wrap Up 15 minutes

28



LOCATION:

2 Marine Drive, Boardman, Oregon | Port of Morrow, Sand Hallow Room

OPENING:

The first meeting of the Governor’s Advisory Committee on Energy & Agriculture was
called to order at 3:30pm on October 27, 2015 by Margi Hoffman.

MEETING NOTES:

o

O
o]
o]

@)

o]

e]
[e]

O 0 O O

O
O
o]

L]

o

o

High Value Agriculture — J.R. Cook

Restricted by 1260 foot contour — above sea level and too expensive to pump from
McNary pool.

Restricted by soil type (SE has heavier soil)

Restricted by water rights and water restrictions

There is a mix of farm size and crop type.

Umatilla Electric Coop — Steve Eldridge

Irrigated agriculture, industry, and small amounts of residential.
Use existing right of ways or adjoining rights of way.
Only 16% is open for development — so much exclusive land like high value agriculture,
national forests.
Transmission is already built near the Columbia River because of the dams
Changes in FERC/NERC oversight of smaller lines
= Bulk transmission across state/country lines
= As opposed to BPA lines that serve local areas — local load serving lines
There are terminology issues — pathways versus corridors versus proposed projects to
build lines
East side of bombing range road?
=  Big enough poles for later addition of lines
=  Should not do a “hopefully they will come” line — ratepayers should not pay
JR - only concerned about the “free ways” not the local load serving lines.

PGE - Varner Seaman

Focused on Carty and RPS compliance (100 aMW of renewable energy/250 MW
nameplate capacity)

There is a market for eastern Oregon solar

Grasslands substation for Carty — yes, additional capacity

BPA — Crystal Ball, Brian Altman, Matt

Owns 75% of high voltage transmission in Oregon (500kv and 200kv lines)
BPA responds to requests for interconnections
Stanfield substation — preliminary site in Hermiston for on-ramp of power
3-5 years for process - $20,000 - $50,000 for doing the study

= Interconnection study

=  Facility Study (land use, real estate)

= Construction agreement > design = build > electrification
More likely to be a developer trying to connect to BPA substation
Substation seems to be driver for other development
Transcanada and Williams pipeline in the same area as Stanfield

Renewable Northwest — Hillary Barbour

$9.8 Billion — 3350 MW in Oregon - $158.8 Million for public revenue — from renewable
energy projects

Project needs:

Good resource (sun, wind)

Willing land owner

Transmission

Permits

Off-taker/market

29



=  Financing for project
e Group Discussion:
o Need to define cumulative impacts and type of projects and high value in production
potential (versus statute definition for soil type)
o Two products
= 1-region issue on cumulative impacts
=  2- work towards framework
» Next Meeting: need to get a concrete list of issues and concerns. Try to work on getting a half
day meeting to make the travel time worth it.

30



ATTACHMENT C. 11.12.15 Meeting Agenda and Minutes

Governor's Advisory Committee on Energy

& Agriculture
November 12, 2015
10:00am — 12:00pm

Location: Oak Conference Room, 421 SW Oak Street, Suite 770, Portland, OR

Conference Line: 1-888-204-5984; Code: 298 149

Agenda
When What Who
10:00- 10: 15 » Welcome, meeting goals, and AllL
introductions
10:15-10:45 e Common understanding of BPA.
definitions/terminology & Q/A
e Proposed generation and transmission Umatilla County, Morrow
projects in the Umatilla Basin & Q/A County, Gilliam County, ODOE.
10:45-11:30 e Identification of issues Land-owners, Irrigated
. . Agri i
e Problem statement discussion digﬁ;ﬂ?;aéy?ﬁ? munity, and
11:30-11:45 | Break B

11:45-12:45- WorkinaLunch

11:45 - 12:15 e Oregon state agency process and
roles/responsibilities

Dept. of Energy, Dept. of
Land Conservation and
Development, Dept. of Fish
and Wildlife, Public Utility
Commission, Dept. of
Agriculture.

Morrow County,
Umatilla County, Gilliam
County.

2:15-12:45 e Each County's process and
roles/responsibilities

2:45-1:15 ¢ Developerand Utility roles/responsibilities
in generation and transmission
development

® Process for determining size and
location of different types of
transmission (gen-tie, bulk
transmission, etc.)

Portland General Electric,
Umatilla Electric
Cooperative, NW Natural,
Renewable Northwest.

1:15-1:30 e Interested Party Comment Opportunity

Any interested parties

1:30-2:00 e Discussion and Next Steps

All Committee Members

31




Governor’s Advisory Committee on Energy & Agriculture
Meeting Minutes

Thursday, November 12, 2015

LOCATION:
421 SW Oak Street, Portland, OR 97204 | Lincoln Building

OPENING:
The second meeting of the Governor's Advisory Committee on Energy & Agriculture
was called to order at 10:00am on Thursday, November 12, 2015 by Ruchi Sadhir.

ATTENDANCE:

Advisory Members: Ruchi Sadhir, Bill Hansell, Kent Madison, J.R. Cook, Leann Rea,
Steve Shaffer, Steve Eldridge, Gary Bauer, George Murdock, Hillary Barbour

State Agency Staff: Mike Kaplan (ODOE), Art Martin (ODFW), Todd Cornett (ODOE),
Robin Freeman (ODOE), Jorge Ordonez (OPUC),

Federal Agency Assistance: Crystal Ball (BPA), Brian Altman (BPA),

Interested Parties: Carla McLane, Don Rice, Mitch Colburn, Anders Johnson, Tamra
Mabbott, Brendan McCarthy (for Varner Seaman), Cindy Finlayson,

MEETING NOTES:

Ruchi described agenda for the meeting, asked for committee members to contribute
information per the “who” column on the agenda, and asked if there were questions
about or suggested additions to the agenda from members.

BPA:

e Crystal provided “Typical Electrical System” document that provides level setting
and terms that BPA uses but not everyone is familiar with. Will share the link to
NERC for a glossary of terms for members and interested parties.

e Brian Altman gives overview of BPA backbone system and distribution system
based on document. There is a difference between “networked” lines and “radial’
lines. Some transmission lines are for load-serving customers (consumer-owned
utilities), other lines are for point-to-point use (delivering generation to a
substation to get on the grid). Also discussed Open Access Transmission Tariff
(OATT) requirements by FERC. They can't say no to new applications for using
transmission lines, but the costs can go up to be prohibitive.

Discussion on specific performance requirements and standards.
Discuss function of a line and infrastructure needs to establishing a corridor,
route establishment, and financial responsibility of each invested party.
o Ruchi identifies two components to the conversation:
= Risk — what comes first — transmission line or generators?
= Cost — who is paying (upfront by utility? Generator?)
e The requester/generator could pay for the whole gen-tie line,
or the utility could pay for the line and charge for its use to
recoup the costs of building the line.

32



¢ JR mentions bombing range as good example of
establishing a right of way and parameters and then let
energy folk’s work within the established parameters.

e Discussed co-investment of substations. Discussed the example of BPA’s Slate
substation versus the Longhorn station (that may be jointly owned by ldaho
Power Company)

o Discussed utilities being the transmission line builder:

= Steve/Kent: Utility already has some sort of right of way, may be
used for existing service, encourage renewable energy. Counties
can opt in/out if they want.

= Todd: limit the scale to this specific area and issue to avoid limiting
the economic success of future projects by creating too many
corridors. The types of project applications may shift from wind to
solar in the future.

AGENCY
e Todd provided “ODOE - Siting Division Energy Facilities” document that provides
state jurisdictional energy facilities with site certificates list and break down, along
with a map of projects.

MORROW COUNTY
e Commissioner McLane provided “Wind Projects & Met Towers” map and brief
explanation of map.
o Group discussion on creating a map that includes:

= T-lines, soil type, planned projects, existing and pending
substations, Met towers, water rights, roads, gas t-lines, sage
grouse map.

= Soils, right of ways — Todd & Steve *Steve will send information to
Todd | Todd to get Sage Grouse info from ODFW *

= BPA to pull GIS maps (including PacifiCorp lines), include power
lines *Crystal to show Steve Eldridge first*

PROCESSES
¢ Jorge explains PUC Staff role related to discussion.

o Utility has an obligation to serve all its customers in their designated
service territory and for the utility to forecast needs to serve all its
customers. Once a need (like transmission) is identified, the integrated
resource planning (IRP) stakeholder process is used to determine how to
meet needs with the least cost and least risk to ratepayers.

o Siting and permitting considerations are not directly part of this analysis.
But siting and permitting do effect the timing of a project and may increase
the project costs because of the studies and analysis needed for permits.
The actual costs of the project would not be put into rates until there is a
Rate Case — IRP acknowledgment is not approval.

o Note that the PUC only deals with Investor-Owned Utilities (PGE,
PacifiCorp, and Idaho Power Company). But the governing boards of
Consumer-Owned Utilities (like Umatilla Electric Coop) may have similar

33



processes related to forecasting and fulfilling utility service needs at least
cost.

Brendan McCarthy explains the utility’s and the public’s role in the IRP.
o Group discussion about Cascade Crossing to illustrate detail, time line,
and depth of IRP process.

Todd explains role of Energy Facility Siting Council (EFSC)
o Includes explanation of three part test for a t-line to be an energy facility
(exceptions do occur but it is a standards based process)
o Public process
o Explains EFSC jurisdiction over all standards, except no jurisdiction over
tribes. They are sovereign nations.

Todd acknowledges this Committee will need a creative evaluation to come to a
solution in this region (rather than state-wide solution) and notes JR’s concern
about one project outweighing another.

o Local comprehensive plans and land use plans are included as standards
(in the EFSC process) at the time of the preliminary application, however
state standards can change during the pending application (because
those state standards apply consistently statewide).

o Discussion of Statewide Planning Goal 5, Goal 13, and Goal 12 *potential
to work with DCLD *

Discuss creating an incentive based corridor
o Kent: make sure it is structured in a way that it's an incentive to use it but
no law that states you must use the corridor.

ACTION ITEMS BEFORE NEXT MEETING

ODOE to create a consolidated map that includes UEC/BPA/PacifiCorp
transmission lines, soil types, roads, pending projects/met towers, substations
(existing and planned), economic boundaries for water rights, transcanada
pipeline, and natural resource sensitives (sage grouse and ground squirrel). BPA
and counties coordination to help ODOE get transmission line GIS layers and
county projects.

Research potential Statewide Planning Goal changes — any need for legislation?
(Ruchi, ODOE, DLCD, and state agencies)

UEC and Counties: discuss corridor ideas — potential in both 207 and Boardman
UEC and Counties: Discuss 115 kv line process in counties and whether there is
reason for different treatment than larger transmission lines.

34



NOTE:
e Request: more lead time on the agenda
e Request: materials be sent to Ruchi in advance of meeting so they can be
distributed in email with agenda to members/interested parties.
e Stacey to send out email with date/times options for next meeting.

35



ATTACHMENT D. 12.21.15 Meeting Agenda and Minutes

Governor’s Advisory Committee on Energy & Agriculture
December 21, 2015
12:30 PM - 4:00 PM

Location: Port of Morrow, Riverfront Center
Conference Line: 1-888-204-5984; Code: 298149

Agenda
When What Who
12:30- 12:45 | « Welcome, meeting goals, and All Committee Members.
introductions
12:45 -1:30 ¢ Overview of Consolidated Map ODOE.
e Q/A All Committee Members.
1:30 - 2:15 o Report out on discussions between UEC, Morrow County, Umatilla
UEC, Morrow County, Umatilla County, | County, and landowners, and
and landowners.
¢ Q/A Q/A by All Committee
Members.
2:15-2:45
BREAK
2:45—-3:45 o Discussion of problem statement and All Committee Members.
potential solutions.
3:45-4.00 o Next Steps All Committee Members

36




LOCATION:
2 Marine Drive NE, Boardman, OR 97818 | Port of Morrow

OPENING:
The third meeting of the Governor's Advisory Committee on Energy & Agriculture was
called to order at 12:30pm on Monday, December 21, 2015 by Ruchi Sadhir.

ATTENDANCE:

Advisory Members: Ruchi Sadhir, Kent Madison, J.R. Cook, Leann Rea, Steve
Shaffer, Steve Eldridge, Gary Neal, George Murdock, Hillary Barbour, Rep. Greg Smith,
Varner Seaman, Gary Bauer,

State Agency Staff: Mike Kaplan (ODOE), Todd Cornett (ODOE), Steve Cherry
(ODFW), Jon Germond (ODFW), Matt Lawyer (ODOE)

Federal Agency Assistance: Crystal Ball (BPA)

Interested Parties: Carla McLane, Don Rice, Mitch Colburn, Tamra Mabbott, Cindy
Finlayson, Alan Hickenbottom

MEETING NOTES:

Ruchi opened meeting by describing the intent of the third meeting: to build off of the
previous two meetings using the consolidated map created by ODOE and to provide
feedback on what should be added and/or removed from the map. In addition, to get a
report out on the discussions between the counties, UEC, and landowners about the
problem statement and potential solutions.

OVERVIEW OF CONSOLIDATED MAP/Q & A

Todd talked about the different layers of the map created so far emphasizing the map is

a working draft only. Invites members to described layers of map.
e ODOE - FSEC facilities

Umatilla County

Morrow County

Yellow dots at bottom are MET Towers

Red rectangle — bombing range

Blue bubble — Flight path, no development zone

Yellow lines and dots — transmission lines

Note: ODOE had a hard time downloading BPA'’s lines but some were included

based on the Platts layer.

o lIrrigation lines/Water Rights Boundaries — JR discusses pivots and place of use
on map.

e Sage Grouse was removed because it was no applicable to the area.

REPORT OUT ON DISCUSSIONS/Q & A
Review Energy Task Force Working Outline document (produced through side meetings
of the counties, UEC, and landowners. Circulated by J.R.

37



Steve notes the outline provides the group’s thoughts on how to
propose/manage/coordinate any number of transmission lines that could be sited on
farm land.

o Discuss connection of MET towers to Stanfield or Longhorn.
o Can BPA tell how much capacity is left at Longhorn? How does power get
from (proposed) Stanfield tower to grid?
» Crystal: Longhorn - Will inquire about it and report back. States
Longhorn is a proposed substation with a three party ownership.
= Crystal: Stanfield — BPA engineer’s state there have not been enough
requests for them to study the possibility of a substation for Longhorn
and Stanfield.
= Ruchi asked Crystal to provide total amount of energy requests in
gueue in Boardman area.

e Tamra provides description of type two land use, sub-one, and sub-ftwo. All
transmission lines are sub-one use. The bar is lower and you can meet
definitional standards and local government cannot put conditions on a permit.
Sub-two is how they permit an energy generation facility (wind farm). EFSC
would ask for criteria and go by state standards which are more discretionary.

e Concept idea: County somehow codify predesignated corridors using a process
that has legal standing under landuse law.. If private developer doesn’t want to
use predesignated corridors than they would need to go with a sub-two without
incentives. Tamra asks for state legal assistance if asked to come up with a
concept.

e Discuss cumulative impacts keeping in mind agriculture and natural resources.

o Steve Cherry (ODFW) — provides description of agency'’s process for
studying the wildlife movement of the area, specifically Washington
ground squirrel, an Oregon endangered species (category 1 habitat).
Discusses the avoidance of disturbing a colony.

PROBLEM STATEMENTS & POTENTIAL SOLUTIONS
Ruchi asks for discussion about roles and responsibilities for the next meeting.

o JR: need BPA'’s constraints on where to site Stanfield substation and whether
they need an additional line. Steve and Crystal to talk through BPA questions
about the east corridor.

o Crystal emailed: “There is no set location for Stanfield. The proposed
location is just for study purposes. BPA has made no attempt to acquire
land. If we move the substation to the east, we would need to build a
transmission line to connect it to the system. Building additional miles of
transmission line will impact landowners, but we would study that if we
ever actually start the realty process for Stanfield. At this point, no one has
put up the money for interconnection at Stanfield.”

e J.R: send Todd layer with pink line eliminated (central corridor)

o J.R: landowners will reach out to other landowners to start a conversation.

38



Discuss the use of pre-approved corridors.

Note: Group discussed concern of using term “pre-approved” which sounds definitive.
Group agreed on “preferred” as suitable term.

Kent: Notes the incentive of creating a preferred route sub-one corridor. An
initially pre-approved corridor would have the basic ground work completed so if
a developer comes in, even if a study is needed later, reducing initial hurdles for
the developer. A sub-two corridor would be required if the developer decides to
work outside of the preferred route corridor.

J.R: At next meeting, asked ODOE and Counties what is realistically feasible for
preferred route in a corridor? What boxes can be checked that the applicant will
need (i.e. how far down the finish line does the preferred route get a developer?).
Kent: proposes pre-approving/expediting bombing range road (west) corridor.
Developer wants to put down power poles now if there was a preferred route
corridor. Concurs east corridor may never be built.

Suggestion of minimal fee for using preferred route versus a large fee for using
non-preferred route.

Discuss county ordinance to memorialize corridor

Tamra will need help from agency with land use laws. Ruchi and Todd will find
out who she can work with for next meeting.

Tamra would like a conference call with Todd, Carla, and Ruchi to discuss
whether they can establish a county ordinance (for a long-range plan or corridor)
under the existing statutory language.

Ruchi would like a definition of cumulative impacts by statute. J.R. will research
and clarified that the cumulative impacts under land use law (ORS 215) are
related to farm use, not cumulative impacts associated with environmental,
aesthetic or other.

Discuss MOA

Discuss concept of an MOA between utilities and counties to make clear there is
an intent, when a developer would be using a line through a utility, the first choice
would have it be run through the corridor. This wouldn’t include privately
developed transmission lines outside of the utilities.
o Hillary will discuss with the Renewable Northwest members and provide
their perspective at the next meeting.
Steve Eldrige notes that public safety is a concern when private developers build
their own lines. Asks that the state require private developers to adhere to same
construction, maintenance, and operational standards as utilities. Discussed
writing a recommendation for administrative rule changes to reflect necessary
uniform safety standards.
o Hillary will speak with her members about the public safety aspect to
gauge their response.
Steve discussed receiving email confirmation from other utilities about interest in
an MOA.

39



Discuss the legal mechanism offered by state law without need for legislation.
¢ Ruchi will talk to Richard Whitman about attending the next meeting.
e« Tamra suggests a goal 5 and goal 13 corridor discussion via follow up phone
call.

Discuss codification of administration that need to be changed to ensure agency
recognition of agreements moving forward.

e MOA with other utilities/counties

¢ Planning process in place that establishes corridors

e Mechanism for corridors to be recognized under state law and EFSC

Note: Concern was raised about laying this proposal out on a statewide basis. Not all
jurisdictions want to come to a consensus that this is a regional effort specific to this

project.

ACTION ITEMS BEFORE NEXT MEETING
e Consolidated Map Needs:
o Washington ground squirrel data from ODFW.
Umatilla and UEC for their boundaries — Todd will reach out
Potential transmission lines and substations data
Natural gas line layer — suggestion by Kent
Roadways — Steve Eldridge
ODOE has information on U.S. roadways but not local. They will reach out
to ODOT. Counties may keep their own roads map. Tamra can get layer
to Todd for Umatilla County.
o Steve & Todd note the concern of building on a road right-of-way including
avoiding local jurisdiction and land owners.
o Steve asks for a map that differentiates, in color, proposed versus existing
agriculture development. JR will get those layers to Todd.

O 0 0 0 O

40



NOTE:

)

JR will send Todd the place of use boundaries for all of their regional
projects. Boundaries of existing water rights data which would cover
critical ground area and wells. Historical issues map (Oregon Trail?)

Before the next meeting:

0]
o

Send requested layers (above) to Todd to add to the consolidated map.
Crystal — share information about capacity of Stanfield substation and
requests in the queue. Work with Mitch (Idaho Power) for capacity for
Longhorn substation.

Crystal emailed: “right now the total amount is about 1500 MW around
Morrow Flats/Longhorn and about the same around Stanfield.”

Phone Call with Ruchi / Richard / Tamra (Umatilla County) /Karla (Morrow
County) / Todd (ODOE) /Jon Jinings (DLCD) — (1) Discuss type 2 process
at county for development of corridor, (2) Help in developing concept for
county ordinance (long range plan? Corridor?).

Todd — share information about the applicant check-list to help understand
how to incentivize corridor use.

J.R. — outreach with landowners on corridors idea and location. Research
on term “cumulative impacts.”

Steve — outreach with Columbia Basin and PacifiCorp on MOA concept to
declare intent to use corridors in good faith.

Hillary — discuss with RNW members: (1) reaction to use of MOA and use
of corridors, (2) private transmission owner requirements to
build/maintain/operate transmission lines within public safety rules and
who provides oversight?

Ruchi — follow up with Richard and DLCD to attend next meeting to
discuss state law mechanisms (goal 5 and goal 137?) to “codify” the
corridor designations in this region only (not state-wide).

It was recommended the next meeting be held in Boardman considering that is
the affected area. Early on, there had been agreement to share the travel burden
by having two meetings in Portland/Salem and two meetings in Boardman. The
driving principle should be to have the necessary parties at the table to find
solutions. An option of Hood River or The Dalles was suggested as compromise
location to accommodate parties coming from the Portland and Boardman area.
Stacey to send out email with date/times options for next meeting.

41



ATTACHMENT E. 2.5.16 Meeting Agenda and Minutes

Governor’s Advisory Committee on Energy & Agriculture
February 5, 2016
1:00 PM - 4:00 PM

Location: Governor's Conference Room, Salem, OR

Conference Line: 1-888-204-5984; Code: 298149

Agenda

1:00 -
1:15 -
1:45 -

O

2:15 -
2:30 —

O

1:15 — Welcome, meeting goals, and introductions
1:45 — ODOE Updates to Consolidated Map
2:15 — Report out on Action Items

Crystal — share information about capacity of Stanfield substation and requests in

the queue. Work with Mitch (Idaho Power) for capacity of Longhorn substation.

= Crystal emailed: “right now the total amount is about 15600 MW around
Morrow Flats/Longhorn and about the same around Stanfield.”

Ruchi / Richard / Tamra (Umatilla County) /Karla (Morrow County) / Todd

(ODOE) Jon Jinings (DLCD) — (1) Discuss type 2 process at county for

development of corridor, (2) Help in developing concept for county ordinance

(long range plan? Corridor?).

Todd — share information about the applicant check-list to help understand how

to incentivize corridor use.

J.R. — outreach with landowners on corridors idea and location. Research on

term “cumulative impacts.”

Steve — outreach with Columbia Basin and PacifiCorp on MOA concept to

declare intent to use corridors in good faith.

Hillary — discuss with RNW members: (1) reaction to use of MOA and use of

corridors, (2) private transmission owner requirements to build/maintain/operate

transmission lines within public safety rules and who provides oversight?

2:30 - BREAK
3:30 — Discussion of state law mechanisms

County-only approach: Counties adopt land use plan and ordinance changes
designating corridors. Design ordinances to incent developers to use corridors
through process streamlining or other means (enterprise zones with tax
advantages?).

County and LCDC approach: LCDC adopts a rule implementing Goal 3 and ORS
215.283 that limits transmission lines to corridors sited under a local process,
where counties have gone through a specified process and designated them by
local plan and ordinance amendments. LCDC rule implements Goals 3 and 13.

42



o County and EFSC approach: Counties adopt land use plan and ordinance
changes designating corridors. EFSC adopts a rule that prevents developers of
transmission from avoiding local ordinances, by applying statewide goals ((Goal
3) where applicable county has gone through a process (same as above). May
require an LCDC rule as well, allowing EFSC to limit transmission to corridors,
notwithstanding ORS 215.283.

3:30 — 4:00 — Next Steps

43



Governor’s Advisory Committee on Energy & Agriculture
Meeting Minutes

Friday, February 5, 2016

Location:
900 Court Street, Salem, OR 97301 | State Capitol Building, Governor's Conference

Room

ATTENDANCE:

Advisory Committee Members: Ruchi Sadhir, J.R. Cook, Leann Rea, Steve Eldridge,
George Murdock, Hillary Barbour, Senator Bill Hansell, Varner Seaman, Gary Bauer,
State Staff: Richard Whitman (Governor’'s Office), Mike Kaplan (ODOE), Todd Cornett
(ODOE), (ODFW), Jon Germond (ODFW), Matt Lawyer (ODOE), Lori Koho (OPUC),
Jon Jinings (DLCD).

Federal Agency Assistance: Crystal Ball (BPA)

Interested Parties: Carla McLane, Mitch Colburn, Tamra Mabbott, Alan Hickenbottom,
Anders Johnson, Tim McMahan, Elaine Albrich.

MEETING NOTES:

Ruchi opened meeting by describing the intent of the fourth meeting: to build off the
progress of the last three meetings by reviewing the additional layers of the
consolidated map and discuss the feasibility of three strategic proposals for moving
forward.

OVERVIEW OF CONSOLIDATED MAP/Q & A
Todd described the additional layers that were added into the map. The purpose of the
exercise was to see if there were/are siting constraints and conflicts when including
additional layers to the map.
¢ Washington ground squirrel
o Jon Germond: because landowners do not want actual data released, the
map layer supplied by ODFW doesn’t show exactly where the ground
squirrel population exists but where they are likely to exist. Listed as state
endangered species, not federally.
e Wind projects — proposed, approved, contested wind facilities in Columbia basin
(green, blue cream)
e Morrow County facilities — Carla McLane:

o Echo is built (part of Echo is in Umatilla County).
o Butter Creek is permitted but not built.
* Problems at the Federal level and other developments issues.
Construction was stopped. Developers anticipate a reapplication
e Umatilla County Facilities — Tamra Mabbott:
o Wind facilities: the county just permitted a small wind facility last week.
Otherwise, aside from MET towers what is on map is actually constructed.

44



Columbia Basin Cooperative/Transmission Lines/Service
Territory/Distribution/Substations
o Ruchi notes this map layer has relevance because existing Bonneville line
serves Columbia Basin Cooperative.
Right of Ways
o State Right of Ways (from ODOT) were added
Could not integrate BPA information in this version

Steve Eldridge noted it would be helpful to know which EFSC jurisdictional facilities are
existing, planned, and the expected name plate is of development of facilities. Todd can
make that available next time. He’'ll reach out to Carla and Tamra.

Review of Action Items:
Ruchi asked everyone who had an action item assignment from the December 21st
meeting to provide an update on their respective assignment.

Capacity question of line right now:

Crystal Ball:

Emailed in real time during the December meeting a response on a capacity
question about the 1500 mw at Longhorn and Stanfield stations: “right now the
total amount is about 1500 MW around Morrow Flats/Longhorn and about the
same around Stanfield.”

Looked at Calpine and McNary line for capacity. Calpine line was built for 600
mw and McNary was built for 650 mw. 1250 mw is capacity for one element
through the grid, otherwise they have to carry more reserve. Mitch & Anders
discussed limits of grid and circuits out of each substation.

o Steve notes and Crystal agrees, 1250 mw is an operational constraint for
liability purposes but Crystal adds there is existing infrastructure to
integrate wind that is proposed and anything beyond that existing
infrastructure they've proposed new facilities such as Stanfield. Example:
do not have room for more equipment so they have to build Stanfield.

Overview Type 1/Type 2 Process:
Tamra Mabbott:

Type 1 is a use allowed outright with permit and a limitation on standards. All
transmission lines are permitted as Type 1. Discussion about making it a Type 2,
which is a conditional use. Statute does not distinguish between Gen-Tie line for
a facility or a large overhead transmission line for a public utility or member
owned cooperative.

o Richard notes: Type 1-3 is a county construct. In order to create a process
for development of a corridor and to limit siting of new transmission in that
corridor, there may be a way to do it without a change in statute. Normally
counties cannot limit Type 1 uses including transmission lines beyond
what is in statute.

45



Three Mechanisms to Resolve Issues (see bullets on agenda):
Richard Whitman explains three proposed concepts for development of corridor:

1) County Only — no state rule would be required

¢ The county would create incentives for new transmission and apply those
incentives only within the corridor. That puts the person who is looking at siting a
new transmission facility to make a decision for private reasons to determine
whether they want the incentives provided by county.

e It would be up to the county and the efficacy would come down to the strength of
the incentives that the counties could bring to the discussion. This is believed to
be more of an economic tool than a regulatory tool, but there could be some
streamlining on the regulatory side.

» Mechanism would be an ordinance and dependent on a collaborative process.
Need to work with landowners, then research in field, and finally go to county
with initial work done.

o Jon Germond: County Only approach may run risk of not qualifying in an
EFSC process.

2) State Action Required - LCDC
¢ Go through land use program directly. LCDC, by rule, would create limitations or
conditions (and keep in mind incentives) to push transmission siting into
corridors. This would occur only where the corridors are developed in a
collaborative way. Possibly a pilot program in a subarea of the state.
o Jon Germond had spoken with the LCDC and there isn’t opposition to the
concept but council may need direction or help in taking it on.
= Note that the process should make sure the proposal goes through
a rule advisory committee, right to rule, then to be considered, and
finally adopted. LCDC meetings are in March, July, and September.
o Richard notes that, given the nature of ever evolving energy industry,
something to consider is a mechanism to ensure this is revisited at a later
date; a possible sunset or expiration. If LCDC adopted a statewide rule, it
might be best to look at existing rules and try to design something that fits
within it. (Jon Germond mentions Provision 33 Section 130 for
modifications)

3) State Action Required — EFSC

e Rule would only apply to EFSC jurisdictional facilities. EFSC would limit the
authority of developers to go around local ordinance. EFSC rule would require
them to use the local corridor, if established in a collaborative way.

¢ This would happen via a rule amendment by the Energy Facility Siting Council.
EFSC would need to initiate rule making by going through rule advisory
committee. The goal is to include the collaborative process as part of the
process.

o State rule would set up a process with side board that the county would have to
operate within. Balancing would happen at local level.

e This is least developed of three concepts and needs more work.

¢ Need to explore use of EGA — Energy Generation Area

46



Applicant Checklist — What incentives could there be to site in a corridor?

Todd refers to page 2 - 3 of the Associated Transmission Line Check Box handout.(See
Attachment H) This handout gives a sense of what an applicant must submit to meet
EFSC standards.

Standards: Structural standards, Soil Protection, Protected Areas, Fish and
Wildlife Habitat, Threatened and Endangered Species, Scenic Resources,
Historic, Cultural and Archeological Resources, Recreation, and Public Services.
Crystal notes that they have a federal process (NEPA) and would want to make
sure the corridor meets federal requirements.

Cumulative Impacts:
J.R. provided two documents Cumulative Impact CL (See Attachment |) and Proposed
Transmission Lines and existing BPA 010516 (See Attachment J).

Cumulative Impact CL — Cites ORS 215 and headnotes from Land Use Board of
Appeals (LUBA) case law pertaining to impacts to agriculture.
Proposed Transmission Lines and existing BPA 010516 — map illustrating the
POU'’s for Northeast Oregon Water Association’s (NOWA) new water projects as
well as existing BPA lines and the corridor areas that may be a start if the state
finds a way to acknowledge a pre-planned overhead transmission corridor
through or around NEWA'’s irreplaceable high-value agricultural land.
o Tamra notes: Cumulative impacts only apply to Type 2 use. So, if for
example, LCDC were to adopt rule changes, they could use this other
than reinventing a definition.

Columbia Basin and PacifiCorp on MOA:
Steve provided an update on his outreach with PacifiCorp’s Pat Reiten and Columbia
Basin Electric Co-Op’s, Tom Wolf.

The discussion was positive and both were enthusiastic about the idea of
facilitation of generation lines whether they connect to Pacific or Bonneville. They
agreed it would be helpful and expressed interest in entering into an MOA. Also
noted, although transmission providers would be interested in entering into an
MOA he doesn'’t see why others wouldn’t be interested. However, having the
right and utilizing it are two different things. Utilities are the ones who have
expertise to operate the facilities versus a non-utility. Best for public.

Question (Ruchi): At what point would an MOA need to be entered into? Timing-
wise and sequence-wise?

o Steve Eldridge believes once the counties have the green light signal
they’ll work together. They're ready and standing but cannot do it without
planning piece.

o Hillary Barbour states her members are very interested based on her initial
reaching out but need more details. Having the three concept options and
the MOA helps give more substance to go back to her group with.

o Steve feels JR can now talk to the landowners

Discussion regarding width of corridors for max capacity build out.

Eileen would like to consider from a developers perspective how this will work.
Question about how power will get to the corridor from the generation facilities.

47



J.R. notes the advisory committee’s focus is to concentrate on high value
farmland and developers will have to figure out how to connect power to the
corridor, but the corridor gets them to the substation/grid.

e Discuss overbuilding. Steve relays that when utilities receive a request they try to
build ahead of demand but states there is a limit. Varner notes there is always a
margin and forecasting needs is important but at some point, utilities cannot go
outside of limits/bounds.

e Question (Anders): Is there a way to economically build in an optionality?

o Could consider a second circuit added later to oversized poles — there
could be a wheeling charge or prepay/reimburse.

Discuss public safety
e Public safety requirements are already in the statute at PUC.
e Lori Koho: The PUC’s authority is to enforce the national safety code.

Off-topic discussion regarding gap in communication between PUC, utilities,
counties, and public relating to pole safety. Richard suggests Tamra raise this
issue with the AOC or LOC. Tamra to send Lori emails on a specific situation.

Next Steps:

Gain a better shared understanding of three concept options/approaches. More work
needs to be done on which approach would be best. The group would like to wait on
meeting again until the B2H preferred alternative is released from BLM.

e J.R. and UEC will meet with landowners and Bonneville regarding terminal points
but will wait for the preferred alternative for B2H from BLM.

o J.R. will address potential issues with the corridor that were raised through the
checklist discussion and will get Todd a map layer on the east side of bombing
range road.

¢ Richard will work with Jon, Todd, and Business Oregon on (1) additional analysis
and research on the mechanisms, (2) explore use of energy generation areas,
(3) research options for incentives that could be used at the county level.

e Lori will work with a sub-group (including UEC and the counties) regarding pole
safety.

e Todd will include EFSC local jurisdictions and get further input on the
consolidated map for use at the next meeting.

e Varner will provide Ruchi, via email, an MOA between PGE and two cities as an
example MOA for group to consider.

48



ATTACHMENT F. 10.18.16 Meeting Agenda and Minutes

Governor’s Advisory Committee on Energy & Agriculture
October 18th, 2016
12:30 PM - 2:30 PM

Location: Port of Morrow, Sand Hollow Room

Conference Line: 1-888-204-5984; Code: 298149
Agenda

When What

12:30- 12:45 | « Welcome, meeting goals, and introductions

12:45 -1:30 | o Walk through the Draft Report

1:30-2:15 e Feedback on Draft Report

2:15-2:30 e Next Steps

49




Governor’s Advisory Committee on Energy & Agriculture
Meeting Minutes

Tuesday, October 18, 2016

LOCATION:
2 Marine Drive NE, Boardman, OR 97818 | Port of Morrow

OPENING:
The fifth meeting of the Governor's Advisory Committee on Energy & Agriculture was
called to order at 12:30pm on Tuesday, October 18, 2016 by Ruchi Sadhir.

ATTENDANCE:

Advisory Committee Members: Ruchi Sadhir, J.R. Cook, Leann Rea, Steve Shaffer,
Robert Echenrode, Gary Neal, George Murdock, Johnny Casana, Varner Seaman, Gary
Bauer.

State Agency Staff: Mike Kaplan (ODOE), Todd Cornett (ODOE), Robin Freeman
(ODOE), Nigel Siedel (ODFW), Steve Cherry (ODFW), Jon Jinings (DLCD).

Local Agency Assistance: Tamra Mabbott, Carla McLane

Federal Agency Assistance: Crystal Ball (BPA)

Interested Parties: Don Rice, Mitch Colburn, Cindy Finlayson, Sonja Bogart, Matt
Vickery

MEETING NOTES:

Ruchi opened the meeting by describing the intent of the fifth meeting: to review the
draft report, provide feedback, and have a discussion to make sure Advisory Committee
members, staff, and interested parties are on the same page with the intent that this be
the last meeting. The draft report is due by January 2017, so the meeting’s purpose is to
ensure that the Advisory Committee has all of the necessary information needed to
finalize a report that reflects the work of the committee appropriately.

WALK THROUGH DRAFT REPORT:
Ruchi and committee members walked through each section of report with staff and
interested parties. Discussed whether there should be additions/revisions made.

Background

¢ The Region
The Region’s Agriculture
Umatilla Basin Energy Production
Committee Purpose and Scope
Committee Membership

Advisory Committee Meeting Summary
e Meeting 1: October 18, 2015 - Boardman, Oregon
¢ Meeting 2: November 12, 2015 — Portland, Oregon
o Meeting 3: December 21, 2015 — Boardman, Oregon

50



¢ Meeting 4: February 5, 2016 — Salem, Oregon
e Meeting 5. October 18, 2016 — Boardman, Oregon

Ideas for Resolving Issues

o Key federal, state, and local laws and regulations
Idea: County-only corridor approach
Idea: County and State (LCDC) Goal 3 approach
Idea: State (EFSC) approach
Idea: Incentives

The discussion around the “problem statement’ reminded the members, staff, and
attendees about the original purpose and intent of the Advisory Committee. There was
discussion about the need to include the Boardman to Hemingway transmission line
project as important context for the start of the issues this Advisory Committee has been
considering, in addition to the purpose of focusing on regionally specific interests of
accommodating electric transmission line development while protecting the region’s
irreplaceable high-value agricultural land base. The meeting participants discussed the
challenges of a dynamic energy industry, on-going changes with conditions on the
ground and legal requirements for avoiding/minimizing/mitigating impacts, differences
between utility and private developers, and differences in needs/interests of local
communities — there is likely not a one-size-fit-all approach to resolving concerns with
overhead transmission line siting. There was also substantive discussion regarding
how the “menu of ideas” contained in the report could be used: longer-term, broad ideas
around the corridor concept compared to more immediate opportunities for a Morrow
County Pilot that could build on work around overhead transmission lines on Bombing
Range Road and connecting to the Longhorn Substation. Morrow County
(Commissioner Leann Rea and Carla McLane) committed to working with DLCD (Jon
Jinings) and ODOE (Todd Cornett) on a pilot concept.

Overall, the meeting discussion about the elements of the draft report resulted in
agreement on the following action items to complete and finalize the report.

NEXT STEPS
Please provide your action items to Ruchi (ruchi.sadhir@oregon.qgov) and Stacey
(stacey.oneil@oregon.gov) via email by Monday, December 5, 2016.

Jon/Todd — Compile all the attachments for the appendix

J.R. — Suggest language to expand the description of the “region” (page 1)

Robert — provide numbers for electric service in the area (page 3)

Crystal — Find out if there is more specific information that could be added for the

location of substations (page 4)

e Varner — Add language about currently operating Carty gas plant/Grassiands
Substation (page 4)

o Todd/Carla/Tamra — Create a table of projects that are currently in process with
application for appendix.

¢ Varner/Johnny/Todd — suggest language for describing utility scale (MW? Size?)

(page 4)

51



Varner/Johnny — suggest a short paragraph that describes future project potential
(rather than describing by name facilities that may be in the IRP phase). (page 4)
Mitch — suggest language that puts B2H in context with the region’s energy
discussion (section 1.3)

Jon/Todd — Add local agencies section with Carla and Tamra (page 6)

Mitch — suggest a sentence that provide context for B2H and cumulative impacts
of future transmission lines for the problem statement paragraph (page 8)
Jon/Todd — change “Port of Morrow” to be West Umatilla County, North Morrow
County, and North Gillam County and make problem statement more broad for
all types of energy (page 8)

Jon — Some revisions in Local Planning Programs summary (e.g. include ORS
215.276, requiring consultation) (page 10)

Todd — Some revisions in the EFSC summary (page 11)

Steve Cherry — Add summary of ODFW role

Varner/Johnny — Suggest language for a paragraph about renewable energy
growth, including policy drivers like RPS (page 11)

Jon/Todd — move key federal, state, local laws and regulations section to be its
own.

Jon/Todd/Johnny — Add language about the idea regarding checklist for
developers instead of geographic boundaries of a corridor (page 11)

Jon/Todd — add distinction between state versus local process with required
studies and landowner consent (page 11)

Jon/Todd/Carla/Tamra — Carla agreed that Morrow County would be a good
place to work on a pilot, so this sub-group agreed to work on language regarding
a potential preferred approach for a pilot from the “menu” of ideas

Jon/Todd — make clear in definitions/background that significant resource
includes energy generation and transmission facility (for these purposes) does
not include pipelines.

Jon/Todd — Clean up language in discussion sections so that the
opportunities/challenges regarding corridors are all in one place. Use the state
mechanisms and incentives ideas/discussion to keep building menu of options
from there.

Kaplan/Robert/Johnny/Varner — Clean up language and add language in
incentives section to potentially list out separately the types of incentives that
might work (overbuild, corridor, checklist, monetary incentive from state or west
coast infrastructure exchange, note potential issues with IOU/PUC or COU/Board
processes)

Rep. Greg Smith — Ruchi and Mike Kaplan met with Rep. Smith on Monday
10/24/2016 to provide information about the meeting, and Rep. Smith committed
to following up with local entities on the meeting and action items.

52



ATTACHMENT G. HB 2508-1 (2015)

This bill added a new set of review criteria for “Transmission Lines” being sited in an Exclusive
Farm Use Zone as a “Utility Facility Necessary for Public Service” under ORS 215.213(1)(c) or

215.283(1)(c). This new set of review criteria, included in ORS 215.274, is intended to evaluate
the proposed associated transmission line based on its potential impact to productive farmiand.

215.274 Associated transmission lines necessary for public service; criteria; mitigating
impact of facility. (1) As used in this section, “associated transmission line” has the meaning
given that term in ORS 469.300.

(2) An associated transmission line is necessary for public service if an applicant for
approval under ORS 215.213 (1)(c)(B) or 215.283 (1)(c)(B) demonstrates to the governing body
of a county or its designee that the associated transmission line meets:

(a) At least one of the requirements listed in subsection (3) of this section; or

(b) The requirements described in subsection (4) of this section.

(3) The governing body of a county or its designee shall approve an application under this
section if an applicant demonstrates that the entire route of the associated transmission line
meets at least one of the following requirements:

(a) The associated transmission line is not located on high-value farmland, as defined in
ORS 195.300, or on arable land;

(b) The associated transmission line is co-located with an existing transmission line;

(c) The associated transmission line parallels an existing transmission line corridor with the
minimum separation necessary for safety; or

(d) The associated transmission line is located within an existing right of way for a linear
facility, such as a transmission line, road or railroad, that is located above the surface of the
ground.

(4)(a) Except as provided in subsection (3) of this section, the governing body of a county or
its designee shall approve an application under this section if, after an evaluation of reasonable
alternatives, the applicant demonstrates that the entire route of the associated transmission line
meets, subject to paragraphs (b) and (c) of this subsection, two or more of the following factors:

(A) Technical and engineering feasibility;

(B) The associated transmission line is locationally dependent because the associated
transmission line must cross high-value farmland, as defined in ORS 195.300, or arable land to
achieve a reasonably direct route or to meet unique geographical needs that cannot be satisfied
on other lands;

(C) Lack of an available existing right of way for a linear facility, such as a transmission line,
road or railroad, that is located above the surface of the ground;

(D) Public health and safety; or

(E) Other requirements of state or federal agencies.

(b) The applicant shall present findings to the governing body of the county or its designee
on how the applicant will mitigate and minimize the impacts, if any, of the associated
transmission line on surrounding lands devoted to farm use in order to prevent a significant
change in accepted farm practices or a significant increase in the cost of farm practices on the
surrounding farmland.

(c) The goveming body of a county or its designee may consider costs associated with any
of the factors listed in paragraph (a) of this subsection, but consideration of cost may not be the
only consideration in determining whether the associated transmission line is necessary for
public service. [2013 ¢.242 §2]

53



ATTACHMENT H. Associated Transmission Line Check Box

EFSC'’s ability to adopt a rule that prevents developers of a transmission line
from avoiding locally adopted transmission line corridors.

ODOE response

Current statute (ORS 469.504) and rule (OAR 345-022-0030) allow EFSC to determine
an applicant complies with statewide planning goals either through application of the
local land use ordinances or by application of the goals directly. The statute and the
rule are linked so there is no opportunity to change the rule without changing the
statute.

We are still evaluating the opportunity to amend other EFSC rules that would require
acknowledgment and use of locally adopted transmission line corridors. However,
without a change to statute, there would always be a risk of a challenge to any rule
because of the language in the land use standard in OAR 345-022-0030 and its link to
ORS 469.504.

469.504 Facility compliance with statewide planning goals; exception; amendment of local plan
and land use regulations; conflicts; technical assistance; rules.
(1) A proposed facility shall be found in compliance with the statewide planning goals under
ORS 469.503 (4) if:

(a) The facility has received local land use approval under the acknowledged
comprehensive plan and land use regulations of the affected local government; or

(b) The Energy Facility Siting Council determines that:

(A) The facility complies with applicable substantive criteria from the affected local
government’s acknowledged comprehensive plan and land use regulations that are required by
the statewide planning goals and in effect on the date the application is submitted, and with any
Land Conservation and Development Commission administrative rules and goals and any land
use statutes that apply directly to the facility under ORS 197.646;

(B) For an energy facility or a related or supporting facility that must be evaluated
against the applicable substantive criteria pursuant to subsection (5) of this section, that
the proposed facility does not comply with one or more of the applicable substantive
criteria but does otherwise comply with the applicable statewide planning goals, or that
an exception to any applicable statewide planning goal is justified under subsection (2)
of this section; or (Emphasis Added)

OAR 345-022-0030 — Land Use

(2)(b)(B) For a proposed facility that does not comply with one or more of the applicable
substantive criteria as described in section (3), the facility otherwise complies with the
statewide planning goals or an exception to any applicable statewide planning goal is
justified under section (4); or (Emphasis Added)

(3) As used in this rule, the "applicable substantive criteria” are criteria from the affected local
govemment's acknowledged comprehensive plan and land use ordinances that are required by
the statewide planning goals and that are in effect on the date the applicant submits the
application. If the special advisory group recommends applicable substantive criteria, as
described under OAR 345-021-0050, the Council shall apply them. If the special advisory group
does not recommend applicable substantive criteria, the Council shall decide either to make its

54



own determination of the applicable substantive criteria and apply them or to evaluate the
proposed facility against the statewide planning goals.

Site Specific Energy Facility Siting Council Standards

An applicant for a state jurisdictional energy facility is obligated to meet all local land
use standards or the appropriate land use goals as previously discussed, and all
applicable Energy Facility Siting Council (EFSC) standards. Unless a locally adopted
transmission line corridor was evaluated against all potentially applicable EFSC
standards, there is no guarantee EFSC could approve a transmission line proposed to
be sited in the locally adopted transmission line corridor. The following subset of EFSC
standards require project specific and site specific evaluations as part of the application
process. Each standard requires the applicant to conduct studies of varying distances
from the project boundary. See “Study Area” distances below for examples.

Structural Standard — This standard protects public health and safety, including the
safety of facility workers, from seismic hazards. The Council requires that the
assessment of seismic hazards and non-earthquake related hazards be based on
actual physical exploration, not merely on available literature.

Soil Protection - This standard requires the applicant to consider problems of erosion
and drainage that could affect land in the surrounding area. The applicant must also
consider potential impacts on soils from cooling tower drift and other forms of chemical
deposition.

Protected Areas - For proposed facilities near protected areas, the standard ensures
that energy facilities located near these areas would have no significant adverse impact.
The applicant must address not only direct impacts but also downstream impacts such
as air and water quality.

Fish and Wildlife Habitat - This standard requires that the proposed facility comply with
the habitat mitigation goals and standards of the Oregon Department of Fish and
Wildlife. The Council must determine whether the applicant has done appropriate site-
specific studies to characterize the fish and wildlife habitat at the site and nearby. If
impacts cannot be avoided, the applicant must provide a habitat mitigation plan.

Threatened and Endangered Species - Through this standard, the Council seeks to
avoid harmful impacts to plant and animal species identified as threatened or
endangered under state law. The applicant must provide appropriate studies of the site
to identify threatened or endangered species that the proposed facility could affect.

Scenic Resources - This standard protects scenic values that identified as significant or
important in local or state land use plans, tribal land management plans or federal land
management plans identify as significant or important. The preferred site is one where
an energy facility would have no adverse impact on identified scenic values, either
because of distance or because the facility is inherently low in visual impact.

55



Historic, Cultural and Archeological Resources - This standard protects the public
interest in preserving places that have historic, cultural or archeological significance,
including sites of historic or religious importance to Native American Tribes. The
standard preserves historic and cultural artifacts and prevents permanent loss of the
archaeological record unique to particular sites in the state. The applicant must conduct
appropriate surveys at the proposed site to identify and avoid places of historic, cultural
or archaeological significance.

Recreation - Under this standard, the Council must decide whether construction or
operation of the proposed facility would adversely affect important recreational
opportunities at the site or in the surrounding area. The applicant must identify the
recreational opportunities and describe the potential impact of the facility.

Public Services - This standard protects the ability of providers in local communities to
deliver critical services. The applicant must assess the proposed facility’s needs for
water and for disposal of wastewater, storm water and solid waste. The applicant must
evaluate the expected population increases in local communities resulting from
construction and operation of the facility. The applicant should address all permanent
and temporary impacts on housing, traffic safety, police and fire protection, health care
and schools.

OAR-345-0010 — Definitions — The following definition establishes the distances from
the project boundary an applicant must evaluate as part of their Notice of Intent. These
could be the same distances an applicant must study as part of the application process
or they could be changed based on ODOE’s evaluation and state agency, local
government and tribal government input.

(59) “Study area” means an area defined in this rule. Except as specified in subsections (f} and
(9), the study area is an area that includes all the area within the site boundary and the area
within the following distances from the site boundary:

(a) For impacts to threatened and endangered plant and animal species, 5 miles.

(b) For impacts to scenic resources and to public services, 10 miles.

(c) For land use impacts and impacts to fish and wildlife habitat, one-half mile.

(d) For impacts to recreational opportunities, 5 miles.

(e) For impacts to protected areas described in OAR 345-022-0040, 20 miles.

(f) The distance stated in subsection (a) above does not apply to surface facilities related to an
underground gas storage reservoir.

(g) The distances stated in subsections (a) and (d) above do not apply to pipelines or
transmission lines.

56



ATTACHMENT I. Cumulative Impact Clarification

Cumulative Impact Clarification for February 5, 2016.

ORS 215.296 provides the meaning behind what is commonly referred to in
the past task force discussions as “cumulative impacts.” The statute citation
below and the attached headnotes should provide clarity to the discussion that
“direct and cumulative impacts” being discussed in this task force relate to
impacts on agriculture, not environmental, cultural or other.

Cite:

(1) A use allowed under ORS 215.213 (2) or 215.283 (2) may be approved only
where the local governing body or its designee finds that the use will not:

(a) Force a significant change in accepted farm or forest practices on
surrounding lands devoted to farm or forest use; or

(b) Significantly increase the cost of accepted farm or forest practices on
surrounding lands devoted to farm or forest use.

(2) An applicant for a use allowed under ORS 215.213 (2) or 215.283 (2) may
demonstrate that the standards for approval set forth in subsection (1) of this
section will be satisfied through the imposition of conditions. Any conditions
so imposed shall be clear and objective.

(3) A person engaged in farm or forest practices on lands devoted to farm or
forest use may file a complaint with the local governing body or its designee
alleging:

(a) That a condition imposed pursuant to subsection (2) of this section has
been violated;

(b) That the violation has:

(A) Forced a significant change in accepted farm or forest practices on
surrounding lands devoted to farm or forest use; or

(B) Significantly increased the cost of accepted farm or forest practices on
surrounding lands devoted to farm or forest use; and

57



required, direct the user to apply for approval within 21 days and warn the
user against the commission of further violations. If the user does not apply
for approval within 21 days, the local governing body or its designee shall
order the suspension of the use until the user applies for and receives
approval. If there is a determination pursuant to subsection (4) of this section
following the receipt of a complaint that a further violation occurred after
approval was granted, the violation shall be deemed a second violation and the
local governing body or its designee at a minimum shall assess a fine against
the violator.

STANDARDS FOR ALL

CONDITIONAL USES.

The following limitations shall apply to

all conditional uses in an EFU zone. Uses
may be approved only where such uses:

(A) Will not force a significant change

in accepted farm or forest practices on
surrounding lands devoted to farm or forest
use; and

(B) Will not significantly increase the

cost of accepted farm or forest practices on

Jands devoted to farm or forest use.

58



3.3.8 EFU Statute/Ordinances — Nonfarm Uses — No Significant Change/Increase
Std. A county errs in requiring an applicant to apply the ORS 215.296 “significant
change/increase” standard to a study of the “surrounding area” that encompasses all
agricultural land in the county, on the theory that a proposed conditional use will remove
land from agricultural use and require county farmers to shoulder a greater burden of
fixed costs in the county’s agricultural economy. The focus of ORS 215.296 is on the
impacts of the proposed conditional use on agricultural practices in the proximate
surrounding area, not attenuated impacts to the larger economy caused by conversion of
the subject property from agricultural use to a conditional non-farm use otherwise
allowed under ORS chapter 215. Hood River Valley PRD v. Hood River County, 67 Or
LUBA 314 (2013).

3.3.8 EFU Statute/Ordinances — Nonfarm Uses — No Significant Change/Increase
Std. The scope of “surroundings lands™ to which ORS 215.296 applies is not limited to
lands adjacent to the subject property. However, failure to define the outer limits of the
study area or to evaluate impacts on non-adjacent farm operations is not necessarily fatal
to the application, if the surrounding agricultural area is homogenous, and there is
substantial evidence that the conditional use has no significant impacts on farm practices
on adjacent farm parcels. Hood River Valley PRD v. Hood River County, 67 Or LUBA
314 (2013).

3.3.8 EFU Statute/Ordinances — Nonfarm Uses — No Significant Change/Increase
Std. ORS 215.296(1) does not require a demonstration that a proposed conditional use of
an EFU-zoned parcel will not prevent future agricultural use of the soils occupied by the
non-farm conditional use. Because ORS chapter 215 authorizes in EFU zones several
uses such as mining or solid waste disposal facilities that involve removal or loss of
agricultural soil, such a requirement would effectively prohibit uses allowed in EFU
zones under ORS chapter 215. Hood River Valley PRD v. Hood River County, 67 Or
LUBA 314 (2013).

3.3.8 EFU Statute/Ordinances — Nonfarm Uses — No Significant Change/Increase
Std. ORS 215.296(1) requires some description of farm practices on surrounding farm
lands, in order to evaluate whether the proposed conditional use will significantly change
or increase the costs of such practices. Where the record and planning commission
decision includes no such description, on local appeal the governing body could conclude
that the planning commission decision approving the conditional use is not supported by
substantial evidence. Hood River Valley PRD v. Hood River County, 67 Or LUBA 314
(2013).

3.3.8 EFU Statute/Ordinances — Nonfarm Uses — No Significant Change/Increase
Std. A winery that was initially approved as a permitted use under ORS 215.283(1)(n) and
215.452 was not required to consider its impact on farm and forest practices on nearby
lands because ORS 215.296(1)(a) and (b) do not apply to such permitted use wineries.
However, if that winery is to be expanded later in ways that are not allowed under ORS
215.452, as a “‘commercial activit[y] that [is] in conjunction with farm use” under ORS
215.283(2)(a), the expanded winery must comply with ORS 215.296(1)(a) and (b), which

59



apply to “commercial activities that are in conjunction with farm use.” In that circumstance
ORS 215.296(1)(a) and (b) apply to the entire winery as expanded, not just the later
approved expansion. Friends of Yamhill County v. Yamhill County, 66 Or LUBA 212
(2012).

3.3.8 EFU Statute/Ordinances — Nonfarm Uses — No Significant Change/Increase
Std. Petitioners’ challenge to a winery expansion presents no basis for remand under the
ORS 215.296(1)a) and (b) significant change/increase standard, where the county’s
findings can be read to identify “spraying pesticides, buming fence lines and plowing
fields” as accepted farming practices that might be impacted by an expanded winery
operation, the county imposes a 200-foot buffer setback requirement on the winery and
requires a recorded acknowledgement by the winery owner that nearby farms have a right
to continue their accepted farming practices even if they impact the winery, and petitioners
offer no direct challenge to the adequacy of those measure to avoid significant changes in
or increases in the cost of accepted farming practices. Friends of Yamhill County v. Yambhill
County, 66 Or LUBA 212 (2012).

3.3.8 EFU Statute/Ordinances — Nonfarm Uses — No Significant Change/Increase
Std. ORS 215.296(2), which provides that an applicant for a conditional use allowed
under ORS 215.213(2) or 215.283(2) may demonstrate compliance with the ORS
215.296(1) no significant change/increase standard through imposition of clear and
objective conditions, does not impliedly limit conditions to those intended to protect farm
and forest uses. Neither does ORS 215.296(2) prohibit counties from adopting additional
EFU zone approval standards to address the impacts of wind energy facilities on
residential uses or Goal 5 resources. Cosner v. Umatilla County, 65 Or LUBA 9 (2012).

3.3.8 EFU Statute/Ordinances — Nonfarm Uses — No Significant Change/Increase
Std. A hearings officer does not err in concluding that a county standard requiring a
showing that the proposed “use” will not force a significant change in farm or forest
practices or significantly increase costs of farm and forest practices does not apply to a
property line adjustment, where the county standard applies to “uses” listed in the
county’s EFU zone, and property line adjustments are not listed as a use. Lowks v.
Jackson County, 65 Or LUBA 58 (2012).

3.3.8 EFU Statute/Ordinances — Nonfarm Uses — No Significant Change/Increase
Std. Findings are inadequate to explain how a proposed waste water treatment facility on
EFU land would either “force a significant change in” the adjacent farming practices or
“significantly increase the cost of” an adjacent organic farming operation under ORS
215.296(1) where the findings do not explain what the “significant impacts™ to the
organic farming operation would be or explain how the potential for spray drift from the
proposed facility would either “force a significant change in” the organic farm practices
or “significantly increase the cost of” the operation. Falcon Heights WSD v. Klamath
County, 64 Or LUBA 390 (2011).

3.3.8 EFU Statute/Ordinances — Nonfarm Uses — No Significant Change/Increase
Std. A criterion that requires a local government to find that a proposed dwelling will not

60



force a significant change in accepted farm practices on surrounding lands does not
require the local government to address the indirect and speculative possibility that the
owner of the land on which the proposed dwelling will be located may decide in the
future not to lease any portions of the subject property that may have been available for
leasing for grazing in the past. Womelsdorf'v. Jackson County, 62 Or LUBA 34 (2010).

3.3.8 EFU Statute/Ordinances — Nonfarm Uses — No Significant Change/Increase
Std. A general statement of concern that a proposed campground would cause “interactions
between livestock and people” is insufficient under ORS 197.763(1) to raise the issue of
compliance with a local code analogue to the ORS 215.296(1) that requires a finding that
the proposed use will not force a significant change in or significantly increase the cost of
accepted farm practices on surrounding lands devoted to farm use. Olstedt v. Clatsop
County, 62 Or LUBA 131 (2010).

3.3.8 EFU Statute/Ordinances — Nonfarm Uses — No Significant Change/Increase
Std. Where a petitioner fails to challenge all the reasons a hearings officer gives for
finding that a proposed wind turbine facility will not force a significant change in or
significantly increase the cost of accepted farm practices on nearby tarms, petitioner’s
challenge to the adequacy of one of the reasons the hearings officer gave provides no
basis for reversal or remand. Falls v. Marion County, 61 Or LUBA 39 (2010).

3.3.8 EFU Statute/Ordinances — Nonfarm Uses — No Significant Change/Increase
Std. When a petitioner was required to raise local appeal issues below pursuant to Miles
v. City of Florence, 190 Or App 500, 79 P3d 382 (2003), raising the issue that approval
of a nonfarm dwelling would significantly increase the cost of farming practices is not
sufficient to raise any issue concerning impacts on the stability of the overall land use
pattern, and the petitioner may not raise the stability standard at LUBA. Zeitoun v.
Yambhill County, 60 Or LUBA 111 (2009).

3.3.8 EFU Statute/Ordinances — Nonfarm Uses — No Significant Change/Increase
Std. A county does not err in concluding that, as conditioned, a personal use airport will
not “significantly” impact a neighboring equine facility, where the only adverse impact
identified by the facility owner is that guests are advised to delay mounting or
dismounting horses until after planes land or take-off, and conditions of approval limit
operations to 20 flights per month. JoAnson v. Marion County, 58 Or LUBA 459 (2009).

3.3.8 EFU Statute/Ordinances — Nonfarm Uses — No Significant Change/Increase
Std. In analyzing significant changes to or significant increases in cost of farming
practices on nearby lands, where a county wishes to disqualify unspecified farm practices
that the county believes are not intended to generate a profit, it is incumbent on the
county in its findings to identify which practices it has not analyzed for that reason.
Comden v. Coos County, 56 Or LUBA 214 (2008).

3.3.8 EFU Statute/Ordinances — Nonfarm Uses — No Significant Change/Increase

Std. A county’s error in failing to identify which farm practices on nearby lands are
excluded from the significant change/increase analysis because they are part of “hobby

61



farms” and are not intended to generate a profit is harmless error, where the governing
body adopted unchallenged planning commission findings that discuss impacts of the
proposed mining on farm practices without distinguishing between “hobby farms” and
other farms, and conclude that any impacts on farm practices will be insignificant.
Comden v. Coos County, 56 Or LUBA 214 (2008).

3.3.8 EFU Statute/Ordinances — Nonfarm Uses — No Significant Change/Increase
Std. A county does not err in failing to define a geographic area of analysis for the
impacts of a non-forest use in a forest zone under a code “significant change/increase”
standard that does not implement the similar significant change/increase standard
applicable to EFU zones and that, unlike the statute, does not require analysis of impacts
on “surrounding lands” or any other particular geographic area. Comden v. Coos County,
56 Or LUBA 214 (2008).

3.3.8 EFU Statute/Ordinances — Nonfarm Uses — No Significant Change/Increase
Std. Findings that describe the only forest practice that adjoining timber operators
identified as impacted by proposed mining on forest land are adequate for purposes of a
code significant change/increase standard, where the code standard does not implement
the statutory significant change/increase standard, and the petitioners do not explain why
the code standard requires an exhaustive description of all forest practices on nearby
lands. Comden v. Coos County, 56 Or LUBA 214 (2008).

3.3.8 EFU Statute/Ordinances — Nonfarm Uses — No Significant Change/Increase
Std. While a county’s failure to describe accepted farming practices on nearby lands
would likely require remand under the ORS 215.296(1) significant change/increase
standard or a code provision implementing that standard, such a failure is not necessarily
reversible error under a similar code significant change/increase standard that does not
implement the statute. Any failure to describe accepted farming practices under the code
standard is harmiess, where the county adopted unchallenged findings, supported by
substantial evidence, that the proposed mining will not significantly affect any farm or
forest practices. Comden v. Coos County, 56 Or LUBA 214 (2008).

3.3.8 EFU Statute/Ordinances — Nonfarm Uses — No Significant Change/Increase
Std. ORS 215.296(1) does not require that a county prevent all impacts on farming
practices, only that the proposed use, as conditioned, not force a significant change in
accepted farm practices or significantly increase the cost of accepted farm practices.
Rural Thurston Inc. v. Lane County, 55 Or LUBA 382 (2007).

3.3.8 EFU Statute/Ordinances — Nonfarm Uses — No Significant Change/Increase
Std. A hearings officer’s conclusion that a fence between a public park and grazing land
is sufficient to ensure compliance with ORS 215.296(1) is supported by substantial
evidence, notwithstanding the possibility that dogs may exit the park through an unfenced
boundary and travel across intervening parcels to harass cattle, where there are no
reported incidents of trespass across the unfenced boundaries and only speculation to
support the possibility. Ruratl Thurston Inc. v. Lane County, 55 Or LUBA 382 (2007).

62



3.3.8 EFU Statute/Ordinances — Nonfarm Uses — No Significant Change/Increase
Std. Remand is necessary where the local government’s approval of an asphalt batch
plant fails to address issues raised regarding the impact of emissions on especially
sensitive crops grown nearby. Rickreall Community Water Assoc. v. Polk County, 53 Or
LUBA 76 (2006).

3.3.8 EFU Statute/Ordinances — Nonfarm Uses — No Significant Change/Increase
Std. The scope of “accepted farming or forest practices” that must be evaluated under the
no significant change/increase standard is a fact-specific inquiry. A hearings officer does
not err in evaluating the scope and intensity of “accepted forest practices” on adjacent
lands based on the forest uses currently or recently occurring in the area, and need not
assume that forest practices on adjacent parcels will occur at the most intensive level
possible. Central Oregon Landwatch v. Deschutes County, 53 Or LUBA 290 (2007).

3.3.8 EFU Statute/Ordinances — Nonfarm Uses — No Significant Change/Increase
Std. ORS 215.284(2)(a) requires a demonstration that a proposed nonfarm dwelling or
“activities associated with the dwelling” will not force a significant change in or
significantly increase the cost of accepted farming practices on nearby lands.
Improvements such as driveways, wells and septic systems are not “activities associated
with the dwelling.” However, such improvements must be considered part of the
proposed dwelling and thus must be considered when determining compliance with ORS
215.284(2)(a). Wetherell v. Douglas County, 51 Or LUBA 699 (2006).

3.3.8 EFU Statute/Ordinances — Nonfarm Uses — No Significant Change/Increase
Std. For purposes of determining whether a nonfarm dwelling proposed in the middle of
an existing vineyard will force a significant change in or significantly increase the cost of
accepted farming practices on “nearby lands,” the county’s determination of the
dwelling’s impact on nearby lands must include consideration of the impact of the
dwelling on the existing vineyard on the subject property itself. Wetherell v. Douglas
County, 51 Or LUBA 699 (2006).

3.3.8 EFU Statute/Ordinances — Nonfarm Uses — No Significant Change/Increase
Std. An allegation that the county failed to consider the potential impact of a proposed
nonfarm dwelling on wells located on nearby properties that serve domestic purposes
does not provide a basis to reverse or remand the approval of a nonfarm dwelling, where
the applicable approval criterion requires a demonstration of whether the proposal will
force a significant change in or significantly increase the cost of accepted farming
practices. Wetherell v. Douglas County, 51 Or LUBA 699 (2006).

3.3.8 EFU Statute/Ordinances — Nonfarm Uses — No Significant Change/Increase
Std. Under a code standard requiring that a proposed forest dwelling not significantly
change or increase the cost of farm or forest practices on nearby resource lands, the
hearings officer’s failure to separately analyze more distant properties in the study area
or identify its outer boundaries is not reversible error, where the hearings officer found
no significant impacts on parcels adjacent to the subject property and, given the

63



homogeneity of the surrounding area, significant impacts on non-adjoining parcels are
unlikely. Sisters Forest Planning Comm. v. Deschutes County, 48 Or LUBA 78 (2004).

3.3.8 EFU Statute/Ordinances — Nonfarm Uses — No Significant Change/Increase
Std. Testimony that approval of a non-farm dwelling will increase agricultural land
costs because of the parcel’s increased value as a building site is at best indirect
evidence of an increase in the cost of “farm practices” within the meaning of ORS
215.296(1). Frazee v. Jackson County, 45 Or LUBA 263 (2003).

3.3.8 EFU Statute/Ordinances — Nonfarm Uses — No Significant Change/Increase
Std. Findings concluding that adjacent farms do not use pesticides or aerial spraying and
will not cause conflicts with proposed nonfarm dwellings are sufficient to show
compliance with the no significant change/increase standard, where petitioners do not
identity other farm practices or conflicts that the county’s findings fail to address, and do
not challenge the findings regarding pesticide use and aerial spraying. Hanna v. Crook
County, 44 Or LUBA 386 (2003).

3.3.8 EFU Statute/Ordinances — Nonfarm Uses — No Significant Change/Increase
Std. Where a party during local proceedings advises the county that an existing or prior
farm use on surrounding lands is in the process of being abandoned, and plans for the
new farm use are sufficiently developed to allow the new farm use to be described in
sufficient detail to allow the farm practices that will be associated with the new farm use
to be identified, an applicant for a nonfarm use that is subject to ORS 215.296(1) must
address the accepted farming practices that will be associated with that new farm use.
Dierking v. Clackamas County, 38 Or LUBA 106 (2000).

3.3.8 EFU Statute/Ordinances — Nonfarm Uses — No Significant Change/Increase
Std. Organic farming is not properly viewed as either a “farm use” or an “accepted farm
practice.” However, organic farmers may employ accepted farming practices that are not
normally associated with other types of farming. Dierking v. Clackamas County, 38 Or
LUBA 106 (2000).

3.3.8 EFU Statute/Ordinances — Nonfarm Uses — No Significant Change/Increase
Std. Impacts on “farm families, residents and workers” are not impacts on “accepted
farm practices,” that must be considered under ORS 215.296(1). Dierking v. Clackamas
County, 38 Or LUBA 106 (2000).

3.3.8 EFU Statute/Ordinances — Nonfarm Uses — No Significant Change/Increase
Std. ORS 215.286 does not require a guarantee that aggregate mining on land zoned for
exclusive farm use will cause no adverse impacts on the water table on surrounding
lands. Jorgensen v. Union County, 37 Or LUBA 738 (2000).

3.3.8 EFU Statute/Ordinances — Nonfarm Uses — No Significant Change/Increase
Std. Petitioners’ argument that the county used a different definition of “‘accepted
farming practices” than the definition provided in ORS 215.203(2)(c) does not provide a
basis for reversal or remand, where petitioners do not demonstrate that the county’s
definition is inconsistent with the statutory definition, or that application of the county’s

64



definition supports a different result than would application of the statutory definition.
Wilbur Residents v. Douglas County, 37 Or LUBA 156 (1999).

3.3.8 EFU Statute/Ordinances — Nonfarm Uses — No Significant Change/Increase
Std. It is inconsistent with ORS 215.296(1) to arbitrarily limit the scope of analysis to
properties within 500 feet of the subject property, where doing so results in failure to
consider substantial evidence in the record of significant impacts from the proposed use
to accepted farming practices on lands beyond 500 feet. However, where petitioners fail
to challenge a finding that there are no significant impacts within 500 feet, and an
extrapolation of that finding to lands beyond 500 feet, the county’s error does not provide
a basis for reversal or remand. Wilbur Residents v. Douglas County, 37 Or LUBA 156
(1999).

3.3.8 EFU Statute/Ordinances — Nonfarm Uses — No Significant Change/Increase
Std. Petitioners’ argument at LUBA that using agricultural land for a golf course buffer
violates the ORS 215.296(1) prohibition against forcing a significant change in farm
practices on surrounding lands devoted to farm use was waived, where petitioners’
arguments during the local proceedings concerning the proposed buffers were not
sufficient for the decision maker to understand and respond to that issue. DLCD v.
Jackson County, 36 Or LUBA 88 (1999).

3.3.8 EFU Statute/Ordinances — Nonfarm Uses — No Significant Change/Increase
Std. A local provision requiring compatibility between a proposed use and development
of abutting properties by outright permitted uses does not require an exhaustive listing
and discussion of every subcategory of use permitted in the area. A county’s general
description of permitted uses and explanation why the proposed use is compatible with
types of permitted uses is adequate. Thomas v. Wasco County, 35 Or LUBA 173 (1998).

3.3.8 EFU Statute/Ordinances — Nonfarm Uses — No Significant Change/Increase
Std. Adequate findings of compliance with a local standard requiring that proposed
nonresource uses not significantly increase the cost of accepted farm and forest practices
must identify the farm and forest practices in the area, even if the local standard does not
implement and thus need not be consistent with the similar statutory standard. Thomas v.
Wasco County, 35 Or LUBA 173 (1998).

3.3.8 EFU Statute/Ordinances — Nonfarm Uses — No Significant Change/Increase
Std. In applying a local provision based on the no significant change/increased cost
standard, the local government is not required to perform the impossible task of proving a
negative or to quantify how much imposed conditions will reduce conflicts with farm
uses below a certain threshold. It need only affirmatively consider the impacts of a
proposed use on farm or forest practices, and in so doing, consider whether the use will
force a significant change or significantly increase the cost of those practices. Gutoski v.
Lane County, 34 Or LUBA 219 (1998).

3.3.8 EFU Statute/Ordinances — Nonfarm Uses — No Significant Change/Increase

Std. Under ORS 215.296(1), the applicant bears the burden to demonstrate that the
proposed use will force no significant change in accepted farming practices or their cost,

65



and the local government's findings must affirmatively explain why it believes there are
no such significant adverse impacts. Just v. Linn County, 32 Or LUBA 325 (1997).

3.3.8 EFU Statute/Ordinances — Nonfarm Uses — No Significant Change/Increase
Std. In order to demonstrate compliance with ORS 215.296(1), county findings must: (1)
describe the farm and forest practices on surrounding lands devoted to farm or forest use;
(2) explain why the proposed use will not force a significant change in those practices;
and (3) explain why the proposed use will not significantly increase the cost of those
practices. Brown v. Union County, 32 Or LUBA 168 (1996).

3.3.8 EFU Statute/Ordinances — Nonfarm Uses — No Significant Change/Increase
Std. Under ORS 215.296(1), the county may not assume from an absence of information
in the record that there are no adverse farm impacts. The burden is on the county to
identify and explain why it believes there are no significant adverse impacts and why it
believes the cost of accepted farm practices would not be increased. Brown v. Union
County, 32 Or LUBA 168 (1996).

3.3.8 EFU Statute/Ordinances — Nonfarm Uses — No Significant Change/Increase
Std. Where the only use approved by the challenged decision is mineral and aggregate
extraction on a 186-acre site, and no uses on the remainder of intervenor's 490-acre parcel
are subject to review under ORS 215.296, the county's findings correctly limit the
evaluation of compliance with ORS 215.296 to the [86-acre area of mineral and
aggregate extraction. Mission Bottom Assoc. v. Marion County, 32 Or LUBA 56 (1996).

3.3.8 EFU Statute/Ordinances — Nonfarm Uses — No Significant Change/Increase
Std. ORS 215.296(1) does not require of the local govermment the impossible task of
proving a negative; rather, the local government must affirmatively consider the impacts
of a proposed use on farm or forest practices, and in consideration of those impacts,
consider whether the use will force a significant change or significantly increase the cost
of those practices. Mission Bottom Assoc. v. Marion County, 32 Or LUBA 56 (1996).

3.3.8 EFU Statute/Ordinances — Nonfarm Uses — No Significant Change/Increase
Std. Where the local code requires that a proposed use will not force a significant change
in, or significantly increase the cost of, accepted farm or forest practices on surrounding
land, the applicant has the burden of identifying the relevant accepted farm and forest
practices and producing evidence showing those practices will not be significantly
changed or their costs significantly increased. Lyon v. Linn County, 28 Or LUBA 402
(1994).

3.3.8 EFU Statute/Ordinances — Nonfarm Uses — No Significant Change/Increase
Std. Findings of fact stating that accepted farm practices which occurred on adjoining
properties have continued after a golf course was constructed do not constitute an
improper interpretation of ORS 215.296(1) as being met simply because those past
accepted farm practices have continued. Von Lubken v. Hood River County, 28 Or LUBA
362 (1994).

66



3.3.8 EFU Statute/Ordinances — Nonfarm Uses — No Significant Change/Increase
Std. Findings that it is possible to apply agricultural sprays with little or no drift if label
restrictions are followed do not constitute findings that spray drift is not an accepted farm
practice. Von Lubken v. Hood River County, 28 Or LUBA 362 (1994).

3.3.8 EFU Statute/Ordinances — Nonfarm Uses — No Significant Change/Increase
Std. Where impacts on an individual accepted farm practice are such that they almost
force a significant change in that practice, additional impacts on other accepted farm
practices may lead to a conclusion that there is a cumulative significant change in
accepted farm practices, but such is not necessarily the case. Von Lubken v. Hood River
County, 28 Or LUBA 362 (1994).

3.3.8 EFU Statute/Ordinances — Nonfarm Uses — No Significant Change/Increase
Std. An applicant may not construct a golf course, prior to receipt of a decision
approving such construction that is sustained on appeal, and thereafter rely on the fact
that construction has already occurred to avoid showing that the impacts on accepted
farm practices and the costs thereof during construction of the golf course are not
significant. Yon Lubken v. Hood River County, 28 Or LUBA 362 (1994).

3.3.8 EFU Statute/Ordinances — Nonfarm Uses — No Significant Change/Increase
Std. Findings that an orchard's accepted farming practices have not been significantly
affected by trespassing golf balls are supported by substantial evidence where the
evidence shows no orchard employees have been hit by golf balls, tree buffers are
effective in deflecting golf balls and petitioner's testimony was discredited by video tape
of petitioner collecting golf balls on the golf course property. Yon Lubken v. Hood River
County, 28 Or LUBA 362 (1994).

3.3.8 EFU Statute/Ordinances — Nonfarm Uses — No Significant Change/Increase
Std. Where there is conflicting evidence concerning the effectiveness of a condition
requiring golf course closures during spraying operations to avoid significant effects on
or cost increases in such spraying, a finding that the condition has been effective is
supported by substantial evidence. Von Lubken v. Hood River County, 28 Or LUBA 362
(1994).

3.3.8 EFU Statute/Ordinances — Nonfarm Uses — No Significant Change/Increase
Std. Where the aerial spray applicator formerly used by an orchard will not spray
orchards surrounded by a golf course and the only sprayer who will charges 2000 dollars
more to do so, the county's findings must explain why this cost increase, viewed
cumulatively with any other cost increases attributable to the golf course, is not
significant. Von Lubken v. Hood River County, 28 Or LUBA 362 (1994).

3.3.8 EFU Statute/Ordinances — Nonfarm Uses — No Significant Change/Increase
Std. Petitioner’s argument that the county failed to address evidence that escaped dogs
can cause great damage in rural areas provides no basis for reversal or remand, where the
county found the proposed kennel will comply with a code standard requiring no
significant increase in the cost of accepted farm and forest practices because the design of

67



the kennel will result in no dogs escaping from the facility. Larry Kelly Farms, Inc. v.
Marion County, 26 Or LUBA 401 (1994).

3.3.8 EFU Statute/Ordinances ~ Nonfarm Uses — No Significant Change/Increase
Std. Where testimony below does not refer to ORS 215.296 by its statutory citation, title
or any recognized abbreviation for either, and does not employ any of the operative terms
of the statute, a reasonable local decision maker would not have understood that
compliance with ORS 215296 was raised below, and petitioner may not raise this issue
before LUBA. Spiering v. Yamhill County, 25 Or LUBA 695 (1993).

3.3.8 EFU Statute/Ordinances — Nonfarm Uses — No Significant Change/Increase
Std. Where a golf course adjoining an orchard will force alterations in accepted farming
practices and increase the costs associated with such practices, the relevant question
under ORS 215.296(1) is whether such alterations and increased costs will be significant.
Where there is evidence in the whole record that would allow a local government
decision maker to answer that question either way, LUBA is required by
ORS 197.835(7)(a)(C) to defer to the local government's judgment. ¥on Lubken v. Hood
River County, 24 Or LUBA 271 (1992).

3.3.8 EFU Statute/Ordinances — Nonfarm Uses — No Significant Change/Increase
Std. Where there is evidence in the local government record that the number of golf balls
claimed to have landed in adjoining orchards is exaggerated, a decision approving a golf
course and imposing a condition requiring the planting of trees to contain golf balls on-
site and installation of a fence and screen to prevent golfers and golf balls from entering
adjoining orchard property, is supported by substantial evidence. Von Lubken v. Hood
River County, 24 Or LUBA 271 (1992).

3.3.8 EFU Statute/Ordinances — Nonfarm Uses — No Significant Change/Increase
Std. Where the aerial application of chemicals on an orchard adjoining a proposed golf
course will be rendered more difficult, although possible, in that at least one aerial
sprayer indicates he would be willing to spray the affected orchard, and the decision
approving the golf course requires the operator to close the golf course to facilitate such
spraying, there is substantial evidence in the record that the golf course will not force a
significant change in or significantly increase the cost of aerial spraying of the adjoining
orchard. Von Lubken v. Hood River County, 24 Or LUBA 271 (1992).

3.3.8 EFU Statute/Ordinances — Nonfarm Uses — No Significant Change/Increase
Std. A decision that a golf course will not significantly change or increase the cost of
ground spraying of an adjoining orchard is supported by substantial evidence, where
there is conflicting evidence concerning the magnitude of ground spraying drift expected
to travel onto adjoining properties, and the decision imposes a condition requiring that the
golf course operator provide monitors to prevent golfers from coming into contact with
ground spray drift. Von Lubken v. Hood River County, 24 Or LUBA 271 (1992).

3.3.8 EFU Statute/Ordinances — Nonfarm Uses — No Significant Change/Increase
Std. Where petitioners do not specifically challenge county findings which (1) identify a

68



specific area surrounding a proposed golf course as the “surrounding lands” to be
considered in determining compliance with ORS 215.296(1) and identical local code
provisions, and (2) explain how the area was chosen, but rather assert a larger area should
have been chosen, LUBA will uphold the county's identification of "surrounding lands."
Schellenberg v. Polk County, 22 Or LUBA 673 (1992).

3.3.8 EFU Statute/Ordinances — Nonfarm Uses — No Significant Change/Increase
Std. ORS 215.296(1), and identical local code provisions, require that a county consider
the impacts of a proposed nonfarm use on e/l "surrounding lands devoted to farm or
forest use," whether that use is commercial or noncommercial. Schellenberg v. Polk
County, 22 Or LUBA 673 (1992).

3.3.8 EFU Statute/Ordinances — Nonfarm Uses — No Significant Change/Increase
Std. A county may properly base its identification of "accepted farm or forest practices,"
as those terms are used in ORS 215.296(1), on the definition of "accepted farming
practice" in ORS 215.203(2)(c). Schellenberg v. Polk County, 22 Or LUBA 673 (1992).

3.3.8 EFU Statute/Ordinances — Nonfarm Uses — No Significant Change/Increase
Std. Where the evidence establishes a reasonable farmer would not significantly change
the manner in which the farm is managed due to a proposed golf course, and the
opponents' evidence shows only that there is a remote possibility that there could be some
impacts from such proposed golf course, the county's determinations that the proposed
golf course will not seriously interfere with, force a significant change in, or significantly
increase the cost of accepting farming practices in the area, are supported by substantial
evidence. Washington Co. Farm Bureau v. Washington County, 22 Or LUBA 540 (1992).

3.3.8 EFU Statute/Ordinances — Nonfarm Uses — No Significant Change/Increase
Std. Under ORS 215.296(1), the burden is on the applicant to show a proposed golf
center will force no significant change in accepted farming practices or their cost, and on
the county to so find. Berg v. Linn County, 22 Or LUBA 507 (1992).

3.3.8 EFU Statute/Ordinances — Nonfarm Uses — No Significant Change/Increase
Std. Findings which fail to identify the farm practices employed on surrounding
properties devoted to farm use cannot explain why the proposed use will not cause a
significant change in or increase the cost of such practices, and are inadequate to comply
with ORS 215.296(1). Berg v. Linn County, 22 Or LUBA 507 (1992).

3.3.8 EFU Statute/Ordinances — Nonfarm Uses — No Significant Change/Increase
Std. Although the EFU zoning statutes do not establish specific approval standards for
golf courses in EFU zones, ORS 215.296(1) establishes standards applicable to nonfarm
uses in EFU zones generally, and requires that approval of such uses not force a
significant change in, or significantly increase the cost of, accepted farm or forest
practices on surrounding lands. Von Lubken v. Hood River County, 22 Or LUBA 307
(1991).

69



3.3.8 EFU Statute/Ordinances — Nonfarm Uses — No Significant Change/Increase
Std. Under ORS 215.296(1) and similar local code provisions, the burden is on the
applicant to show the proposed use will force no significant change in accepted farming
practices or their cost, and on the county to so find. Schellenberg v. Polk County, 21 Or
LUBA 425 (1991).

3.3.8 EFU Statute/Ordinances — Nonfarm Uses — No Significant Change/Increase
Std. ORS 215.296(1) and similar local code provisions require a county to consider all
issues relevant to whether the proposed use will force a significant change in accepted
farm or forest practices on surrounding lands or significantly increase the cost of such
practices. Schellenberg v. Polk County, 21 Or LUBA 425 (1991).

3.3.8 EFU Statute/Ordinances — Nonfarm Uses — No Significant Change/Increase
Std. In order to demonstrate compliance with ORS 215.296(1) and similar code
standards, county findings must (1) describe the farm and forest practices on surrounding
lands devoted to farm or forest use, (2) explain why the proposed use will not force a
significant change in those practices, and (3) explain why the proposed use will not
significantly increase the cost of those practices. Schellenberg v. Polk County, 21 Or
LUBA 425 (1991).

3.3.8 EFU Statute/Ordinances — Nonfarm Uses — No Significant Change/Increase
Std. Without an adequate identification of the accepted farming practices on surrounding
lands, the county's findings cannot explain why the proposed use will not cause a
significant change in or increase the cost of such practices, as required by ORS
215.296(1) and the local code. Schellenberg v. Polk County, 21 Or LUBA 425 (1991).

3.3.8 EFU Statute/Ordinances — Nonfarm Uses — No Significant Change/Increase
Std. Findings of compliance with a standard that a proposed golf course will not "force a
significant change in," or "significantly increase the cost of,” accepted farm or forest
practices on surrounding lands do not necessarily satisfy a standard that the proposed golf
course will not "interfere seriously" with accepted farming practices. Washington Co.
Farm Bureau v. Washington Co.,21 Or LUBA 51 (1991).

3.3.8 EFU Statute/Ordinances — Nonfarm Uses — No Significant Change/Increase
Std. The requirement that conditions imposed to ensure that a proposed nonfarm use will
not force a significant change in, or significantly increase the cost of, accepted farm or
forest practices on surrounding lands "be clear and objective,” does not necessarily
require a local government to adopt findings explaining why conditions imposed for this
purpose are clear and objective. Washington Co. Farm Bureau v. Washington Co., 21 Or
LUBA 51 (1991).

3.3.8 EFU Statute/Ordinances — Nonfarm Uses — No Significant Change/Increase
Std. Whether a proposed dwelling (1) is permitted outright in an EFU zone, (2)is
"accessory" to an underlying nonconforming use, and (3) complies with ORS 215.296(1),
are determinations which require "interpretation or the exercise of factual, policy or legal

70



judgment" within the meaning of ORS 197.015(10)(b)(A) and (C). Komning v. Grant
County, 20 Or LUBA 481 (1990).

71



ATTACHMENT J. Energy Projects Currently Under Review

of two units.

Operating: Unit
1 (440 MW)

Amendment
Request:

-Extend
construction
start deadline for
Unit 2 by two
years and
increase capacity
from 450 to 530
MW

-increase site
boundary area
from 2,400 to
2,918 acres

Name Location | Facility Jurisdiction | Applicant Status
Description
Boardman Morrow, 500 kv State Idaho Power | Expect applicant to
to Umatilla, Transmission submit amended
Hemingway | Union, Line (300 miles) preliminary
Baker, application in 2™
Malheur, gtr. of 2017.
Owyhee
(Idaho)
counties
Boardman Morrow 75 MW (600 State Boardman Request for
Solar Energy | and Gilliam | acres) solar PV Solar Energy, | expedited review
Counties facility LLCa was
subsidiary of | approved. Expect
Invenergy preliminary
application in Dec
2016.
Carty Morrow Approved: 900 State Portland Received
Generating | County MW natural gas General amendment
Station facility consisting Electric request in Sept.

2016. Applicant
ask to suspend
review. Expect to
receive request to
resume in Dec.
2016.

72




-add new 330
MW natural gas
unit

-add a 50-MW
(300+ acre) solar
PV facility
Wheatridge | Morrow 500 MW Wind State Wheatridge In contested case
Wind Energy | and Energy Facility Wind Energy, | phase.
Facility Umatilla LLC, a
Counties subsidiary of
Swaggart
Wind Power,
LLC
PacifiCorp Umatilla 230 kv County, City PacifiCorp Approved Final
Wallula to County, Transmission of Umatilla Decision Dec 2015,
McNary City of Line (22 miles) valid to December
Umatilla 2017. Will need
amendment to add
parcels.
Pacific Umatilla 3 MW solar Umatilla PNGC Expect revised
Northwest County facility (30 acres) | County application in Dec
Generating 2016. Local hearing
Co-op set for Jan 2017.
(PNGC) Solar
Project
Orchard Morrow 40 MW Wind Morrow Oregon Wind | Approved in
Wind County Energy Facility County December 2017.
Appeal period still
pending
N/A Morrow 20 MW Wind Morrow N/A Application not yet
County County submitted
N/A Morrow 20 MW Solar Morrow N/A Application not yet
County County submitted

73




The Loop - Morrow County Transportation
Advisory Committee
Agenda
April 18, 2017 at 3:00 p.m.
Bartholomew Building
110 N. Court Street
Heppner, Oregon

1. Call to Order and Roll Call
2. Public Comment
3. Welcome/Introductions

4. Approve Minutes —January 31, 2017

5. Anita
a. Revenue/Expense reports
b. Ridership
¢. STF Agreement Executed
d. ADAVan
e. 14 Passenger Bus
f. Open Committee Members:
i. Ray Michael
g. Other

6. Linda — Veterans Service Officer Update

7. Other

Next Meeting: July 18, 2017

North County at 3:00 pm.

Adjourn:

The meeting location is accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for an interpreter for the

hearing impaired or for other accommodations for persons with disabilities should be made at least 48
hours before the meeting to Anita Pranger at 1-844-676-5667 or 541-676-5667



Please join your

United States Senator

Ron Wyden

for a

Town Hall Meeting

at the
Riverside Jr/Sr High School

Auditorium
210 Boardman Ave NE, Boardman

Saturday, April 22
At 10:00 a.m.

If you have any questions, please contact

Senator Wyden’s La Grande Office: (541) 962-7691 or by email

at Kathleen_Cathey@wyden.senate.gov




	1 Agenda
	5c Purchase Pre-Auth Press. Washer
	5d Purchase Pre-Auth metal bldgs
	6a R-2017-10 Funding Pkg Resolution
	6b LCAC Charter
	6c Public Health Staffing Request
	6d Budget Transfer Resolution
	6e CREZ Resolution
	6f Equity Fund Committee
	6g Establish COLAs for 2017-18
	6h Surveyor Compensation Update
	6i Schriever Replat
	7a Planning Update
	8 Correspondence

